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   About the Report      
     Scope and Boundary of Reporting and Reporting Period 

At TNT, we believe in an integrated approach that priorities growth, sustainability, innovation, 
and inclusive development. Our Integrated Report 2024-25 provides important information to all 
our stakeholders, including our performance, governance, material risks and opportunities, 
strategy, and future prospects. 
 
This report covers risk management, and material information related to our strategy and 
business model, operating context, stake holder interests, and governance. Our goal is to 
createlongterm value for our stakeholders in anethical manner, using various forms of capital 
available to us and pursuing value-accretive activities. 
 
The Report also covers financial and non-financial information and activities of TNT for the period 
April 1, 2024 to March 31, 2025, while the financial information has been audited by M/s. DPV & 
Associates, Chartered Accountants. 
 

     Financial and Non-Financial Reporting 
We aim to provide information that goes beyond financial aspects and includes non-financial 
performance, opportunities, risk sand out comes that are associated with our key stakeholders 
and have a significant impact on our ability to create value 

     Reporting Principles 
The Report is prepared in line with the Companies Act, 2013 (and the Rules made there under), Indian 
Accounting Standards, SEBI (Listing Obligation sand Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, 
Secretarial Standards. 

 
Forward-looking Statements 

Certain statements in this Report relating to our business operations and prospects may be forward-
looking statements. These statements can be identified by usage of words such as ‘believes’, 
‘estimates’, ‘anticipates’, ‘expects’, ‘intends’, ‘may’, ‘will’, ‘plans’, ‘outlook’ and other words of similar 
meaning in connection with a discussion of future operating or financial performance. These forward-
looking statements are dependent on assumptions, data or methods that may be incorrect or imprecise 
and hence may be incapable of being realized. Such statements are not guaranteed of future 
operating, financial and other results, but constitute our current expectations based on reasonable 
assumptions. The Company’s actual results could materially differ from those projected in any forward-
looking statements due to various future events, risks and uncertainties some of which are beyond our 
control. We do not assume any obligation to update or revise any forward looking statements, whether 
as a result of new information, future events or otherwise. 

   Target Readers 
Our primary aim with this report is to provide investors, both current and potential, with the 
information they require. However, we have also endeavored to present this information in a 
manner that is relevant to other key stakeholders, including our customers, regulators,   
employees, at large.  
 
Frameworks, Guidelines and Standards 
We have prepared this report according to the Comprehensive option of GRI Standards. 
This report also aligns with 

• The Companies Act, 2013(and the rules made thereunder) 

• Task Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures (TCFD) 

• National Voluntary Guidelineson Social, Environmental and Economic Responsibilities of 
Business (NVG-SEE) 

• Indian Accounting Standards 

• SEBI(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
• Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India 
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      Data Integrity 
 
Our goal is to ensure the accuracy, reliability, comparability, and comprehendsibility of the 
information we provide. To achieve this, we use internal software to collect and analyze financial 
and non-financial data for inclusion in the report. We maintain strict internal controls during the 
data collection and analysis process, which is then internally verified and externally audited 
before being presented in the Report. 

     Feedback 
 
We value feedback on our report and strive to provide information that is relevant and useful for 
stakeholder decision-making. If you have any queries or suggestions, please do not hesitate to 
reach out to us at www.tntpipes.com 

 

 

http://www.tntpipes.com/
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Managing Director’s Message 
This year, as we marked our 46th Year, we strengthened    

our commitment to building an even better TNT 

INTRODUCTION 

My Dear Shareholders,  

Good Morning, and a very warm welcome to the 46th Annual General Meeting of Tamilnadu Steel 
Tubes Limited. 

Tamilnadu Steel Tubes Limited is truly blessed to make a humble but crucial contribution to 

creating a better steel pipe market in south India. 

We are not in the business of pursuing  short-term profit and hoarding wealth. We are in the 

business of creating wealth for our shareholders and enhancing the quality of life of every 

Indian, every single day. 

 
We are in the business of providing highest quality products and services that improve 
efficiency, productivity, and ease of living for valuable consumers. 
 
We are on a larger mission to make the world cleaner and greener for our future generations. 
We are reaching greater milestone in T.N.T’s transformative journey, elevating to new heights 
under the far reaching. With sustained growth during the year under review, boosting 
Operational and cost efficiencies, and a focus on an innovation – driven future, we remain 
committed to setting new benchmarks and maintaining our industry leadership.  
  
Driving Growth through Opportunities  
As India advance toward its vision of Make In India /‘visksit bharat’ we take immense pride in 
Contributing to the nation’s growth story. Our products reflect our commitment to progress, 
Quality and sustainability. Propelling us closer to our ambitious TO CROSS 100 Corer TURN 
OVER target by FY 2025–26, we are contributing to its growth by laying a strong, sustainable 
foundation for a brighter tomorrow.  
 
Tamilnadu Steel Tubes Limited has achieved significant cost efficiencies, streamlined operation 
and enhanced delivery speed. Automation and robotics are no longer buzzword of the Future 
but the reality of our efficient present.  
 
Leading with innovation  
Innovation is at the heart of our operation, driving our commitment to expanding Green  
Product offering while enhancing operational efficiency and responsibility. Our R&D team  
and infrastructure and dedicated to providing all test facilities for our plant, Development 
solution that elevated by products for automobile body construction quality, optimise resource 
utilisation and align with evolving building standard, while reducing dependence on traditional 
raw material . Digitalisation, automation and robotics are no longer buzz words of the future 
but the reality of the efficient of our efficient present. 
 
We are harnessing digitalisation across all business function to drive sustainable growth and 
maximise stakeholder value. By integrating advance technologies and modernising our process, 
we continue to build a more resilient, future ready organisation. Digital ecosystem Initiatives 
have streamlined sales operation, while smart dashboards have enable Centralised, real time 
production monitoring. Our company commitment to product quality to ensure robust 
protection against emerging any threat, from the substandard product producers and we 
continue to leverage machine learning and advanced analytics to strengthen our business 
operations. As we move forward, we remain committed to delivering exceptional value, driving 
innovation and contributing meaningfully to our shareholders’ growth and progress. 
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Growth responsibly and sustainably  
We are committed to the highest ethical standard, fostering a culture of integrity, 
transparency and accountability across all level of the company. Our robust governance  
Framework is driven by a strong and independent broad. Moreover, we are embracing, 
digitalisation and Sustainability, integrating advanced technologies to enhance operational 
Efficiency and pushing toward our ESG targets.  Through these collective efforts, we are well 
positioned to drive sustainable growth, create long – term value for stakeholder, and 
strengthen TNT’s leadership position in the STEEL PIPES industry, ensures compliance with 
laws, regulation, and corporate best practices.  We prioritise transparent communication, 
providing timely and accurate disclosures to stakeholders. Further, our Stakeholder 
engagement initiatives help us address concern and build lasting trust. A comprehensive risk 
management framework and independent audits further reinforce our commitment to 
operational excellence and financial integrity.  
 
Optimistic Vision for the Future  
As we move forward, we are confident that we are well placed to capitalise on SOUTH India’s 
promotion growth opportunities, supported by ending relationship and a steadfast 
Commitment to sustained growth. The STEEL PIPE sector is set  for significant expansion, and 
our strategic priorities are designed to leverage this potential effectively. 
 
Our continued focus on excellence, innovation and customer satisfaction will guide us in 
contributing meaningfully to OUR COMPANY progress and building a resilient future for OUR 
SHAREHOLDERS. 

CONCLUSION 
I mentioned at the beginning of my address that in a world of many uncertainties, the continued 
rise of New India is an absolute certainty. No force on earth can stop our beloved nation's march 
towards the goal of Development of Bharat. 
 
I know that the shareholder of TNT have great expectations from TNT. And from this platform of 
the AGM, I assure you that our company will certainly cross Rs.100 crores turn over this year with our 
dedicated team. 
 
Today, I pray to God Almighty to continue to shower His blessings on TNT so that we can continue 
to serve our customers.  
 
Finally, on behalf of all our shareholders, I heartily thank our Board of Directors for their guidance 
and oversight. 
 
My appreciation to all our employees – our greatest asset. Your dedication and commitment have 
helped the Company scale new heights. 

I would also like to thank our business partners for their consistent support in delivering quality 
solutions. 

 
And last, but certainly not least, I convey my deepest gratitude to India and all Indians for 
keeping faith in Brand TNT over the years. 

Thank you ! 
 

 

  
CHENNAI                                                                              BIVASHWA DAS                      
24.09.2025                                                                        Managing Director 
                                                                                            DIN: 07352655 
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THE “TNT” VISION 

Sustain TNT‘s position as one of South India’s most 

valuable company through best class of performance, 

creating growing value for the Company’s stakeholders. 

 
 

THE “TNT” MISSION 

To enhance the wealth generating capability of the 

enterprise in an environment, delivering superior and 

sustainable stakeholder value. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
CORE VALUES 

TNT’s Core Values are aimed at developing a customer-

focused, high-performance organization which creates 

value for all its stakeholders: 

Trusteeship 
 

As professional managers, we are conscious that TNT 

has been given to us in “trust” by all our stakeholders. 

We will actualize stakeholder value and interest on a 

long-term sustainable basis. 

Customer Focus 

We are always customer focused and will deliver what 

the customer needs interm sof value, quality and 

satisfaction. 

Respect for People 
 

We are result oriented, setting high performance 

standards for ourselves as individuals and teams. 

We will simultaneously respect and value people and 

uphold humanness and human dignity. 

We acknowledge that every individual brings different 

perspectives and capabilities to the team and that a 

strong team is founded on a variety of perspectives. 

We want individuals to dream, value differences, 

create and experiment in pursuit of opportunities and 

achieve leadership through team work. 

Excellence 
 

We do what is right, do it well and win. We will strive 

for excellence in whatever we do. 

Innovation 
 

We will constantly pursue newer and better processes, 

products, services and management practices 
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CORPORATE STRATEGIES 

Nation Orientation 

We are aware of our responsibility to generate 

economic value for our stakeholders. In pursuit of our 

goals, we will make no compromise in complying with 

applicable laws and regulations at all levels. 

TNT is a board-managed professional company, 

committed to creating enduring value for the 

stakeholders. It has a rich organizational culture rooted 

inits core values of respect for people and belief in the 

empowerment. Its philosophy of all-round value 

creationis backed by strong corporate governance 

policies and systems. 

TNT’s corporate strategies are: 

• Create multiple drivers of growth by developing 

business that best matches organizational 

capabilities in domestic markets 

• Continue to focus on the latest technology for 

galvanized and stainless-steel pipes production 

• Benchmark the health of each branded product 

comprehensively across the criteria of Market 

Standing, Profitability and Internal Vitality 

• Enhance the competitive power of the portfolio 

through synergies derived by blending the 

diverse skills and capabilities residing in TNT’s 

business. 

• Create distributed leadership within the 

organization by nurturing talented and focused 

top management teams for the businesses. 

• Continuously strengthen and refine Corporate 

Governance processes and systems to catalyst 

the entrepreneurial energies of management by 

striking the golden balance between executive 

freedom and the need for effective control and 

accountability. 

Preamble 
 

TNT’s Code of Conduct is derived from three inter linked 

fundamental principles, viz. good corporate governance, 

good corporate citizenship and exemplary personal 

conduct. 



Corporate Overview 

Page 7 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CODE OF CONDUCT 

 

Philosophy 

TNT recognizes society as an important stakeholder in 

this enterprise and therefore it is part of our 

responsibility to ensure that the organizationis managed 

in a manner that protects and furthers the interests of 

our stakeholders. 

Corporate Governance Policy 

The Corporate Governance Policy is the apex level 

instrument guiding conduct of the affairs of the 

Company and clearly delineates the roles, responsibilities 

and authorities of the key entities in the governance 

structure of the Company 

Good Corporate Citizenship 

We recognize society as an important stakeholder in 

this enterprise and therefore it is part of our 

responsibility to practice good corporate citizenship. 

Personal Conduct 

All directors, senior management and employees are 

expected to demonstrate exemplary personal conduct 

by adhering to ethical manners such as transparency, 

auditability, avoidance of conflict of interest, 

protection of confidential information and by leading an 

example. 

Waivers 

Any waiver of any provision of this Code of Conduct for 

a director, senior management or employee must be 

placed for approval before the Company’s Board of 

Directors/Corporate Management Committee, as 

appropriate. 

Non-Adherence 

Any instance of non-adherence of this Code of Conduct 

should be brought to the attention of the immediate 

reporting authority with copies to the relevant 

Divisional Chief Executive/Head of Corporate 

Department and the Head of Corporate Human 

Resources. 

Duties of Independent  Directors 

The duties of Independent Directors of the Company, as 

laid down under Schedule IV to the companies Act, 2013 

in pursuance of SEBI (LODR) Regulations 2015 – REG 

27(2).   
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 Whistle-blower Policy 

It encourages Directors and employees to bring to the 

Company’s attention, instances of unethical behaviour, 

actual or suspected incidents of fraud or violation of 

the Company’s Code 

In the 46 years of the company’s operations, its 

products and services have been used in raising mega 

structures and iconic landmarks that symbolize a 

nation in progress. 

 TNT has played a meaningful role in the nation building 

process, providing quality building materials and 

services and sharing its expertise – touching the lives of 

generations of people in cities, towns and villages. Its 

presence has been vital in raising mega structures 

likedams, canals, irrigation schemes, power plants, 

ports, roads and railways besides enabling urban 

transformation with skyscrapers, flyover & bridges, 

airports and metrorail projects. 

 
 

BUILDING INDIA 

An indefatigable workforce supported by an extensive 

network of channel partners who cater to a vast 

number of individual house builders has marked TNT as 

a brand to trust for durability. 

 As the government moves ahead with plans for greater 

investments in infrastructure development, Smart 

Cities and urban transformation, the company has als 

orevvedup its capability to provide quality building 

materials and services to match the engineering 

excellence that go into implementing ambitious 

projects necessary in these segments 

MADE IN INDIA Manufacturing  Excellence 

 TNT has been an unrivalled pioneer in South India’s 

galvanized steel pipes and MS pipes industries. Its 

facilities for the manufacture of stainless steel, 

galvanized steel and M.S.Steel pipes, which have state-

of-the-art technology including a considerable degree 

of automated process control systems, demonstrate 

high performance levels and assure consistent quality 

to match class standards. The recently commissioned 

new stainless unit in the existing plant is in itself a 

showcase of South India’s project and engineering 

excellence. 
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TNT stainless steel and galvanized steel pipes and MS 

 pipes plants are capable of meeting specific needs of 

customers 

- beginning with the basic requirement of engineering 

units, builder, government agencies, automobile and 

textile industries and challenging demands of mega 

projects for water transport and others caffolding 

projects, roofing projects and other specialized 

applications. 

TNT’s team of engineers, shop floor associates and 

workers are considered among the best in the industry. 

The plants follow a strict regimen of safety 

management protocols. 

  

Hallmark of Quality – Steel Pipe 

ERW–G.I., BLACK & GALVANIZED PIPES 
 TNT has been a trend setter in South India’s steel industry. TNT has been the brand ofchoice 
for cities and villages as well as enduring structures for infrastructure and steel industry. 
Our range of steel pipes is marketed by a vast countrywide distribution network of over 100 
dealers and more than 500 retailers.  

Product Development 
TNT manufactures various sizesof pipes - Square, Rectangular and supplied in bulk for large 
areas. We have anassortment of special applications. Product Development is a vital role in our 
endeavor forcustomer excellence, enabled by a focus on applied research and innovation 
that drives quality, process improvement and application. 

 
Quality 
TNT demonstrates a tradition of providing trustworthy and consistent quality through the 
application of modern technology to meet the needs and preferences of a nationwide 
customer base in the steel industry. TNT factory has the state-of-the-art process control 
instrumentation, quality control systems and testing laboratories manned by qualified 
personnel. As a result of this unwavering focus on quality, TNT pipes’ specifications exceed 
statutory standards. 
 
Customer Excellence  
We do our utmost to create a unique experience for our customers. We do what it takes to 
see that the customer experiences value in everything we do–in our products, in our service, 
in our communication, in every transaction and in every interface involving the customer. 
This customer centric approach demands that we offer superior products, superior logistics 
and superior service. 
 
An young and dynamic sales force manages the frontline engagement with customers. They 
work with a large contingent of dedicated channel partners who are in turn complemented 
by an extensive network of retailer outlets that makes it easy to reach the masses of South 
India who make up our main customers. 

  
Besides our standard offering, we promote an assortment of Premium products that 
incorporates enhanced technical features appropriate for different local conditions. 
Premium products are coming packed in tamper proof packaging. 
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A selection of routine studies and district survey ensures that we always have the pulseofour 
valued clientele. Frontline sales personnel spend time in retail outlets to gather insights into 
the buying process from in-store consumer behaviour. Tools like Net promoter Score and the 
E3 Model (Economic, Emotional & Ego) helps gauge dealer satisfaction and understand their 
needs.  
 
Customer Service teams offer a range of Technical Services from providing basic product 
knowledge to retail buyers to customized and fee-based services for the large buyer. 
Avariety of other technical seminars and training programmes conducted by our Customer 
Service teams allow useful engagements with experienced engineers. 

Innovative & Future Ready 
These and other such efforts seek to shape for the company a future as noteworthy as its 
past rendering it innovative and future ready in building sustainable solutions and enabling 
the people who can help make it happen. 
 
Leadership & Governance 
TNT is a professionally managed company with its core values based on ethics and good 
corporate citizenship. The Board of Directors comprises eminent professionals of 
unquestionable integrity, a majority of whom are Independent Directors.The Board 
endeavors to maintain the company’s tradition of upholding the highest standards of 
Corporate Governance.The Managing Director oversees day to day working and operations of 
the Company with the help of other Whole-time Directors. Also, he is assisted by the 
Executive Committee (Ex-co) which includes the functional heads of Finance, Manufacturing, 
Marketing, Human Resources and Procurement. The Ex-co is responsible and accountable for 
overall business deliverables. 
 

BRAND THAT CARES 

 
Sustainable Business 

Your Company rejoices in greening the environs around us. A deep concern for conservation 
of the earth’s precious resources is integrated into all activities of our value chain from 
slitting to sales. We continuously explore ways to make our business eco-friendlier; from 
deploying clean works techniques to transforming Factory into lush forests or useful water 
bodies. We minimize the use of chemicals that gainfully utilize industrial wastes. 

 
All this helps cut our carbon footprint down to a level that is best in class. We have been 
among the most sustainable companies and conducting sustainable business. 

A Caring Company: 
   We partner with the rural community living around our operations to improve the quality of their         

lives. In their well-being lies our license to operate. 

People-Architects of Success: 
The company’s Human Resource function incorporates effective engagements with all levels 
of employees with a view to ensure that the workforce is close knit, motivated and ready to 
excel in the market place. 

 
Efforts continued to make sure that training and leadership development processes are 
designed to enhance technical and functional capabilities, with special focus on nurturing 
young talent. This will help us meet emerging challenges and keep the organization’s talent pool 
effervescent and future ready. 
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

1. NET SALES, OPERATING EBITDA & OPERATING EBITDA MARGIN% 
                                                                                                                  (Rs.in Lakhs) 
 

Particulars/Year 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 

SALES 
5,198 7,735 9,206 7,150 7,386 

EBITDA 
48 125 123 101 111 

EBITDA MARGIN (%) 
0.9% 1.6% 1.3% 1.4% 1.5% 

 

 
 

 
2. BOOK VALUE PER SHARE 

                                                                                                             (Rs. in Lakhs) 

Particulars/Year 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 

Net worth 819.79 871.90 925.26 948.22 950.36 

Book Value per Share (Rs.) 16.00 17.01 18.05 18.50 18.54 

No of Shares 5124800 5124800 5124800 5124800 5124800 
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1. PROFIT BEFORE TAX & PROFIT AFTER TAX 

  
         (Rs. In lakhs) 

 

Particulars/Year 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 

PBT 11.03 88.34 38.02 8.61 12.62 

PAT (68.12) 52.09 56.57 28.33 9.96 

 

 

 
 
 
 

3. NET WORTH & RETURN ON NET WORTH   
                                                                                         (Rs. In lakhs) 

 
 

Particulars/Year 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 

Net Worth (Rs. 
Lakhs) 

819.79 871.89 925.26 948.22 950.36 

PAT (Rs. Lakhs) -68.11 52.09 56.57 28.33 9.96 

RONW (%) -8.31% 5.97% 6.11% 2.99% 1.05% 
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4. NET CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 
                                                                                                                        (Rs. In lakhs) 

Particulars/Year 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 

Net Cash Generated (Rs. Lakhs) 58.44 (400.73) (160.96) 91.14 28.71 

 

 
 

 

 
5. CAPITAL EMPLOYED & RETURN ON CAPITAL EMPLOYED 

 
 

 

Particulars / Year 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 

Capital Employed (Rs. Lakhs) 1,078.07 1,517.50 1,559.59 1,576.53 1,816.73 

Return on Capital Employed (%) 1.43% 6.57% 5.57% 4.06% 3.98% 
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6. Cost & Profit as a Percentage of Revenue from Operations 2024-25 

 

 

Particulars 

  

Rs. in 

Crores 

 

% 

Revenue from operations (net) 73.86 100% 

Profit Before Tax 0.13 0.18% 

Cost of materials consumed 65.55 88.74% 

Power and Fuel 1.40 1.24% 

Employee Benefit Expense 4.26 4.60% 

Freight and Forwarding expense 0.41 0.55% 

Other expenses 1.29 1.75% 

Depreciation and amortization expense 0.34 0.47% 

Finance Cost 0.64 0.56% 

Other Income 0.17 0.13% 
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7. Cost & Profit as a Percentage of Revenue from Operations 2023-24 

 

Particulars Rs. in 

Crores 

 

% 

Revenue from operations (net) 71.50 100% 

Profit Before Tax 0.09 0.12% 

Cost of materials consumed 64.13 86.82% 

Power and Fuel 1.12 1.24% 

Employee Benefit Expense 3.99 4.60% 

Freight and Forwarding expense 0.31 0.42% 

Other expenses 1.43 2.00% 

Depreciation and amortization expense. 0.34 0.46% 

Finance Cost 0.59 0.56% 

Other Income 0.50 0.13% 
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         STANDALONE FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS–2015-16 to 2024-25  

                                                                                                                Rs.in lakhs 
PARTICULARS 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 

Revenue from 

operations 

7839.55 8051.16 9062.61 8137.41 5,085.79 5,197.99 7,735.44 9,206.46  7,149.54  7,385.80 

Total Income 7911.29 8067.95 9070.07 8148.97 5,111.37 5,233.51 7,742.06 9,270.29  7,199.61  7402.31 

EBITDA 457.28 237.78 189.42 102.8 (210.33) 47.79 124.92 122.68  101.50  111.43 

Depreciation 26.01 30.03 33.70 33.47 33.15 32.33 25.23 32.75  33.99  34.42 

Exceptional Items - - -  - -    - 

Profit for the Year 253.00 97.09 69.93 9.13 (246.20) (68.12) 52.12 56.57  28.33  9.96 

Equity Dividend % - - -       - 

Equity Share Capital 512.48 512.48 512.48 512.48 512.48 512.48 512.48 512.48  512.48  512.48 

Reserves and 

Surplus 

445.48 542.57 612.50 621.64 375.43 307.31 359.42 412.78  435.74  437.88 

Net Worth 957.96 1055.05 1124.98 1134.12 887.91 819.79 871.90 925.26  948.22  950.36 

Gross Fixed Assets 967.88 1034.72 1071.93 1077.82 299.50 307.12 392.49 408.22  380.21  433.12 

Net Fixed Assets 208.60 257.37 251.67 228.73 190.80 171.70 231.83 238.59  229.84  254.95 

Total Assets 2697.38 3114.42 3372.99 3059.62 2,612.24 2,454.78 2,928.39 3,258.58  3,183.90  3,672.56 

Key Indicators           

Earnings Per Share 4.94 1.89 1.36 0.18 (4.80) (1.33) 1.02 1.10 0.55 0.19 

Turnover per Share 152.97 157.10 176.84 158.78 99.24 101.43 150.94 179.65 139.51 144.12 

Book Value Per 

Share 

18.69 20.59 21.95 22.13 17.33 16.00 17.01 18.05 18.50 18.54 

Debt: Equity Ratio 1.82:1 1.95:1 0.98:1 1.70:1 1.94:1 1.47:1 0.74:1 0.68:1 0.66:1 0.92:1 

EBDIT/Gross 

Turnover % 5.83 2.95 2.09 1.26% -4.11% 0.91% 1.61% 1.32% 1.41% 1.51% 

Net Profit Margin 

% 3.23 1.21 0.77 0.11% -4.82% -1.30% 0.67% 0.61% 0.39% 0.13% 

RONW % 26.41 9.20 6.22 0.81% -27.73% -8.31% 5.98% 6.11% 2.99% 1.05% 

 

 

         STANDALONE OPERATING RESULTS–2015-16 to 2024-25 
                                                                                                                   (Rs. In Lakhs) 

 
PARTICULARS 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 

TOTAL INCOME 7911.29 8067.95 9070.07 8148.97 5111.37 5233.11 7,742.05 9,270.29 7,199.61 

 

7402.31 

PBDIT 457.28 237.78 189.41 94.44 (210.33) 47.79 124.92 122.68 101.50 

 

111.43 

DEPRECIATION 26.01 30.03 33.70 33.48 33.14 32.32 25.23 32.75 33.99 34.42 

PBIT 431.27 207.75 155.71 84.26 (243.48) 15.47 99.69 89.93 67.51 

 

77.01 

PBT 345.07 149.91 106.99 1.06 (248.17) 11.03 88.34 38.02 8.61 

 

12.62 

EXCEPTIONAL ITEM - - - - - - - - - - 

TAX 94.68 47.11 34.99 1.5 0 79.13 35.74 12.81 - - 

DEFERRED TAX (2.61) 5.71 2.08 9.6 1.96 0.02 0.51 5.74 19.72 

 

(2.65) 

PAT 253.00 97.09 69.93 9.14 (246.20) (68.12) 52.09 56.57 28.33 

 

9.96 
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VALUE ADDED STATEMENT                      (Rs.inLakhs) 
 

PARTICULARS 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 

(A) Sales 5,085.79 5,197.99 7,735.44 9,206.46 7,149.54 7,385.80 

Total of A 5,085.79 5,197.99 7,735.44 9,206.46 7,149.54 7,385.80 

(B) Less: Cost of Materials 
and Services 

 

1. Consumption of Materials 4529.58 4562.48 7122.03 8,611.35 6,510.34 6,771.00 

2. Increase in stock/(Decrease in Stock) 11.97 (34.38) -151.06 -181.75 (97.69) (216.48) 

3.Audit Fees 5.45 2.45 2.45 2.75 3.28 4.30 

4.Provision for Doubtful Debts       

5.Interest on working Capital loan from       

- Banks - - 10.60 51.91 58.90 64.39 

6.Other Manufacturing & Admin -      

Expenses 423.68 275.37 247.66 238.51 224.00 241.18 

7.Exceptional items       

Total of B 4970.69 4805.92 7,231.68 8,722.77 6,698.82 6,864.39 

(C) Value Added by Manufacturing & 

Trading Activities (A-B) 
115.10 392.07 503.76 483.69 450.72 521.41 

(D ) Add: Other Income 25.58 35.52 6.61 63.82 50.07 16.50 

(E)Gross/Total Value Added (C+D) 140.68 427.59 510.37 547.52 500.79 537.91 

Application of Value Added       

(A) Employees Benefit 351.01 379.79 385.42 424.84 399.28 426.49 

(B) Government fees  

Income Tax, Corporation Tax,  

Tax Distributed on Profits, Cess & Local 

Taxes 
- 79.13 35.74 -12.81 - - 

Total of B - 79.13 35.74 -12.81 - - 

(C) Investment Cost  

Interest on Debentures - - - - -  

Interest on Borrowings - - 10.60 51.16 58.38 58.22 

Interest on Fixed Loans from Financial 
Institution 

4.69 4.43 0.75 0.75 0.52 6.17 

Equity Dividend - - - - - - 

Preference Dividend - - - - - - 

Total of C 4.69 4.43 11.35 51.91 58.90 64.39 

(D) To provide for Expansion & 
Maintenance of the Company 

      

Depreciation 33.15 32.33 25.23 32.75 33.99 34.42 

Retained Profit (246.20) (68.12) 52.12 56.57 28.33 9.96 

General Reserve - - - - - - 

Deferred Tax Account (1.96) 0.02 0.51 -5.74 -19.72 2.65 

Total of D (215.02) (35.77) 77.86 83.58 42.60 47.03 

Total (A+B+C+D) 140.68 427.59 510.37 547.52 500.79 537.91 

Notes: 

1. Cash and cash equivalents include Cash and bank balances, investment in shortterm deposits and 

mutual funds 

2. Current maturities of Long-Term Borrowings have been included in Borrowings and excluding same 
from current liabilities 

3. Operating EBITDA: Profit from operations before other income, finance costs and depreciation and 
amortization expense. 

4. Average Return on Capital Employed: EBIT/Average Capital Employed (Capital Employed:Net 

worth+Long-term borrowings+Current maturities of Long-Term borrowings) 

5. Return on Net worth:Profit after Tax/Networth 

6. Debts Equity Ratio: (Long-term borrowings+Current maturities of Long-Term borrowings)/Share 
holders’ funds 

7. Price Earnings Ratio: Market Price per share/Basic Earnings per share 

8. Net worth per share: NetWorth / Number of Equity Shares 

9. Current Assets: Total assets-Fixed assets-Investments 

10. Current Liability: Current liability excluding Short-term borrowings+Long-term provision 
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NOTICE 

TAMILNADU STEEL TUBES LTD. 
Regd. Office: No, 22, 1st Floor, Wheatcroft Road, CHENNAI - 600 034 

CIN: L27110TN1979PLC007887; GST: 33AAACT2381C1ZU 
Phone: 2855 5653, E-mail: tnt.share@yahoo.in; website: www.tntpipes.com  

 

46th ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 
 

NOTICE is hereby given that the Forty Sixth Annual General Meeting of the 
members of TAMILNADU STEEL TUBES LIMITED will be held on Wednesday, the 24TH 
September, 2025 at 10.00 A.M. Indian standard time (IST) through Video 
Conferencing (VC) / Other Audio Visual Means (OAVM), at the Regd. Office of the 
Company, No:22, 1st Floor, Wheat Croft Road, Nungambakkam, Chennai – 600034, Tamil 
Nadu (Deemed Location). 

      ORDINARY BUSINESS 

      Item No:1 

Approval of Accounts 2024-25 – Ordinary Resolution  

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the 
financial year ended 31st March 2025 together with the Reports of the Board of Directors' 
and Auditors' thereon. 

 

Item No :2 

Re-appointment  of Wholetime Director Mr.Krishnan Kamal Shukla (DIN- 09700482) 
who retires by rotation and being eligible offers himself for re-appointment: (Ordinary 
Resolution) 
To Re-appoint a Whole time Director Mr Krishnan Kamal Shukla (DIN: 09700482), 
who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. 
 
Explanation: Based on the terms of appointment of a Whole Time Directors / Executive Directors 
and the Non-Executive Directors (other than Independent Directors) are subject to retirement by 
rotation. Mr. Krishnan Kamal Shukla (DIN - 09700482) who has been in the Board of the Company 
since 10th February 2024 and whose office is liable to retire at this AGM, being eligible, seeks re-
appointment. Based on the performance evaluation and the recommendation of the Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee, the Board recommends his re-appointment as a Director of the 

Company. “Therefore, the shareholders are requested to consider and, if thought fit, to pass 
with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution. 
 
RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Krishnan Kamal Shukla (DIN- 09700482) who retires by rotation, 
be and is hereby re-appointed as a Director, liable to retire by rotation.  

 

Item No: 3 

Re-appointment of Wholetime Director Mr. BIVASHWA DAS (DIN- 07352655) who 
retires by rotation and being eligible offers himself for re-appointment: (Ordinary 
Resolution) 

To Re-appoint a Whole time Director Mr Bivashwa Das (DIN-07352655), who retires 
by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. 

 

http://www.tntpipes.com/
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Explanation: Based on the terms of appointment of a Whole Time Directors / Executive Directors 

and the Non-Executive Directors (other than Independent Directors) are subject to retirement by 

rotation. Mr. Bivashwa Das (DIN-07352655) who has been in the Board of the Company since 

September 20, 2023 and whose office is liable to retire at this AGM, being eligible, seeks re-

appointment. Based on the performance evaluation and the recommendation of the Nomination 

and Remuneration Committee, the Board recommends his re-appointment as a Director of the 

Company. “Therefore, the shareholders are requested to consider and, if thought fit, to pass 

with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution.  

 

RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable provisions of the 

Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Bivashwa Das (DIN-07352655) who retires by rotation, be and is 

hereby re-appointed as a Director, liable to retire by rotation. 

SPECIAL BUSINESS 

Item No: 4 

APPOINTMENT OF SECRETARIAL AUDITOR AND FIXATION OF THEIR REMUNERATION.  

To consider and if thought fit, approve the appointment of Mr.V.S. Sowrirajan, M/s. 

V.S.Sowrirajan & Associates, ( Membership No. F C S  2 3 6 8  & C.P. No. 6482),  Practicing 

Company Secretary as Secretarial Auditor of the Company for a first term of five (5) years 

and to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary 

Resolution. 

RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 and other applicable provisions, if 

any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules framed thereunder and Regulation 24A of 

the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosures 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended from time to time (including any statutory 

modification(s) or amendment(s) thereto or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in 

force), and in accordance with the recommendation of the Board of Directors of the 

Company MR. V.S.SOWRIRAJAN, Practicing Company Secretary (CP No: 6482 / FCS -2368 and 

Peer Reviewed Certificate No. 2162/2022) be appointed as the Secretarial Auditors of the 

Company for a term of five (5) consecutive years, to conduct the Secretarial Audit of five 

consecutive financial years from 2025-26 to 2029-30 on such remuneration as agreed 

between them and the company and reimbursement of out of pocket expenses for the 

purpose of audit as may be approved by the Audit Committee/Board of Directors of the 

Company. 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT approval of the members be and is hereby accorded to the Board of 

Directors to avail or obtain from the Secretarial Auditor, such other services or certificates, 

reports, or opinions which the Secretarial Auditors as may be eligible to provide or issue under 

the applicable laws, at a remuneration to be determined by the Audit committee/Board of 

Directors of the Company. 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors (hereinafter referred to as the 
‘Board’ which expression shall include any Committee thereof or person(s) authorized 
by the Board), of the Company be and is hereby authorized to take all actions and do 
all such deeds, matters and things, as may be necessary, proper or desirable and to 
settle any question, difficulty or doubt that may arise in this regard. 

 



Corporate Overview 

Page 21 

 

 

Item No: 5 

APPOINTMENT OF COST AUDITOR AND FIXATION OF THEIR REMUNERATION.  

To consider and, if thought fit, approve the remuneration payable to M/s.  LATHA VENKATESH 

& ASSOCIATES, Cost Accountants, Cost Auditors of the Company, for the financial year ending 

March 31, 2026 and to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an 

Ordinary Resolution. 

RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 and all other applicable 

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies ( Cost Auditors) Rules, 2014 

(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), 

M/s. LATHA VENKATESH & ASSOCIATES, Cost Accountants, the Cost Auditors appointed by the 

Board of Directors of the Company, based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, to 

conduct the audit for the financial year 2025-2026 at a Remuneration of as per agreed term 

between the  company  and the firm,  plus applicable taxes and reimbursement of the travelling 

and other out-of-pocket expenses incurred by them in connection with the aforesaid audit, 

be and is hereby ratified and confirmed. 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors (hereinafter referred to as the ‘Board’ 

which expression shall include any Committee thereof or person(s) authorized by the Board), 

of the Company be and is hereby authorised to do all acts and take all such steps as may be 

necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this resolution. 

Item No: 6 

APPOINTMENT OF C.F.O (Chief Financial Officer).  
 

To consider and if thought fit, approve appointment of Mr. SHIV BANDHU as the C.F.O of the 

Company, and to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary 

Resolution:  

 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 203, 152 and other applicable 

provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and Companies (Appointment of 

C.F.O) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the 

time being in force), and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”), as amended from time to time, MR. SHIV BANDHU as the 

C.F.O of the Company.  

 

The Board of Directors based on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee and who holds office, subject to the approval of members in terms of Regulation 

17 (1C) of SEBI Listing Regulations and in respect of whom the Company has received a notice 

in writing under Section 160 of the Act from a Member proposing his candidature for the 

office of C.F.O, be and is hereby appointed as C.F.O of the Company, RESOLVED FURTHER THAT 

the Board be and is hereby authorised to do all acts and take all such steps as may be necessary, 

proper or expedient to give effect to this resolution." 

Item No: 7 
 

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION – ROYALTY PAYMENT MADE TO MR. SAATVIK GOYAL FOR 

TRADEMARKS: TNT, STAR & JUPITER FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2025-26 SHAREHOLDER 

MORE THAN 10% OF EQUITY SHARE:- 
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To consider and if deemed fit, to pass, with or without modification (s), the following 

resolution as a SPECIAL RESOLUTION: 

 

The Board noted the related party Transaction of Mr. SAATVIK GOYAL for the propose of 

Trade Marks TNT, Star & Jupiter for The Financial Year 2025-26 Shareholder More Than 10% 

Of Equity Share. Also noted that these trademarks belong to one Mr. AMBRISH CHHEDA, and 

these brands are being used by the company for several year to market the products. MR. 

SAATVIK GOYAL, who is holding more than 10% of the company, has purchased these trade 

mark in his individual capacity from MR. AMBRISH CHHEDA after executing necessary 

agreement between the company and MR. SAATVIK GOYAL for the same.  However, since 

MR.SAATVIK GOYAL is holding more than 10 % shareholding, if any transaction held by him 

between the company the same will be treated as related party transaction and for 

shareholder’ approval at the AGM . 

 

RESOLVED that the USAGE OF TRADE MARK and the payment – as Royalty to the brand and 

Related Party Transaction mentioned as above, be and is hereby approved.  

 

Item No: 8 
 

LEASE CUM SALE OR LEASE OF  COMPANY’S LAND SITUATED AT MM. NAGAR- PLOTS B-10 

&C-13/ FIXED IMMOVABLE ASSET – approval for registration of Deeds under Section 

180(1) (a) of company Act, 2013. To sell, lease or otherwise dispose of the whole or 

substantially whole of the company land to Mrs. Durga Devi Goyal - EMD Received 

through various leas deeds (this EMD is neither Advance nor Loan, is only a precondition 

to participate for the particular Lease Bid as per arm length basis) 

 

To consider and if deemed fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following 

resolution as a SPECIAL RESOLUTION: 

 

RESOLVED THAT, pursuant to section 180(1)(a) and other applicable provision of the 

companies Act 2013 and the Rules made thereunder and subject to such other approvals, 

consent, permission , sanction of any authorities as may be necessary , consent of the 

member be and is hereby accord for approval of registration of sales deed confirming the 

agreement to sell / Lease transfer, assign or otherwise dispose off the whole part of the 

company lands measuring about 6.75 Acres situated at plots B-10 &C-13 Industrial Complex , 

MM Nagar- 603209, Chengalpattu Dist., earth in the name of Mrs. DURGA DEVI GOYAL or in 

the name of the person to whom she decide at a Consideration which is not less than the 

name vale to be discharge the Broad of Directors of the company and Mrs Durga Devi Goyal, 

as per the arm length basis acceptance  of the consideration offered by her for the sale of 

Land , since the last few year AGM Approval has been Approval, but the sale deed has not 

been Executed as per the income  Tax Rules and Companies Act 2013, Further Approval 

From the Shareholders is Mandatory and hence the matter is being placed before the 

ensuring AGM to be held on 24.09.2025 for shareholder’s approval. 
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorised to execute all such 

agreements, documents, instruments and writings as deemed necessary, with power to alter 

and vary the terms and conditions of such contracts/arrangements/ transactions and settle 

all questions, difficulties or doubts that may arise in this regard.” 

 

                                                   For and on behalf of the Board 
                                                      Tamilnadu Steel Tubes Limited  

 
                                                                                                                                 
                                                                                                            K.SURESH 
                                                                                                    COMPANY SECRETARY  
                                                                                                        M.No. ACS 34656  
  Date: August 14, 2025  

  Place:  Chennai  

     

Regd. Office: 

Tamilnadu Steel Tubes Limited 

No.22, 1St Floor, Wheatcroft Road, 

Nungambakkam, Chennai – 600 034 

CIN: L27110TN1979PLC007887 
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NOTES: 
1) The Government of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs has allowed conducting Annual 

General Meeting through Video Conferencing (VC) or Other Audio Visual Means (OAVM) 

and dispended the personal presence of the members at the meeting. Accordingly, the 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued General Circulars No. 14/2020 dated April 8, 2020; No. 

17/2020 dated April 13, 2020; No. 20/2020 dated May 5, 2020; No. 22/2020 dated June 15, 

2020; No. 33/2020 dated September 28, 2020; No. 39/2020 dated December 31, 2020; No. 

10/2021 dated June 23, 2021; No. 20/2021 dated December 8, 2021; No. 21/2021 dated 

December 14, 2021; No. 2/2022 dated    May 5, 2022; No. 10/2022 dated December 28, 2022; 

No. 9/2023 dated September 25, 2023; and No. 9/2024 dated September 19, 2024 (“MCA 

Circulars”) and Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2021/11 dated January 15, 2021, Circular 

No. SEBI/HO/DDHS/P/ CIR/2022/0063 dated May 13, 2022, SEBI/HO/CRD/PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/4 

dated January 5, 2023, Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CFD-PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/167 dated October 7, 

2023 and Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/ CFD-PoD-2/P/CIR/2024/133 dated October 3, 2024 issued 

by the Securities Exchange Board of India (“SEBI Circulars”) prescribing the procedures and 

manner of conducting the Annual General Meeting through VC/OAVM. In terms of the said 

circulars, the 89th Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the Members will be held through 

VC/OAVM. Hence, Members can attend and participate in the AGM through VC/ OAVM only. The 

detailed procedure for participation in the meeting through VC/OAVM is as per 

i n s t r u c t i o n s  a t t a c h e d  t o  t h i s  N o t i c e  and available at the Company’s website: 

www.tntpipes.com. 

 

2) The helpline number regarding any query / assistance for participation in the AGM 

through VC/OAVM is Phone: 044-28555653. 

 

3) Information regarding appointment / re-appointment of Directors and Explanatory 

Statement in respect of special businesses to be transacted pursuant to Section 102 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act') and/ or Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ('SEBI Listing Regulations'), is annexed hereto as 

Annexure A to the Explanatory Statement. 

 

4) Pursuant to the MCA Circulars, the facility to appoint proxy to attend and cast vote for 

the members is not available for this AGM. However, the Body Corporates are entitled to 

appoint authorised representatives for attending the AGM through VC/OAVM, 

participating thereat and casting their votes through e-voting. 

 

5) The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted 

for the purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Act. 

 

6) In line with the aforesaid MCA Circulars, the Notice calling the AGM has been 

uploaded on the website of the Company at https://www.tntpipes.com The Notice can 

also be accessed from the websites of the Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited at 

www.bseindia.com. The said Notice of the AGM is also available on the website of NSDL 

(agency for providing the Remote e-Voting facility) at www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

http://www.tntpipes.com/
http://www.tntpipes.com/
http://www.bseindia.com/
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/


Corporate Overview 

Page 25 

 

 

 

 7) Members seeking any information with regard to accounts are requested to write 
to the Company at least 10 days before the meeting so as to enable the management 
to keep the information ready. 

 

8)  Members holding shares in physical form are requested to note that in terms of Regulation 

40 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, securities of listed companies can be transferred only in 

dematerialised form with effect from April 1, 2019. In view of the above and in order to 

eliminate risks associated with physical transfer of securities, shareholders holding equity 

shares of the Company in physical form are requested to consider converting their holdings 

to dematerialised form. Members may contact the Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer 

Agent (‘RTA’) for assistance in this regard. 

 

9)   Members holding shares in physical form are requested to furnish Form ISR-1, Form ISR-2 and 

SH-13 (available on the Company’s website at https://www.tntpipes.com to update KYC and 

choice of Nomination (in case the same are not already updated), to Company’s Registrar 

and Share Transfer Agent viz., Cameo Corporate Service Ltd (herein after referred to as “Cameo” 

R & T Agent) at Subramanian Building ,No.2 , Club House Road , Chennai – 600 002 

Alternatively, Members may send digitally signed copy of their documents by email to 

“Cameo” at murali@cameoindia.com or upload on their web portal www.cameoindia.com. 

 

10) In case shares held in dematerialized form, the information regarding change of 

address and bank particulars should be given to their respective Depository Participant. 

 

11) Members may further note that SEBI, vide its Circular No. 

SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD_RTAMB/P/ CIR/2022/8 dated January 25, 2022, has mandated 

listed companies to issue securities in dematerialized form only while processing service 

requests, viz., issue of duplicate securities certificate, claim from unclaimed suspense 

account, splitting of securities certificate, consolidation of securities 

certificates/folios, transmission and transposition etc. Accordingly, Members are 

requested to make service requests by submitting a duly filled and signed Form ISR-4, 

the format of which is available on Company’s website at https://www.tntpipes.com and on 

the website of “Cameo”at www.cameoindia.com It may be noted that any service request can 

be processed only after the folio is KYC compliant.  

 

12) The Register of Directors’ and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding 

maintained under Section 170 of the Act, the Register of contracts or arrangements in 

which the Directors are interested under Section 189 of the Act, if applicable, and all other 

documents referred to in the Notice will be available for inspection in electronic mode. In 

respect of Material Related Party Will be placed on the website of the Company at 

https://www.tntpipes.com  

 

13) The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 (fifteen) minutes before 
and after the scheduled time of the commencement of the Meeting by following the 
procedure mentioned in the Notice. The facility of participation at the AGM through 
VC/OAVM will be made available for members on first come first served basis. This 
will not include large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), 

https://www.tntpipes.com/
mailto:murali@cameoindia.com
http://www.cameoindia.com/
https://www.tntpipes.com/
http://www.cameoindia.com/
https://www.tntpipes.com/
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Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the 
Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and 
Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the AGM 
without restriction on account of first come first served basis. 
 

14) Process and manner for members opting for voting through electronic means: 

i. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Act read with Rule 20 of the 

Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and 

Regulation 44 of SEBI Listing Regulations (as amended), and pursuant to the MCA 

Circulars and the Secretarial Standard -2, the Company is providing facility of remote 

e-voting to its Members in respect of the business to be transacted at the AGM. 

For this purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement with National 

Securities Depository limited (NSDL), as the authorised e-voting agency for 

facilitating voting through electronic means. The facility of casting votes by a 

member using remote e-voting as well as e-voting system on the date of the AGM 

will be provided by NSDL. 

ii.   Members whose names are recorded in the Register of Members or in the 

Register of Beneficial Owners maintained by the Depositories as on the Cut-off date 

i.e. Wednesday, September 17, 2025 shall be entitled to avail the facility of remote 

e-voting as well as venue voting system on the date of the AGM. Any recipient 

of the Notice, who has no voting rights as on the Cut-off date, shall treat this 

Notice as intimation only. 

iii.   A person who has acquired the shares and has become a member of the Company 

after the despatch of the Notice of the AGM and prior to the Cut-off date i.e. 

Wednesday, September 17, 2025, shall be entitled to exercise his/her vote either 

electronically i.e. remote e-voting or venue voting system on the date of the AGM by 

following the procedure mentioned in this part. 

iv.   The remote e-voting will commence on Sunday, September 21, 2025 at 10.00 a.m. 

and will end on Tuesday, September 23, 2025 at 5.00 p.m. During this period, the 

members of the Company holding shares either in physical form or in demat form as 

on the Cut-off date i.e. Wednesday, September 17, 2025 may cast their vote 

electronically. The members will not be able to cast their vote electronically 

beyond the date and time mentioned above and the remote e-voting module shall 

be disabled for voting by NSDL thereafter. 

 

v. Once the vote on a resolution is cast by the member, he/she shall not be allowed 
to change it subsequently or cast the vote again. 

 

vi. The voting rights of the members shall be in proportion to their share in the 

paid up equity share capital of  the Company as on the Cut-off date i.e. 

Wednesday, September 17, 2025. 

 

vii.   The Company has appointed Mr. V.S. Sowrirajan, M/s V.S. Sowrirajan & Associates, 

Practicing Company S e c r e t a r y  ( Membership No. F C S  2 3 6 8  & C.P. No. 

6482), to act as the Scrutinizer for conducting the remote e-voting process as 

well as the venue voting system on the date of the AGM, in a fair and 

transparent manner. 
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15) Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered: 

a. For Physical shareholders- Please provide necessary details like folio no., name 

of shareholder, scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self-attested 

scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by 

email to RTA email id; murali@cameoindia.com.  

b. For Demat shareholders - Please update your e-mail id and mobile no. with 

your respective Depository Participant (DP). 

c. For Individual Demat Shareholders – Please update your email id & mobile 

no. with your respective Depository Participant (DP) which is mandatory while e-

Voting & joining virtual meetings through Depository. 

 

16) The instructions for shareholders for remote voting are as under: 

(i) The voting period begins on Sunday, September 21, 2025 at 10.00 a.m. and will 

end on Tuesday, September 23, 2025 at 5.00 p.m. During this period shareholders’ of the 

Company, holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off 

date i.e. Wednesday, September 17, 2025 may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting 

module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. 

(ii) Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be 

entitled to vote at the meeting venue. 

(iii) Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/ CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 

December 9, 2020, under Regulation 44 of SEBI Listing Regulations, listed entities are 

required to provide remote e-voting facility to its shareholders, in respect of all 

shareholders’ resolutions. However, it has been observed that the participation by the 

public non-institutional shareholders/retail shareholders is at a negligible level.  

 
 

ANNEXURE TO NOTICE 

Explanatory statement pursuant to section 102 of the Companies act, 2013 and / or 

regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. 

For Item No. 4 

APPOINTMENT OF SECRETARIAL AUDITOR AND FIXATION OF THEIR REMUNERATION.  
 

Pursuant to Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) (Third Amendment) Regulations, 2024 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”), effective 

from April 1, 2025, a company is required to appoint a peer reviewed secretarial auditor (if 

individual then for not more than one term of five consecutive years and if a firm then for not 

more than two terms of five consecutive years), with the approval of the shareholders in the 

annual general meeting. 

Based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Board of Directors ("Board") has 

approved the appointment of Mr. V.S. Sowrirajan, M/s V.S. Sowrirajan & Associates, Practising 

Company Secretary ( Membership No. F C S  2 3 6 8  & C.P. No. 6482 and Peer Reviewed 

Certificate No. 2162/2022) as the Secretarial Auditors of the Company for a period of five 

consecutive financial years from 2025-26 to 2029-30. The appointment is subject to approval 

of the Members of the Company. While recommending Mr. V.S. Sowrirajan, M/s V.S. Sowrirajan 

mailto:murali@cameoindia.com
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& Associates for appointment, the Audit Committee and the Board considered past audit 

experience of the audit firm particularly in auditing large companies, valuated various 

factors, including the firm’s capability to handle a diverse and complex business environment, 

its existing experience in the various business segments, the clientele it serves, and its 

technical expertise. 

Pursuant to Regulation 36(5) of SEBI Listing Regulations as amended, the credentials and 

terms of appointment of Mr. V.S. Sowrirajan, M/s V.S. Sowrirajan & Associates are as under: 

 

Profile: 

Mr. V.S. Sowrirajan, M/s V.S. Sowrirajan & Associates is over 15-year-old firm. It is known for 

quality and excellence in legal and secretarial consultancy which covers varied areas of the 

corporate field and diverse avenues of corporate laws & other related areas. The firm started 

out as a practicing company secretaries’ firm, and today the bouquet of services includes 

Management, Mentoring, Strategizing, Finance, Legal, Compliance, HR, Secretarial, 

Marketing, Operations, Sustainability and so on. 

Terms of appointment: 

Mr. V.S. Sowrirajan, M/s V.S. Sowrirajan & Associates is proposed to be appointed for a term 

of five (5) consecutive years, to conduct the Secretarial Audit of five consecutive 

financial years from 2025-26 to 2029-30. The proposed fees payable is as agreed 

between the Firm and the Company. 

The Board recommends the said resolution, as set out in Item No. 4 of this Notice for 

your approval. 

 

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives, are in 
any way concerned or interested, financially or otherwise in the said resolution. 

 

For Item No. 5 

APPOINTMENT OF COST AUDITOR AND FIXATION OF THEIR REMUNERATION.  
 

The Board, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, has approved the 

appointment of M/s Latha venkatesh & Associates, Cost Accountants as the Cost Auditors 

of the Company to conduct the cost audit for the financial year 2025-26, at a 

remuneration plus applicable taxes and reimbursement of out of pocket expenses as 

agreed between the Firm and the Company. 

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 

the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the remuneration payable to the cost 

auditors has to be ratified by the Members of the Company. 

Accordingly, consent of the Members is sought for passing an Ordinary Resolution as set 

out at Item No. 5 of this Notice for ratification of the remuneration payable to the Cost 

Auditors for the financial year 2025-26. 

The Board recommends passing of the Ordinary Resolution as set out in Item No. 5 of this 

Notice, for approval by the Members of the Company. 

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives, are 

in any way concerned or interested, financially or otherwise in the said resolution. 
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For Item No. 6  

APPOINTMENT OF C.F.O (Chief Financial Officer). 
 

Mr. Shiv Bandhu was serving as Chief Financial Officer of the Company w.e.f 14.08.2025. On the 

basis of his performance and recommendations of the Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee of the Company, the Board has approved appointment of Mr. Shiv Bandhu as Chief 

Financial Officer of the Company (Key Managerial Personnel) effective from 14.08.2025. A 

notice in writing under Section 160 of the Act has been received by the Company from a 

Member signifying his intention to propose the appointment of Mr. Shiv Bandhu as C.F.O of the 

Company. 

Pursuant to Regulation 17(1C) of SEBI Listing Regulations, a company is required to take 

approval of its shareholders for appointment of a person on the board of the company at the 

next general meeting or within a time period of three months from the date of appointment, 

whichever is earlier. 

The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolutions at Item No. 6 of this Notice for the approval of 

the Members. 

Except Mr. Shiv Bandhu, none of the other Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and their 
relatives are, in anyway, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the said resolution. 

 
Item No. 7:  
To approve material related party transaction(s). 

 
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION – ROYALTY PAYMENT MADE TO MR. SAATVIK 
GOYAL FOR TRADEMARKS: TNT, STAR & JUPITER FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 
2025-26 SHAREHOLDER MORE THAN 10% OF EQUITY SHARE:- 

The provisions of the SEBI Listing Regulations, as amended by the Securities and Exchange 

Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Sixth Amendment) 

Regulations, 2021, effective from April 1, 2022, mandates prior approval of shareholders by 

means of an ordinary resolution for all material related party transactions and subsequent 

material modifications as defined by the audit committee, even if such transactions are in 

the ordinary course of business and at an arm’s length basis. 

 

Effective from April 1, 2022, a transaction with a related party shall be considered as material 
if the transaction(s) to be entered into, either individually or taken together with previous 
transactions during a financial year, exceed(s) Rs.1,000 crore or 10% of the annual 
consolidated turnover of the listed entity as per the last audited financial statements of the 
listed entity, whichever is lower. 

During the financial year 2025-26, the Company propose to enter into certain related party 

transaction(s), on mutually agreed terms and conditions, and the aggregate of such 

transaction(s), is expected to cross the applicable materiality thresholds as mentioned above. 

Accordingly, as per the SEBI Listing Regulations, prior approval of the Members is being 

sought for all such arrangements / transactions proposed to be undertaken by the Company. 

All the said transactions shall be in the ordinary course of business of the Company and on 

an arm’s length basis. 

The Audit Committee has, on the basis of relevant details provided by the management as 

required by the law, reviewed and approved the said transaction(s), subject to approval of 

the Members, while noting that such transaction shall be on arms’ length basis and in the 

ordinary course of business and are in accordance with the Related Party Transaction Policy 

of the Company. 
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The Board recommend the said resolutions, as set out in Item No. 7 of this Notice, for your 
approval. 

The Members may note that in terms of the provisions of the SEBI Listing Regulations, 

the related parties as defined thereunder (whether such related party(ies) is/are a party to 

the aforesaid transactions or not), shall not vote to approve the said resolutions. 

Mr. Saatvik Goyal a Share Holder of the Company, having more than 10% holdings of the said 

related parties, are deemed to be concerned or interested in these resolutions. None of the 

other Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives, are in any 

way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the proposed resolutions, as set 

out in Item No. 07 of this Notice. 

The details as required under Regulation 23(4) of the SEBI Listing Regulations read with 

SEBI Circular bearing reference no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2021/662 dated November 

22, 2021 are given in Annexure “B” to this Explanatory Statement. 

Item No: 8 

LEASE CUM SALE OR LEASE OF COMPANY’S LAND SITUATED AT MM. NAGAR- PLOTS B-

10 &C-13/ FIXED IMMOVABLE ASSET – approval for registration of Deeds under 

Section 180(1) (a) of company Act, 2013. To sell, lease or otherwise dispose of the 

whole or substantially whole of the company land to Mrs. Durga Devi Goyal –EMD 

Received through various leas deeds (this EMD is neither Advance nor Loan, is only a 

precondition to participate for the particular Lease Bid as per arm length basis) 

To consider and if deemed fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following 

resolution as a SPECIAL RESOLUTION: 

 
The Company has already entered into registered Agreement to sell/Lease with Mrs. Durga 
Devi Goyal mother of Mr. Rakesh Goyal (Ex-Managing Director) as   detailed below  
 
Total Area Leased out as per the following   Registered   Lease Deeds: 
 

S.No. Doc. No. Doc. Dt. Details  SRO  Area 
(Sft.) 

01 12286/2011 (20 Yrs) 09.12.2011 Plot  C-13 Chengalpattu 1,61,868 

02 4812/2015  (18 Yrs) 22.04.2015 Plot  B-10 Chengalpattu    66,600 

 4671/2025  (12 Yrs) 17.03.2025 Plot  B-10 Chengalpattu  

03 5591/2017  (33 Yrs) 19.05.2017 Plot  B-10 Chengalpattu     5,279 

   Plot  B-10 Chengalpattu   12,580 

   Plot  C-13 Chengalpattu   26,550 

04 10026/2019 (29 Yrs) 19.08.2019 Plot  B-10 Chengalpattu     9,605 

 8893/2025  (4  Yrs) 26.05.2025 Plot  B-10 Chengalpattu  

05 9867 / 2024  (3  Yrs) 30.05.2024 Plot  B-10 Chengalpattu     3,744 

 33/2025     (30  Yrs) 13.12.2024 Plot  B-10 Chengalpattu  

     2,86,226 
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Previously, it was a related party transactions under Section 188 of the Companies Act 2013 
i.e., transaction between the Company and Mrs.Durga Devi Goyal (Mother of Mr RakeshGoyal 
the Ex-Managing Director).  Previously, through our earlier AGMs we got approval from the 
Shareholders and now we require approval from the Shareholders at the ensuing AGM to be  
 
held on 24.09.2025, by way of SPECIAL RESOLUTION which is necessary under section 180 
(1) (a) of the Companies Act 2013, to Sell / Lease or otherwise dispose of the Company’s 
Land.  
 

None of the Directors of the Company and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company 

and their relatives are concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the 

aforesaid Resolution. 

 

Place: Chennai                                                           For and on behalf of the Board  
Date :14.08.2025                                                                           Tamilnadu Steel Tubes Limited 
                                                                                        K. Suresh / Company Secretary 

                                                                               M.No .ACS 34656                                                                    
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE EXPLANATORY STATEMENT OF THE NOTICE 
Details of Directors seeking appointment / re-appointment pursuant to Regulation 36(3) 

of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015 and 

Secretarial Standard 2 on General Meetings: 

 

Name of Director and DIN 
 

 

Mr.BIVASHWA DAS 

(DIN: 07365552) 

 

 

Mr. KRISHNAN KAMAL SHUKLA      

(DIN:09700482) 

 

  
Age / Date of Birth 

 

23.05.1984 

 

16.01.1961 

Nationality Indian Indian 

No Of Share held including 
shareholding as beneficial 

owner   

 

Nil 

Nil 

Qualification Graduate Graduate 

Brief profile and nature of 

expertise In specific functional 

area 

A Graduate and he has a rich 

experience over 15 years in 

Steel  Pipes Industry 

Particularly in ERW pipe 

manufacturing process and 

also vast knowledge in quality 

control division in the ERW 

pipes  manufacturing process.  

A Graduate and he  has a rich  experience 
in Steel Pipes Industry particularly in ERW 
pipes manufacturing process for more 
than 6 years, and also vast knowledge in 
Quality Control Division in the ERW pipes 
manufacturing process. Earlier he was 
also worked as a Principal in various 
Schools / Colleges. 
                   

 

Date of  first appointment on 

the board  

 

07.11.2015 

 

10.02.2024 

Remuneration last drawn (FY 

2024-25) Per annum 

As agreed between the 

Director and the Company. 

As agreed between the Director and the 

Company. 

Details Of remuneration sought 

to be paid 

As per the NRC policy and 

Approval form the Board of 

Directors. 

As per the NRC policy and Approval form 

the Board of Directors. 

Relationship with other 

Directors, Manager and 

None other Key Managerial 

Personel of the Company  

None None 

Other Directorship Nil Nil 

Chairmanship / Membership 

of the Committees of other 

Companies in which position 

of Director is held 

Nil Nil 

Resignations, if any, from 

listed entities (in India) in  

past three years  

Nil Nil 

Details of Board Meetings 

attended during the year 
4 out of 4 Meetings 4 out of 4 Meetings  

Information as required 

pursuant to BSE circular ref 

no. LIST/ COMP/14/ 2018-19  

Mr. Bivashwa Das is not 

debarred from holding the 

office of director pursuant 

to any SEBI order or any 

other authority 

Mr. Krishnan Kamal Shukla is not 

debarred from holding the office of 

director pursuant to any SEBI order or 

any other authority  
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ANNEXURE “B” TO THE EXPLANATORY STATEMENT OF THE NOTICE 

 
The details of the transaction, as required under Regulation 23(4) of the SEBI Listing 

Regulations with Section III-B of the SEBI Master Circular no. EBI/HO/CFD/PoD2/CIR/P/0155 

dated November 11, 2024, are set forth below: 

 

Sr.No  

Particular 

 

SAATVIK GOYAL 

 

1 

Name of the related party and its 

relationship with the listed entity or its 

subsidiary, including nature of its concern 

or interest (financial or otherwise) 

 

Mr. Saatvik Goyal is holding above more than 10% of 

the share holdings in Tamilnadu Steel Tubes Limited, 

and thus Related Party. 

Nature of concern: Having significant influence. 

 

2 

 

 

Type of transaction 
Usage of Trade marks. TNT, STAR, JUPITER and 
payment of royalty for the same.   

 

3 

Ordinary Course of business/ 

Arm’s Length 
Yes 

 

4 

Material terms and particulars of the 

proposed Transaction 

As per the Royalty agreements Dt 07.05.2025 (Each) for 
these three trade marks  

 

5 

 

Tenure of the proposed transaction 

 

Financial Year 2025-26 

 

6 

Value of the transactions undertaken 

with related party during the preceding 

financial year i.e. FY24-25 

 

Rs. 3 Lakhs  

 

7 

Value of the proposed transaction (not to 

exceed) 

 

Rs. 3 Lakhs 

 

8 

Whether prior approval of the Audit 

Committee has been obtained for the 

above mentioned transaction 

 

Yes. Omnibus Approval 

 

9 

Reasons for revision in limits  

Not Applicable 

 

10 
The percentage of the listed entity’s 

annual consolidated turnover, for the 

immediately preceding financial year, that 

is represented by the value of the 

proposed transaction and for a RPT 

involving a subsidiary, such percentage 

calculated on the basis of the subsidiary’s 

annual turnover on a standalone basis shall 

be additionally  provided  

 

 

 

 

Not Applicable 

11 Value of the proposed transactions as a 

percentage of the related party’s annual 

standalone turnover for the immediately 

preceding financial year i.e. FY24-25 

 

 

 

Less than 1 % 
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12. If the transaction relates to any loans, inter – corporate deposits, advances or investments 

made or given by the listed entity or its subsidiary then: 

a) Details of the source of funds in 

connection with the proposed 

transactions 

 

Not Applicable 

b) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

where any financial indebtedness is incurred to 

make or give loans, inter- corporate deposits, 

advances or investments nature of 

indebtedness; cost of funds; and tenure 

 
 
 

 

 

Not Applicable 

c) Applicable terms, including covenants, tenure, 

interest rate and repayment schedule, whether 

secured or unsecured; if secured, the nature of 

security 

Not applicable 

d) the purpose for which the funds will be 

utilized by the ultimate beneficiary of 

such funds pursuant to the RPTs 

 

Not Applicable 

 

13 

Justification as to why the RPTs are in the 

interest of the Company. 

Logistic is a significant cost for the 

company’s products 

14 Copy of the valuation or other external party 

report, if any such report has been relied upon 

    

     Not applicable 

15 Basis of Arm’s Length The RPTs will be entered based on the 
market price of the relevant material and 
service, prevailing at the time of relevant 
RPT and charged to un-related parties. 
 
Where market price is not available, alternative 

method including reimbursement of actual cost 

incurred or cost-plus mark-up as applicable 

and as determined by an independent 

consulting firm will be considered as per arm’s 

length pricing criteria. 

16 A statement that the valuation or other external 

report, if any, relied upon by the listed entity in 

relation to the proposed transaction will be 

made available through the registered email 

address of the shareholder 

The Company has obtained the arm’s length 
opinion from an independent reputed 
external firm. The said report confirms 
that proposed terms of the contracts meet 
the arm’s length testing criteria. The 
transaction under the contracts also 
qualifies as contracts in the ordinary 
course of business. 

 
The report is available for inspection by the 

Members of the Company. They may follow the 

process for inspection of document as mentioned 

in ‘Notes’ section forming part of this Notice. 

17 Any other relevant information 

 

The Audit Committee of the Company consisting 
only of Independent Directors, and the Board of 
Directors, have, based on relevant details 
provided by the management, at their meetings 
held on 1 4 . 0 8 . 2 0 2 5  reviewed and 
approved the said transaction(s), while noting 
that such transactions shall be on arms' length 
basis and in the ordinary course of business and 
are in accordance with Related Party 
Transactions Policy of the Company 
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E-Voting Procedure:    

 
1. Pursuant to the General Circular No. 09/2024 dated September 19, 2024, issued by the 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) and circular issued by SEBI vide circular no. SEBI/ HO/ 
CFD/ CFDPoD-2/ P/ CIR/ 2024/ 133 dated October 3, 2024 (“SEBI Circular”) and other 
applicable circulars and notifications issued (including any statutory modifications or re-
enactment thereof for the time being in force and as amended from time to time, 
companies are allowed to hold EGM/AGM through Video Conferencing (VC) or other audio 
visual means (OAVM), without the physical presence of members at a common venue. In 
compliance with the said Circulars, EGM/AGM shall be conducted through VC / OAVM. 

 
2. Pursuant to the Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, issued by the Ministry of 

Corporate Affairs, the facility to appoint proxy to attend and cast vote for the members is 
not available for this EGM/AGM. However, the Body Corporates are entitled to appoint 
authorised representatives to attend the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM and participate 
there at and cast their votes through e-voting. 

 
3. The Members can join the EGM/AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after 

the scheduled time of the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure 
mentioned in the Notice. The facility of participation at the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM 
will be made available for 1000 members on first come first served basis. This will not 
include large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters, 
Institutional Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit 
Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship 
Committee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the EGM/AGM without restriction on 
account of first come first served basis. 

 
4. The attendance of the Members attending the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM will be 

counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies 
Act, 2013. 

 
5. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of 

the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended)  the Secret 
arial St andard on General Meet ings (SS-2) issued by the ICSI and Regulation 44 of SEBI 
(Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (as amended), and the 
Circulars issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs from time to time the Company is 
providing facility of remote e-Voting to its Members in respect of the business to be 
transacted at the EGM/AGM. For this purpose, the Company has entered into an 
agreement with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) for facilitating voting 
through electronic means, as the authorized agency. The facility of casting votes by a 
member using remote e-Voting system as well as e-voting on the date of the EGM/AGM 
will be provided by NSDL. 

 
6. In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 

2020, the Notice calling the EGM/AGM has been uploaded on the website of the Company 
at : www.tntpipes.com . The Notice can also be accessed from the websites of the Stock 
Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited at 
www.bseindia.com and www.nseindia.com respectively and the EGM/AGM Notice is also 
available on the website of NSDL (agency for providing the Remote e-Voting facility) i.e. 
www.evoting.nsdl.com. 
 

7.  EGM/AGM has been convened through VC/OAVM in compliance with applicable provisions 
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with MCA Circular issued from time to time. 
 
 

 

http://www.tntpipes.com/
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THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING AND JOINING GENERAL 
MEETING ARE AS UNDER: - 

 
The remote e-voting period begins on 21.09.2025 at 10.00 A.M. and ends on 23.09.2025 
at 05.00 P.M. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting 
thereafter. The Members, whose names appear in the Register of Members / Beneficial 
Owners as on the record date (cut-off date) 18.09.2025 may cast their vote 
electronically. The voting right of shareholders shall be in proportion to their share in 
the paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date, being 
18.09.2025. 

 

How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system? 
The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are 
mentioned below: 

 
Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system 
A) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode 
In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed 
Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote 
through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. 
Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat 
accounts in order to access e-Voting facility. 

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode 
is given below: 

 

Type of 
shareholders 

Login Method 

Individual Shareholders 
holding securities  
in demat mode  
with NSDL. 

1. For OTP based login you can click 
on https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/evoting/evotinglogin.jsp. 
You will have to enter your 8-digit DP ID,8-digit Client Id, PAN No., 
Verification code and generate OTP. Enter the OTP received on 
registered email id/mobile number and click on login. After 
successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository 
site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or 
e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to 
e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-
Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the 
meeting. 
 

2 .Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL 
Viz. https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or 
on a mobile. On the e-Services home page click on the 
“Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which is available under 
‘IDeAS’ section , this will prompt you to enter your existing User 
ID and Password. After successful authentication, you will be 
able to see e-Voting services under Value added services. Click 
on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you will be 
able to see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting 
service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be re-directed to e-
Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote 
e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the 
meeting. 
Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/evoting/evotinglogin.jsp
https://eservices.nsdl.com/
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the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a 
Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-
Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is 
available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen 
will open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen 
digit demat account number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and 
a Verification Code as shown on the screen. After successful 
authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site 
wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or 
e-Voting service provider i.e., NSDL and you will be redirected 
to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the 
remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting 
during the meeting. 
 
3. If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to 

register is available at https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select 
“Register Online for IDeAS Portal” or click at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp 

 
4. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by 

typing the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either 
on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of 
e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is 
available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will 
open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit 
demat account number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a 
Verification Code as shown on the screen. After successful 
authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site 
wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-
Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to 
e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote 
e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the 
meeting. 

 
     5. Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App 
“NSDL Speede” facility by scanning the QR code mentioned below 
for seamless voting experience. 

 

Individual 
Shareholders 
holding securities in 
demat mode with 
CDSL 

1. Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can 
login through their existing user id and password. Option will be 
made available to reach e-Voting page without any further 
authentication. The users to login Easi /Easiest are requested to 
visit CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and click on login icon & 
New System Myeasi Tab and then user your existing my easi 
username & password. 
 

2. After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see 
the e-Voting option for eligible companies where the evoting is in 
progress as per the information provided by company. On clicking 

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
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the evoting option, the user will be able to see e-Voting page of 
the e-Voting service provider for casting your vote during the 
remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during 
the meeting. Additionally, there is also links provided to access 
the system of all e-Voting Service Providers, so that the user can 
visit the e-Voting service providers’ website directly. 
 
3. If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register 
is available at CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and click on login 
& New System Myeasi Tab and then click on registration option. 
 
4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by 
providing Demat Account Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting 
link available on www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will 
authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & 
Email as recorded in the Demat Account. After successful 
authentication, user will be able to see the e-Voting option where 
the evoting is in progress and also able to directly access the 
system of all e-Voting Service Providers. 

Individual 
Shareholders 
(holding 
securities in 
demat 
mode) login 
through 
their 
depository 
participants 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat 
account through your Depository Participant registered with 
NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility upon logging in, you will be 
able to see e-Voting option. Click on e-Voting option, you will 
be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful 
authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on 
company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you 
will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your 
vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual 
meeting & voting during the meeting. 

 
 

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use 
Forget User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website. 
 
Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical 

issues related to login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL. 

Login type Helpdesk details 

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode with 
NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can 
contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at  

evoting@nsdl.com  or call at  022 - 4886 7000  
 

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode with 
CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can 
contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com  or contact at  Toll 

Free No. 1800-21-09911 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

http://www.cdslindia.com/
http://www.cdslindia.com/
mailto:evoting@nsdl.com
mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
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       B) Login Method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than                                                                                                              
o         Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode and shareholders holding                                               
           Securities in physical mode. 

 
How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website? 

 
1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by 
typing the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a 
Personal Computer or on a mobile.  
2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on 
the icon “Login” which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ 
section. 
3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, 
your Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. 
Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you 
can log-in at https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS 
login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after using your log-in 
credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast 
your vote electronically. 
4. Your User ID details are given below: 
 

Manner of holding shares i.e.Demat 
(NSDL or CDSL) or Physical 

 Your User ID is: 

a) For Members who hold shares in 
demat account with NSDL. 

8 Character DP ID followed 
by 8 Digit Client ID 
For example if your DP ID is IN300*** 
and Client ID is 12****** then your user 
ID is IN300***12******. 

b) For Members who hold shares in 
demat account with CDSL. 

16 Digit Beneficiary ID 
For example if your Beneficiary ID is 
12************** then your user ID is 
12************** 

c) For Members holding shares in 
Physical Form. 

EVEN Number followed by Folio 
Number registered with the company 
For example if folio number 
is 001*** and EVEN is 101456 
then user ID is 101456001*** 

 

 
5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual 
shareholders are given below:  
a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your 
existing password to login and cast your vote. 
 
b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will 
need to retrieve the ‘initial password’ which was communicated to you. 
Once you retrieve your ‘initial password’, you need to enter the ‘initial 
password’ and the system will force you to change your password. 
c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’? 
(i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the 
company, your ‘initial password’ is communicated to you on your email ID. 
Trace the email sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email 
and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The password 
to open the .pdf file is your 8-digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits 
of client ID for CDSL account or folio number for shares held in physical 
form. The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial password’.  

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/
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(ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned 
below in process for those shareholders whose email ids are not 
registered. 
 
 6) If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “Initial 
password” or have forgotten your password: 
 a) Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in 
your demat account with NSDL or CDSL) option available on 
www.evoting.nsdl.com. 
b) Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical 
mode) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 
c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you 
can send a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat account 
number/folio number, your PAN, your name and your registered address 
etc. 
d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for 
casting the votes on the e-Voting system of NSDL. 
7) After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” 
by selecting on the check box. 
8) Now, you will have to click on “Login” button. 
9) After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open. 

 
Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting 

system. 
      How to cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting 

system? 
1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” 

in which you are holding shares and whose voting cycle and General Meeting is in active 
status. 

 
2. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote 

e-Voting period and casting your vote during the General Meeting. For joining virtual 
meeting, you need to click on “VC/OAVM” link placed under “Join Meeting”. 

 
3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens. 
 
4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, 

verify/modify the number of shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on 
“Submit” and also “Confirm” when prompted. 

5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.  
 
6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print 

option on the confirmation page. 
 
7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify 

your vote. 
 

 General Guidelines for shareholders 
1. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to 

send scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter 
etc. with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are 
authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to vssowrirajan@gmail.com with a copy 
marked to evoting@nsdl.com Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, 
NRI etc.) can also upload their Board Resolution / Power of Attorney / Authority Letter 
etc. by clicking on “Upload Board Resolution / Authority Letter” displayed under “e-
Voting” tab in their login. 

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/NewUser.jsp
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/PhysicalUser.jsp
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
mailto:vssowrirajan@gmail.com
mailto:evoting@nsdl.com
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2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take 

utmost care to keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be 
disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In such an event, 
you will need to go through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset 
Password?” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password.  

 
3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for 

Shareholders and e-voting user manual for Shareholders available at the download section 

of www.evoting.nsdl.com  or call on 022 - 4886 7000  or send a request to Ms Prajakta 
Pawle, at evoting@nsdl.co.in 

 
Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories 
for procuring user id and password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the 
resolutions set out in this notice: 

 
1. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of 

shareholder, scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self-attested 
scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email 
to tnt.share@yahoo.in 

 
2. In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16-digit DPID + CLID 

or 16-digit beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account 
statement, PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned 
copy of Aadhar Card) to tnt.share@yahoo.in. If you are an Individual shareholder holding 
securities in demat mode, you are requested to refer to the login method explained at 
step 1(A) i.e.Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual 
shareholders holding securities in demat mode. 

 
3. Alternatively, shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.com for 
procuring user id and password for e-voting by providing above mentioned documents. 
 

4.   In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by 
Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to 
vote through their Demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository 
Participants. Shareholders are required to update their mobile number and email ID 
correctly in their demat account in order to access e-Voting facility.  

 
 
THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR e-VOTING ON THE DAY OF THE EGM / AGM ARE 
AS UNDER:  
 
1. The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the EGM/AGM is same as the instructions 

mentioned above for remote e-voting. 
 

2. Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present in the EGM/AGM through 
VC/OAVM facility and have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-
Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-
Voting system in the EGM/AGM. 
 

3. Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the 
EGM/AGM. However, they will not be eligible to vote at the EGM/AGM. 
 

4. The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with the 
facility for e-Voting on the day of the EGM/AGM shall be the same person mentioned 
for Remote e-voting. 
 

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/NewUser.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/PhysicalUser.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/PhysicalUser.jsp
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
mailto:tnt.share@yahoo.in
mailto:tnt.share@yahoo.in
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
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THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE EGM / AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM 
ARE AS UNDER: 
 
1. Member will be provided with a facility to attend the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM 
through the NSDL e-Voting system. Members may access by following the steps mentioned 
above for Access to NSDL e-Voting system. After successful login, you can see link of 
“VC/OAVM link” placed under “Join meeting” menu against company name. You are 
requested to click on VC/OAVM link placed under Join General Meeting menu. The link for 
VC/OAVM will be available in Shareholder/Member login where the EVEN of Company will 
be displayed. Please note that the members who do not have the User ID and Password for 
e-Voting or have forgotten the User ID and Password may retrieve the same by following 
the remote e-Voting instructions mentioned in the notice to avoid last minute rush. 

 
2. Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for better experience. 

 
3. Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to 
avoid any disturbance during the meeting. 

 
4. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through 
Laptop connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in 
their respective network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN 

Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches. 

 
5. Shareholders, who would like to express their views/have questions may send their 
questions in advance mentioning their name demat account number/folio number, email id, 
mobile number at tnt.share@yahoo.in. The same will be replied by the company suitably. 

 

     

mailto:tnt.share@yahoo.in
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DIRECTORS REPORT 
& 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 
The Directors take pleasure in presenting the 46th Annual Report together with the Audited 
Financial Statements of the Company for the Year Ended 31st March 2025.   

1. FINANCIAL RESULTS (Standalone): 

 
The Company’s Financial Results for the year ended 31st March 2025 is summarized below:          
                           [Rs.in Crores] 

 2024-25  2023-24 

Revenue from Operations (Net) and other income 74.02 72.00 

Profit Before Tax (PBT) 0.13 0.09 

Provision for Tax (0.03) (0.20) 

Profit After Tax (PAT) 0.10 0.28 

Other Comprehensive Income (0.08) (0.05) 

Total Comprehensive Income 0.02 0.23 

Balance brought forward from previous year 4.04 3.81 

Profit available for Appropriations 4.06 4.04 

Appropriations:   

Interim Equity Dividend - - 

ProposedFinalEquityDividend - - 

TaxonEquityDividends - - 

TransfertoGeneralReserve - - 

Surplus carried to the next year’s Account 4.06 4.04 

        OVERVIEW OF COMPANY’S FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 
 

Revenue 
 

During 2024-25, the Company achieved a turnover of Rs.73.86 Crore, as against Rs.71.50 crorers in the 
previous year. The Company focused on reducing fixed costs, manage working capital more 
efficiently and making capital expenditure prudently on critical growth projects. 
 
Other Operating Revenue 
 
Other operating revenue for the year ended March 31, 2025 includes Rs. 0.17 crore (previous year Rs. 
0.50 crore) 
 
ProfitbeforeTax 
 
Profit posted before tax for the year is Rs.0.13 Crore 

 

Total Comprehensive Income 

Total Comprehensive income for the year 2024-25 is Rs. 0.02 Crore as compared to a profit of Rs. 
0.23 Crore in 2023-24. 

 

2. TRANSFER TO RESERVES 
        The Company has not transferred any amount to General Reserves during FY 2024-25. 



46h Annual Report 2024-25 

 

 

Page 44 

 

 

 

3. CASH & CASH EQUIVALENT 

 
Cash and Cash Equivalent as at March 31, 2025 was Rs. 1.54 Crore. The Company continues to focus 
on judicious management to fits working capital. The Company has taken many steps during the year 
to improve the working capital turns. The working capital parameters were kept under strict check 
through continuous monitoring. 
 

4. DIVIDEND 

 
        Your directors did not recommend any dividend for this year. 

5. SHARE CAPITAL 
 
The Company’s paid up Equity Share Capital as on March 31st 2025 is Rs. 5.12 Crores.The Company 
has neither issued any shares with differential rights as to Dividend, Voting or other wise nor issued 
shares (includings we at equity shares)to the Employees or Directors of the company under any 
Scheme. As on March 31, 2025 none of the Directors of the Company hold shares or convertible 
instruments of the Company. 

 
No disclosure is required under Section 67(3)(c) of the Act, in respect of voting rights not exercised 
directly by the employees of the Company as the provisions of the said Section are not applicable. 

 

6. DEPOSITS 
 
The Company has not accepted any fixed deposits under Chapter V of the Companies Act, 2013, and 
as such no amount of principal and interest were outstanding as on 31st March 2025. 

 

7. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS 

 
Details of Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the 
CompaniesAct, 2013 are given in the notes to the Financial Statements. 

 

8. CAPITAL EXPENDITURE 
 
The company continues to assess the trends emerging in the industry and the changing requirements 
of its customers and invests appropriately for the long-term, with a view to servicing its customers in a 
more timely and efficient manner. 

 

9. STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
The Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial Year Ended 31 st  March 2025 is 
prepared in compliance with the applicable provisions of the Act, Indian Accounting Standards (Ind-
AS) and as prescribed  by Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) under SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,2015 (hereinafter referred to as ‘the SEBI 
(LODR) Regulations, 2015). The FinancialStatements of the Company for the year ended 31st March 
2025 have been disclosed as per Division II of Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013.  

 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 136 of the Companies Act, the Financial Statements of the 
Company, the Standalone Financial Statements along with all relevant documents and the Auditors’ 
Report thereon form part of this Annual Report.  The Financial       Statements as stated above are also 
available on the website of the company and can be accessed at the weblink www.tntpipes.com. 
 

http://www.tamilnadusteeltubesltd.com/
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10. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR): 
At present, the company is not falling under purview of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013.   
The Company is committed to Corporate Social Responsibility and strongly believes that the business 
objectives of the Company must be in congruence with the legitimate development needs of the 
society in which it operates. 
 

11. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

 
The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate governance. The Company has 
been in compliance with the requirements of SEBI Listing Regulations. 
 
A report on corporate governance together with a certificate from the Practicing Company Secretary 
is annexed in accordance with the terms of the SEBI Listing Regulations and forms part of the Board’s 
Report. The Managing Director and the ChiefFinancial Officer have submitted a certificate to the Board 
regarding the financial statements and other matters in terms of Part B of Schedule II [Corporate 
Governance] of the SEBI Listing Regulations. 
 
The Report further contains details as required to be provided in the Board’s Report on the policy on 
Directors’ appointment and remuneration including the criteria, annual evaluation by the Board and 
Directors, composition and other details of Board committees, implementation of risk management 
policy, whistle-blower policy/vigil mechanism, dividend policy etc. 

12. ENERGY CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION & FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS 

AND OUTGO 

The information on conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and 
outgo stipulated under Section 134(3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of The 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 forms part of this Report. 

13. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

All related party transactions that were entered into during the financial year under review were on 
an arm’s length basis and were in the ordinary course of business. There are no materially significant 
related party transactions during the year which may have a potential conflict with the interest of the 
Company at large. Necessary disclosures as required under the Indian Accounting Standards have been 
made in the notes to the Financial Statements. 

 
None of the Directors except Mr.Rakesh Goyal (Ex-Managing Director) had any pecuniary 
relationships or transactions vis-à-vis the Company. 

 

        14. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 
 

The Board of your Company is duly constituted in accordance with the requirements of    the Companies 
Act, 2013 and SEBI Regulations. 
 

        DIRECTORS AND KMPS RESIGNED AND APPOINTED DURING THE YEAR: 
 
Mrs. PRIYA KRISHNA, Independent Director, was inducted to the Board during 2024 appointed as 
independent director of the Company from 30.05.2024. The appointment of Mrs. PRIYA KRISHNA, as 
an Independent Director is approved by the shareholders in the last Annual General Meeting held on 
26th September 2024. 

 
Miss. M INDUMATHI, Independent Director, was inducted to the Board during 2024 appointed as 
Independent director of the Company from 14.08.2024. The appointment of Miss. M INDUMATHI, as an 
Independent Director is approved by the shareholders in the last Annual General Meeting held on 26th 
Septermber 2024. 
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Mrs. RENUKA RAMESH, Independent Director resigned during the year in view of her tenure is 
completed. 
 
Mr S.N. SATHYANARAYANA, Independent Director resigned during the year in view of his tenure is 
completed. 
 
All the Independent Directors of the Company have furnished necessary declaration in terms of 
Section 149 (6) of the Act affirming that they meet the criteria of independence as stipulated there 
under. All the Independent Directors of the Company are registered on the Independent Directors Data 
bank as required under the Companies Act, 2013 and the applicable Rules in the said regard. In the 
opinion of the Board, all the Independent Directors have the integrity, expertise and experience 
including the proficiency as required to effectively discharge their roles and responsibilities in directing and 
guiding the affairs of the Company. 

 
The required information of the Directors being appointed, pursuant to the provisions of the Listing 
Regulations, forms part of the Annual Report. 

 
There was a change in the composition of the Board of Directors and the Key Managerial Personnel, 
except as stated above. 
 
The following persons have been designated as Key Managerial Personnel of the Company pursuant 
to section 2(51) and section 203 of the Act, read with the Rules framed there under. 

1. Mr. BIVASHWA DAS  -Managing Director 

2. Mr.N. SUDHARSAN  -Whole-time Director 

3. Mr. KRISHNAN KAMAL SHUKLA  -Whole-time Director 

4. Mr.RAM ASHISH SINGH -Whole-time Director 

5. Mr. K SURESH                                  - Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 

6. Mr. H. VINODH KUMAR (upto 31.7.25) -Chief Financial Officer (C.F.O.) 

7. Mr SHIV BANDHU (w.e.f.14.08.25)    -Chief Financial Officer (C.F.O.) 

15. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION POLICY AND CRITERIA FOR MATTERS UNDER SEC. 78 

 
Information regarding Directors’ Remuneration Policy and criteria for determining qualifications, 
positive attributes, independence of a director and other matters provided under sub-section(3) of 
Section 178 are provided in the Corporate Governance Report. 
 

 
16. EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 
A copy of the Annual Return of the Company is placed on the website of the Company and the same 
is available on the website of www.tntpipes.com. 
 

17. SECRETARIAL STANDARDS OF ICSI 

 
Pursuant to the approval given on 10 April 2015 by the Central Government to the Secretarial 
Standards specified by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, the Secretarial Standards on 
Meetings of the Board of Directors (SS-1) and General Meetings (SS-2) came into effect from 1 July 
2015. The said standards were further amended w.e.f. 1st October 2017. 

 
The Company has ensured compliance of the Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company 
Secretaries of India during the period under review. The Company is in compliance with the same. 
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18. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 
 
The Board of Directors confirm that the Company has in place a framework of internal financial controls 
and compliance system, which is monitored and reviewed by the Audit Committee and the Board 
besides the statutory, internal and secretarial auditors. To the best of their knowledge and belief and 
according to the information and explanations obtained by them, your Directors make the following 
statements in terms of Section 134 (3)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013: 

a) that in the preparation of the annual Financial Statements for the year ended 

31st March 2025, the applicable accounting standards have been followed 

along with proper explanation relating to material departures, if any; 

b) that such accounting policies as mentioned in the Notes to the Financial 

Statements have been selected and applied consistently and judgment and 

estimates have been made that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a 

true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March 2025.  

c) that proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate 

accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 

2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and 

detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

d) that the annual Financial Statements have been prepared on a going concern 

basis; 

e) that proper internal financial controls to be followed by the Company have been 

laid down and that the financial controls are adequate and were operating 

effectively and 

f) that proper systems have been devised to ensure compliance with the provisions 

of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating 

effectively. 

19. AUDITORS 
          

STATUTORY AUDITORS 
 
Based  on  the  Recommendations  of  the  Audit  committee   at  their  meeting  held  on 
21.05.2022, the  Board,  at  their  meeting  held  on 21.05.2022 and  the Members, at the 43rd 
Annual General Meeting held on September 27, 2022, appointed M/s. D.P.V. & Associates, Chartered 
Accountants, [Firm’s Registration No.011688S] Sri Ranga, No.51  Mambalam High Road, T.Nagar, 
Chennai-600 017, as the Statutory Auditors of the Company, (after obtaining their consent letter & valid 
peer review certificate issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India) to hold office for a 
term of 5 (five) years from the conclusion of the 43rd  Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company 
held for the financial year 2022-23 until the conclusion of the 48th AGM of the company for the 
financial year 2026-27 on such remuneration as may be mutually agreed upon between the said 
Auditors and Board of Directors of the Company.   
 
Pursuant to the amendment to Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 which was notified on May 7, 
2018, ratification of appointment of Statutory Auditors at every AGM is no longer required. 
 
COST AUDITORS 
 
On the recommendation of the Audit Committee meeting held on 14.08.25, the Board of Directors 
appointed M/s. Latha Venkatesh & Associates, Cost Accountants (Firm Registration No. 101017), as Cost 
Auditor of the Company for the financial year 2025-26 under Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 
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read with the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Amendment Rules, 2014. M/s. Latha Venkatesh & 
Associates has confirmed that they are free from disqualification specified under Section 141(3) and 
proviso to Section 148 (3) read with Section 141(4) of the Companies Act 2013 and that their 
appointment meets the requirements of Section 141(3)(g) of the Companies Act, 2013. They have 
further confirmed their independent status and an arm’s length relationship with the Company. 

 
The remuneration payable to the Cost Auditor is required to be placed before the Members at the 
ensuing AGM for their confirmation and approval. Accordingly, a Resolution for seeking appointment 
and remuneration payable to Cost Auditor is included in the notice convening the Annual General 
Meeting. 

        SECRETARIAL AUDIT 
 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company has appointed 
Mr. VS Sowri Rajan (FCS 2368), Company Secretary in Practice to undertake the Secretarial Audit of 
the Company. The Report of the Secretarial Audit Report is annexed here with and forms part of this 
Report. 

 
The Company has ensured compliance of the Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company 
Secretaries of India during the period under review. Accordingly, no qualifications or observations or 
other remarks have been made by the Secretarial Auditor in the said Report. 

 
        G.S.T.  AUDITORS 
 

The company has appointed M/s. KSquared, Auditors, as GST Auditors to the company for auditing 
GST related matters viz. filing of GST Forms/Returns etc., and to represent the company before the 
GST authorities for proper compliance. 
 

        INTERNAL AUDITORS 
The company has appointed Ms. N Neeraja, Chartered Accountants, as Internal Auditors to the 
company for auditing / verifying the records of the company, to advise the company with regard to 
the Internal controls & auditing of the same, and to issue and submit their report on quarterly basis 
to the Board of Directors.  
 
INVENTORY AUDITORS 
The Company has appointed Mrs. Selvi, Audtor, for inventory & logistic management. 
 

20. DETAILS IN RESPECT OF FRAUDS REPORTED BY AUDITORS UNDER SEC. 143(12)  

During the year under review, there were no frauds reported by the auditors to the Audit Committee 
or the Board under section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 

21. HUMAN RESOURCES 
 
The company continued to lay emphasis on creating a high performing work culture to achieve 
organizational goals of the present as well as those of the future in a sustainable way by establishing a 
culture of process discipline, organizational oneness and achievement orientation across its businesses 
through simplification and digitization, empowerment, project-based working and customer 
centricity. 
 
The information relating to employees and other particulars required under Section197 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014 will be provided upon request.  
 
 
In terms of Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Report and Accounts are being sent to the 
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Members excluding the information on employees, particulars of which are available for inspection by 
the Members at the Registered Office of the Company during business hours on all working days of 
the Company up to the date of the forth coming Annual General Meeting. If any Member is interested 
in obtaining a copy there of, such Member may write to the Company Secretary in the said regard. 
 
The disclosure with regard to remuneration as required under Section 197 of the Act read with Rule 
5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is 
attached and forms part of this Report 
 
22. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS   

         
         Internal Audit and their adequacy   

The Company has in place well defined and adequate internal controls commensurate with the size of the 
Company and the same were operating effectively throughout the year. To maintain its objectivity and 
independence, the Internal Auditor (IA) reports to the Chairman of the Audit Committee of the Board. 
The IA evaluates the efficacy and adequacy of Internal Control System, its compliance with operating 
systems and policies of the Company and accounting procedures at alllocations of the company. 
Based on the report of IA, process owners undertake corrective action in their respective are as and 
there by strengthen the controls. Significant audit observations and corrective actions thereon are 
presented to the Audit Committee of the Board. 

Internal Financial Control Systems with reference to the Financial Statements 
 
The Company has complied with the specific requirements of the Companies Act, 2013, which call for 
establishment and implementation of an Internal Financial Control framework that supports compliance 
with requirements of the said Act in relation to the Directors’ Responsibility Statement. 
 
The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls commensurate with the size, scale and 
complexity of its operations. During the year, such controls were tested and no reportable material 
weakness in the designor operations were observed. The Company has policies and procedures in 
place for ensuring for proper and efficient conduct of its business, the safeguarding of its assets, the 
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records and the timely preparation of reliable financial information. 
 
The company has adopted Accounting Policies which are in line with the Accounting Standards and 
the Act. These are in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in India. Changes in 
policies, if required, are made in consultation with the Auditors and are approved by the Audit 
Committee. 

 
The Risk Management Committee of the Board of Directors reviews the risk mitigation plans periodically 
to monitor the key risks of the Company and evaluate the management of such risks for effective 
mitigation. 
 
The company has a robust financial closure, certification mechanism for   certifying adherence to 
various accounting policies, accounting hygiene and accuracy of provisions and other estimates. 

 

23. VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY 
The Company has a Vigil Mechanism named Ethical View Reporting Policy (EVRP) to report concerns 
about unethical behaviour, actual/suspected frauds and violation of company’s code of Conduct. 
Protected disclosures can be made by a whistle blower through several channels. An Ethical View 
Committee has been constituted to discuss the finding of the investigations of the complaints and to 
recommend remedial actions. The Audit Committee of the Board oversees the functioning of the 
Ethical View Committee. 
 

Also, during the year, your Company reached out extensively to employees to conduct greater awareness 
on Value Creation in Competitive Environment (VCCE) and on Anti Bribery and Corruption Directive 
(ABCD) through e-learning modules and face to face sessions, achieving a high level of engagement 
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and compliance. This reflects your company’s strong commitment to Zero tolerance for non-
compliances in this regard and to doing business the right way and with integrity. 
 

24. BOARD EFFECTIVENESS 

a. Familiarization Programme for the Independent Directors 
In compliance with the requirements of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, the Company has put in place of familiarization Programme for the Independent 
Directors to familiarize them with their role, rights and responsibility as Directors, the working of the 
Company, nature of the industry in which the company operates, business model etc. The details of 
the familiarization programme are explained in the Corporate Governance Report. 

b. Board Evaluation 
Pursuant to the provisions of the Act and the SEBI (LODR) Regulations 2015, the Board has carried out the 
annual performance evaluation of its own performance, the Directors individually as well as the 
evaluation of the working of its Audit, Nomination & Remuneration and Compliance Committee. The 
criteria applied in the evaluation process are explained in the Corporate Governance Report. 
 

25. ENHANCING SHAREHOLDER VALUE 
 
Your Company firmly believes that its success in the market place and a good reputation are among 
the primary determinants of value to the Shareholder. The organizational vision is founded on the 
principles of good Governance and by theresolve to be a customer-centric organization which 
motivates the Company’s Management to be aligned to deliver leading-edge building products 
backed with dependable after sales services. 
 

Your Company is committed to creating and maximizing long-term value for Shareholders and 
essentially follows a four-pronged approach to achieve this end. 

a) By increasing all-round operational efficiencies. 

b) By identifying strategies that enhance its competitive advantage. 

c) By managing risks and pursuing opportunities for profitable growth, and 

d) by cementing relationships with other important Stakeholder Groups through 

meaningful engagement processes and mutually rewarding associations that 

Enable it to create positive impacts on the economic, societal and environmental 

dimensions of the Triple Bottom Line. 

Underlying this is also a dedication to value-friendly financial reporting that assures the Shareholder 
and investor of receiving transparent and unfettered information on the Company’s performance. 
 

26. ECONOMIC SCENARIO AND OUTLOOK  
The critical challenges before your Company would include the following: 

● To continue to step up the sale of value creating Premium products. 

● To further streamline channel management and strengthen marketing activities in 

a manner that leverages the Company’s brand equity. 

● To continue promotion and facilitation of cashless transactions in the retail 

network with a view to ensure uninterrupted retail off takes. 

 
To develop the means to foresee changes in the value chain and the agility needed to keep strict control 
on the costs of fuel and raw materials amid volatile global prices. 
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27. G.I. PIPES & TUBES-PERFORMANCE 
 

PARTICULARS 2024-25 2023-24 

Production–Metric Tonnes 10,770.150 8,666.150 

Sales volume–Metric Tonnes 10,919.163 10,076.774 

Net Sale Value-(Rs.in lakhs) 7,385.80 7,149.54 

Operating EBITDA-(Rs.in lakhs) 111.00 101.50 

Operating EBITDA–margin 1.50 % 1.42% 

 
Costs–Pipes &Tubes Business 
 
During the year 2024-25, the company maintained a close focus on effective cost management through 
various initiatives. 

a) Cost of Materials consumed  

 
Cost of materials consumed was Rs. 6,771.00 Lakhs in 2024-25 as against Rs. 6,510.34 Lakhs during the 
year 2023-24. 
 
The Company’s Sustainable Development programme continues to be comprehensive and robust. 
 

b) Power & Fuel 
 
The Power & Fuel spent in 2024-25 was Rs. 140.15 lakhs, as compared to Rs.111.69 Lakhs spent in 2023-
24. The Company continues to focus on reducing the overall cost of fuel as well as shifting its dependence on 
linkage by optimizing the fuel mix to enhance the use of alternative fuels. 

c) Freight&Forwardingexpenses 
 
Freight and forwarding expenses during the year is Rs. 40.78 Lakhs as compared to Rs. 31.26 Lakhs in 2023-24. 

d) Employee costs 
 
Overall employee costs, increased by 6.81 % in 2024-25. 

e) Other Expenditure 
 
Other expenditure decreased to Rs.128.88 Lakhs for 2024-25 of total expenditure of the company as 
compared to Rs.143.23 Lakhs in the previous year 2023-24. 

28. SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT 

CO2 Emissions: 
 
Your Company is committed to cut its carbon footprint in line with the Low Carbon Technology Roadmap 
for the Pipe Industry. 

Green Energy 
Controlling Emissions: The installation of dust monitors as per the statutory requirement of TNPCB was 
completed at our plant. 
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Water Performance: 

 
Performance and to achieve a water positive status, the company has focused its efforts on two 
approaches: 

i) Reduction of fresh water intake by lowering water demand in process and non-process areas and 

waste water recycling after treatment. Water metering and monitoring systems were installed. 

ii) Conservation of water by rain water harvesting in plants, and sustained 

Water harvesting measures undertaken over the years has helped our Plant become self-reliant 

without being dependent on natural water sources like rivers and borewells. These two approaches 

have helped your Company reduce its specific water consumption. 

Biodiversity 

 

 
Your Company is committed to the conservation of biodiversity. Efforts on biodiversity conservation 
are focused on following areas: 

i) To study and assess the biodiversity operated by the Company. 

ii) On-ground implementation of activities which conserves biodiversity: 

iii) Afforestation activities in and around our plant premises with native species of trees at our 
Plant. 

 

29. HEALTH & SAFETY (H & S Policy–Initiatives) 
 
H & S Business processes and information systems across the Company were further strengthened with 
the proposed launch of an online H&S application called “Click2Safety”. This application helps 
streamline reporting in a manner that gives access to all employees, is standardized, is faster and 
enriches the H&S Database. 
 

30. LOGISTICS SAFETY 
 
Logistics safety is one of the major focus areas for your Company. Ongoing initiatives undertaken in 
this regard included provisions of various plant and parking level protocols, creation of certain 
hygiene factors for truck drivers and their crew such as amenities at truck parking yards, improving 
tarpaulin tying practices, improving Personal Protective Equipment usage, renewal of logistics 
contracts to include safety parameters and issue of “passports”, for drivers as well as vehicles which 
are informal internal databases that provide details of individual identity, registration, roadworthiness 
and safety preparedness. 
 

31. HUMAN RESOURCES 

 
The company adopted a functional organization structure which is intended to enable the organization to 
be more collaborative, agile and streamlined in implementing strategy, harnessing internal functional 
expertise to the fullest and in enhancing stakeholder value.  

Employee Relations 
 
The HR policy is intended as a part of the Company’s continuous efforts to offer one ofthe “Best Places to 
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Work” in the Pipe Industry. This policy was designed to attract newtalent and motivate existing employees to 
contribute to their peak performance levels.The Company’s HR function is recognized in the sector for its 
engagement and leadership development processes in nurturing talent necessary to keep the 
Organization’s talent pool future ready. The Company continued with efforts to ensurethat its pool of human 
resources is “future ready” through its robust processes of learning & development, capability building 
and its development programme for shop floor associates. Efforts continued to be taken to develop 
leadership lines as well as to enhance technical and functional capabilities with special focus on nurturing 
young talent, in order to meet future challenges. 
 
 
India Manufacturing Transformation (IMT) 
 
The IMT Programme aims to make the work-culture in the core areas of production and maintenance in the 
Steel Pipe Plant more contemporary. This envisages a lean manufacturing organization design with 
multitasking, standardization nand simplification of manufacturing processes, improved productivity 
standards, introduction a centralized maintenance design with better planning and benchmarking with the 
best-in-class.These initiatives will enable the Steel Pipe Plant operate more efficiently in a competitive 
environment and render them compatible with National manufacturing standards. 

Industrial Relations 
 
Employee Relations at all the Units remained cordial. This has helped to build a healthy relationship and 
resolve issues through mutual dialogue. 

Prevention of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace 
 
The company has policy on prevention of sexual harassment at workplace in line with the requirement of 
the Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013. An 
Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) to redress complaints received regarding sexual harassment has been 
constituted in compliance with the requirements of the said Act. The company has constituted “Visakha” 
Committee consisting of following Members: 

 
1.  Mrs. Divya Abhishek (External Member) 

 
2. Mrs. Priya Krishna (External Member) 

 
3. Mrs. Latha Venkatesh (External Member) 

 
The policy extends to all employees (permanent, contractual, temporary and trainees). Employees at all levels 
are being sensitized about the new Policy and the remedies available thereunder. During the year, the 
Company has not received any complaint on sexual harassment and there are no complaints pending. 

 
Awarenesss programme were conducted across the Company to sensitize the employees to uphold the 
dignity of their colleagues at workplace, particularly with respect to prevention of sexual harassment. 
 

32. BUSINESS RISKS & OPPORTUNITIES 

 
The Business Risk Management Committee, chaired by an Independent Director, is functioning as required 
under SEBI Regulations.The committee discussed about the physical risk and marketing risk. Details of this 
Committee, its terms of reference and functioning are set out in the Corporate Governance Report. 
 
The Company has implemented a Business Risk Management Policy which lays down the framework to 
identify business risks at both corporate level and at Business Segment level. 

 
The Company’s approach to addressing business risks is comprehensive and enables timely anticipation of 
risks and identification of opportunities enabling appropriate responses, thereby enhancing the Company’s 
competitive advantage. Separate approaches are defined for each of the main business segments of Steel 
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Pipes and forms an integral part of the company’s Mid Term Planning cycle. 
 

The company is faced with various risks at an operational level which very often have the potential to 
offer business opportunities. Some of the main risks are discussed herein: 
 

Proactive Safety Culture 
 
Your company has identified Health & Safety of employees and workmen as one of its key focus areas. 
These include possibilities in the areas of the availability and souring of Raw Materials, Energy, Efficiency 
and Conservation, Logistics and production development and market segmentation based on research, 
imbibing best practices in manufacturing and other areas leading productivity improvement. 
 

 
Safety on National roads is largely dependent on various factors such as the overall condition and 
maintenance of roads, vehicle road-worthiness and general observance of road traffic laws. As part of its 
Logistics Safety function and Indian Road Safety Programme, the Company has taken several initiatives 
including regular simulator-based driver training, vehicle inspection for road-worthiness and the use of 
GlobalPositioning Systems (GPS) to monitor outbound movement of Steel Pipes to the end user. 
 

Opportunities 
 
Your Company also regularly examines potential opportunities created from situations involving business 
risks. 
 

33. DECLARATIONS / AFFIRMATIONS 
 

During the year under review: 

- There were no material changes and commitments affecting the financial 

position of the Company, which have occurred between the end of the financial 

year of the Company to which the financial statements relate viz. 31st Mar’2025 

and the date of this Report; & 

- There were no significant material orders passed by the regulators or courts or 

tribunals impacting the Company’s going concern status and its operations in 

future. 
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35. CAUTIONARY STATEMENT 
 
Statements in the Board’s Report and the Management Discussion & Analysis is describing Company’s 

objective, expectations and forward-looking within the meaningof applicable Securities Laws and Regulations. 

Actual results may differ materially from those expressed in the statement. Important factors that could 

influence the Company’s operations with regard to demand and supply conditions affecting selling prices of 

finished goods, input availability and prices, changes in Government Regulations,Tax Laws, Economic 

Developments and other factors such as litigation and industrial relations. 

 

                                   For and on behalf of the Board 

 

 
                                                            Sd/- 

N. SUDHARSAN 

DIN: 08562284 

 
      Sd/- 

BIVASHWADAS 

DIN:07352655 

PLACE: CHENNAI  

DATE: 14.08.2025  
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 ANNEXURE I 

 
BOARD POLICIES 

Disclosures under REG. 46 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations 2015 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

S.No Policy Name Weblink 

1 Terms and conditions of appointment of 
Independent Directors 

https://tntpipes.com/lisitng-
regulations 

2 Composition of Committees of the Board https://tntpipes.com/lisitng-
regulations 

3 Shareholding Pattern https://tntpipes.com/share-
holding-pattern 

4 Contact details of Company Officials for 
Investor Grievances 

https://tntpipes.com/grievance-
management 

5 Notice of Board Meetings https://tntpipes.com/notices 

6 Financial Results https://tntpipes.com/quarterly-
financial-reports 

7 Annual Reports https://tntpipes.com/annual-
financial-reports 

8 Annual Secretarial Compliance Report https://tntpipes.com/secretarial-
auditors-report 

9 Disclosures under Regulation 30 https://tntpipes.com/listing-
regulations 

10 Nomination and Remuneration Policy of 
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and 
Other Employees 

https://tntpipes.com/listing-
regulations 

11 Related Party Transactions Policy https://tntpipes.com/listing-
regulations 
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 ANNEXURE II 

 
 

CSR POLICY STATEMENT & ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR) 
ACTIVITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2024-25 

 
Our vision is to be one of the most respected companies in India, delivering superior and 
sustainable value to all our customers, business partners, shareholders, employees, and host 
communities and society also. 
 
Our CSR initiatives focus on the holistic development of our host communities while creating social, 
environmental and economic value to society. 
 

 To pursue these objectives, we will continue to: 

 Upload and promote the principles of inclusive growth and equitable development. 

o Devise and implement Community Development Plans based on the 
needsand priorities of our host communities and measure the effectiveness of 
such development programmes. 

o Work actively in the areas of Livelihood advancement, enhancing 
employability and Income Generation, Improvising Quality and reach of 
education, Promoting Health and Sanitation, Conserving the Environment 
and supporting local Sports, Art and Culture. 

o Collaborate with like-minded bodies such as Governments, Civil Society 
Organizations and Academic Institutions in pursuit of our Goals. 

 Interact regularly with stakeholders, review and publicly report our CSR initiatives. 

Details of Amount Spent on CSR Activities during the Financial Year 2024-25 

Sl.No CSR 

project or 

activity 

identified 

Sector in 

which the 

project is 

covered(cla

use no.of 

schedule 

VII to the 

Companies 

Act 

2013,as 

amended) 

Projects or 

programs 

1) Local

area or 

other 

2) Specify

the State 

and district 

Where 

projects or 

programs 

was 

undertaken 

Amount

outlay 

(budget) 

project or 

program 

wise 

Amount 

spent on the 

projects or 

programs: 

Sub Heads 

(1) Direct 

expenditure 

on projects 

or programs 

(2) 

Overheads 

Cumulative

expenditure

upto the 

reporting  

period,i.e.,

March 31, 

2022 

(Rs.incrore) 

Amount spent 

direct or 

through 

implementing

agency 

1. Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil 

 
For and on behalf of the Board 

 
                                                            Sd/- 

 N.SUDHARSAN 

DIN: 08562284    

  
     Sd/- 

BIVASHWADAS 

DIN:07352655 

Place: Chennai  

Date:  14.08.2025  
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ANNEXURE III 

POLICY FOR SELECTION OF DIRECTORS, KMPs AND DETERMINING DIRECTORS’ 

INDEPENDENCE 

Introduction: 
Tamilnadu Steel Tubes Ltd (TNT) believes that an enlightened Board consciously creates a culture 
of leadership to provide a long-term vision and policy approach to improve thequality of governance. 
Towards this, TNT ensures constitution of a Board of Directors with an appropriate composition, size, 
diversified expertise and experience and commitment to discharge their responsibilities and duties 
effectively. 
 
TNT recognizes the importance of Independent Directors in achieving the effectiveness of the Board. 
TNT aims to have an optimum combination of Executive, Non-Executive and Independent Directors. 

Scope and Exclusion: 
This Policy sets out the guiding principles for the Human Resources, Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee for identifying persons who are qualified to become Directors and to determine the 
independence of Directors, in case of their appointment as independent directors of the Company. 

Terms and references: 

1.“Director” mean a director appointed to the Board of a company. 

2.“Nomination and Remuneration Committee” means the committee constituted by TNT’s 

Board in accordance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 

19 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India(Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015(“Listing Regulations”). 

3.“Independent Director” means a director referred to in sub-section(6) of Section 149 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 16(1)(b) of Listing Regulations. 

 
POLICY: 

Qualifications and criteria 

 The Business Responsibility, Nomination and Remuneration (BRNR) Committee, and the 

Board, shall review on an annual basis, appropriate skills, knowledge and experience 

required of the Board as a whole and its individual members. The objective is to have 

aBoard with diverse background and experience that are relevant for the Company’s 

globaloperations.

 In evaluating the suitability of individual Board members, the HRNR Committee may take 

into account factors, such as:

 General understanding of the Company’s business dynamics, global business and social 

perspective;

 Educational and professional background;

 Standing in the profession; 

 Personal and professional ethics, integrity and values;
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 Willingness to devote sufficient time and energy in carrying out their duties and 

responsibilities effectively.

 The proposed appointee shall also fulfill lthe following requirements:

 Shall possess a Director Identification Number;

 Shall not be disqualified under the Companies Act, 2013;

 Shall give his written consent to act as a Director;

 Shall endeavour to attend all Board Meetings and wherever he is appointed as a 

Committee Member, the Committee Meetings;

 Shall abide by the Code of Conduct established by the Company for Directors and Senior 

Management Personnel;

 Shall disclose his concern or interest in any company or companies or bodies corporate, 

firms, or other association of individuals including his shareholding at the first meeting 

ofthe Board in every financial year and thereafter whenever there is a change in the 

disclosures already made;

 Such other requirements as may be prescribed, from time to time, under the Companies 

Act, 2013, Listing Regulations and other relevant laws.

 The NRC Committee shall evaluate each individual with the objective of having a group 

that best enables the success of the Company’s business.

Criteria of Independence 

The NRC Committee shall assess the independence of Directors at the time of appointment/ re-
appointment and the Board shall assess the same annually. The Board shall re-assess determinations of 
independence when any new interests or relationships are disclosed by Director. 
 
The criteria of independence, as laid down in Companies Act, 2013 and Listing Regulations, is as below: An 
independent director in relation to a company, means a non-executive director, other than a managing 
director or a whole-time director or a nominee director– 

a. Who, in the opinion of the Board, is a person of integrity and possesses relevant expertise 

and experience; 

b. (i) Who is or was not a promoter of the company or its holding, subsidiary or associate 

company; 

 (ii) Who is not related to promoters or directors in the company, its holding, subsidiary or 

associate company 

c. who has or had no pecuniary relationship with the company, its holding, subsidiary or 

associate company, or their promoters, or directors, during the two immediately 

preceding financial years or during the current financial year; 

    d. none of whose relatives has or had pecuniary relationship or transaction with the company, its 
holding, subsidiary or associate company, or their promoters, or directors, amounting to two per cent or 
more of its gross turnover or total income or 50 lakh rupees or such higher amount as may be prescribed, 
whichever is lower, during the two immediately preceding financial years or during the current financial 
year; 
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        e. who, neither himself nor any of his relatives– 
     

(i) holds or has held the position of a key managerial personnel or is or has been an 

employee of the company or its holding, subsidiary or associate company in any of 

the three financial years immediately preceding the financial year in which he is 

proposed to be appointed; 

(ii) is or has been an employee or proprietor or a partner, in any of the three financial 

years immediately preceding the financial year in which he is proposed to be 

appointed, of- 

A firm of auditors or company secretaries in practice or cost auditors of  the 
company or its holding, subsidiary or associate company; or any legal or 
aconsulting firm that has or had any transaction with the company, its holding, 
subsidiary or associate company amounting to 10 per cent or more of the gross 
turnover of such firm; 
 

(iii) Holds together with his relatives two percent or more of the total voting power of the 

company; or 

(iv) is a Chief Executive or director, by whatever name called, of any non-profit 

organisation that receives twenty-five percentor more of its receipts or corpus 

from the company, any of its promoters, directors or its holding, subsidiary or 

associate company or that holds two percent or more of the total voting power of 

the company; or 

(v) is a material supplier, service provider or customer or a lessor or lessee of the 

company. 

f. shall possess appropriate skills, experience and knowledge in one or more fields 

of finance, law, management, sales, marketing, administration, research, 

corporate governance, technical operations, corporate social responsibility or 

other disciplines related to the company’s business. 

g. shall possess such other qualifications as may be prescribed, from time to time,  

under the Companies Act, 2013. 

h. Who is not less than 21 years of age 

 
The Independent Directors shall abide by the “Code for Independent Directors” as specified 

  in Schedule IV to the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
Other Directorships / Committee Memberships 
 
The Board members are expected to have adequate time and expertise and experience to contribute to 
effective Board performance. Accordingly, members should voluntarily limit their directorships in other 
listed public limited companies in such a way that it does not interfere with their role as directors of the 
Company. The NRC Committee shall take into account the nature of, and the time involved in a 
Director’s service on other Boards, in evaluating the suitability of the individual Director and making its 
recommendations to the Board. A Director shall not serve as Director in more than 20 companies out of 
which not more than 10 shall be Public Limited Companies. 

 
  A Director shall not serve as an Independent Director in more than 7 Listed Companies and not   
  more than Three Listed Companies in case he is serving as a Whole-time Director in any Listed   
  Company. 
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A Director shall not be a member in more than 10 Committees or act as Chairman of more than 5   
Committees across all companies in which he holds directorships. 
 
 
For the purpose of considering the limit of the Committees, Audit Committee and Stakeholders’ 
Relationship Committee of all Public Limited Companies, whether listed or not, shall be included and 
all other companies including Private Limited Companies, Foreign Companies and Companies under 
Section8 of the Companies Act, 2013 shall be excluded. 

 
 

 

                                                              For and on behalf of the Board 
 

 

 
                                                        Sd/- 

N.SUDHARSAN 

DIN: 08562284 

 
         
        Sd/- 
BIVASHWA DAS 
   DIN:07352655 

Place: Chennai  

Date:  14.08.2025 
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 ANNEXURE IV 

REMUNERATION POLICY FOR DIRECTORS, KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL AND OTHER        

EMPLOYEES 

INTRODUCTION: 

• Tamilnadu Steel Tubes Ltd., (TNT) recognizes the importance of aligning the 

business objectives with specific and measurable individual objectives and targets. The 

Company has therefore formulated the remuneration policy for its directors, key 

managerial personnel and other employees keeping in view the following 

objectives: 

• Ensuring that the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient 

to attract, retain and motivate, to run the company successfully. 

• Ensuring that relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets the 

performance benchmarks. 

• Ensuring that remuneration involves a balance between fixed and incentive pay 

reflecting short- and long-term performance objectives appropriate to the working 

of the company and its goals. 

 

SCOPE AND EXCLUSION: 
This Policy sets out the guiding principles for the Business Responsibility, Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee for recommending to the Board the remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel 
and other employees of the Company. 

TERMS AND REFERENCES: 

“Director” means a director appointed to the Board of the Company. 

“Key Managerial Personnel” means 

(i) the Chief Executive Officer or the Managing Director or the Manager; 

                 (ii) the Company Secretary; 

(iii) the Whole-time Director; 

           (iv) the Chief Financial Officer; and 

                 (v) Such other officers as may be prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 

 
“Nomination & Remuneration Committee” means the committee constituted by TNT’s Board in 
accordance with the provisions of Section 178 of the CompaniesAct, 2013 and Regulation 19 of the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 (“Listing Regulations”).  

 

POLICY: 

Remuneration to Directors and Key Managerial Personnel 
The Board, on the recommendation of the Nomination, Remuneration & B R Committee, (NRC) shall 
review and approve the remuneration payable to the Executive Directors of the Company within the 
overall limits approved by the shareholders. 
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The Board, on the recommendation of the NRC Committee, shall also review and approve the 
remuneration payable to the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company. 
 
The remuneration structure to the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel shall include the 
following components: 

a. Basic Pay  

b. Perquisites and Allowances 

c. Stock Options 

d. Commission (Applicable in case of Executive Directors) 

e. Retiral benefits 

f. Annual Performance Bonus 

 
The Annual Plan and Objectives for Executive Directors and Senior Executives (Executive 
Committee) shall be reviewed by the HRNR Committee and Annual Performance Bonus will 
be approved by the Committee based on the achievements against the Annual Plan and 
Objectives. 

Remuneration to Non-Executive Directors 

 
The Board, on the recommendation of the BRNR Committee, shall review and approve the 
remuneration payable to the Non-Executive Directors of the Company within the overall 
limits approved by the shareholders. 
 
Non-Executive Directors shall be entitled to sitting fees for attending the meetings of the 
Board and the Committees thereof. The Non-Executive Directors shall also be entitled to 
profit related commission in addition to the sitting fees. 

Remuneration to other employees 

 
Employees shall be assigned grades according to their qualifications and work experience, 
competencies as well as their roles and responsibilities in the organization. Individual 
remuneration shall be determined within the appropriate grade and shall be based on 
various factors such as job profile, skill sets, seniority, experience and prevailing 
remuneration levels for equivalent jobs. 
 

 

For and on behalf of the Board 

 
Sd/- 

N.SUDHARSAN 

DIN: 08562284 

 
Sd/- 

BIVASHWA DAS 

DIN:07352655 

Place: Chennai  

Date: 14.08.2025 
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ANNEXURE  V 

MR – 3 
 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025 
 
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 9 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 
 
To: 
The Members 
Tamil Nadu Steel Tubes Limited 
No. 22, 1st Floor, Wheatcroft Road, Nungambakkam,  
Chennai - 600034 
 
I have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and 
the adherence to good corporate practices by Tamil Nadu Steel Tubes Limited [CIN: 
L27110TN1979PLC007887](hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted 
in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory 
compliances and expressing my opinion thereon. 
 
Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed 
and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the 
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial 
audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the 
financial year ended on 31 March 2025 (‘Audit Period’) complied with the statutory provisions 
listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-
mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter :  
 
I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31 March 2025 according to the 
provisions of: 
 
(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under 

 
(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there under 

 
(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under; 

 
(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under 

to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External 
Commercial Borrowings 

 
(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange 

Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’): — 
 

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011  

 
(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 

Regulations, 1992 
 
(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2009 and the Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,2015 notified on 2nd 
September 2015 to take effect from 1st December 2015 
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(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and 

Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 and The Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations,2014 notified on 28 
October 2014; (No actions/events requiring compliance pursuant to this Regulations) 

 
(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer 

Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with Client  
 
(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 

2009 (No actions/events requiring compliance pursuant to this Regulations) 
 
(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations,1998 

(No actions/events requiring compliance pursuant to this Regulations) 
 

(h) Other laws applicable to the company, as per the representations made by the 
Company 

 
I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:     

 
(I) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India 

 
(II) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Stock Exchanges. 

 
During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, 
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.  
 
 
I further report that: 
 
Based on the information provided to me during the conduct of audit and based on the reports 
submitted by the Board/Committees from time to time, in my opinion adequate systems, 
processes and control measures are in place exist in the Company to monitor and ensure 
compliance with the applicable general laws like labour laws, competition laws and 
environmental laws.  
 
The requirements of Corporate Governance with regard to composition of Board of Directors and 
constitution of committees as per SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 are not applicable to the company with effect from 1st December 2015. 
However, the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of 
Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. During the financial 
year, Two Non-Executive Independent Directors resigned and in their place Two Non-Executive 
Independent Directors were appointed. 
 
Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed 
notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and 
obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for 
meaningful participation at the meeting.  In view of the COVID-19 Pandemic prevailing in the 
Country, the Annual General Meeting was held through Video Conference, in accordance with the 
statutory provisions. 
  
All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are carried out unanimously as recorded 
in the minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors or Committee of the Board, as the case 
may be. 
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I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate 
with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable 
laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 
 
 
I further report that during the audit period there were no other specific actions/events, in 
pursuance of above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines etc having a major bearing on 
the company’s affairs. 
 
  
 
Place: Trichy                    V.S.SOWRIRAJAN 
Date:  22/07/2025                                                 Company Secretary 
                 FCS 2368/CP 6482 

Unique Identification No: S2004TN077000 
      UDIN: F002368G000835530 

       PEER REVIEW CERTIFICATE NO: 2162/2022 
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“Annexure A” 
     
 
To 
 
The Members 
Tamil Nadu Steel Tubes Limited 
No. 22, 1st Floor, Wheatcroft Road, Nungambakkam,  
Chennai - 600034 
 
 

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 
 

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit. 
 

 
2. We  have  followed  the  audit  practices  and  processes  as  were  appropriate  to  obtain 

reasonable assurance about the correctness of the  contents of the Secretarial records.   
The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in 
secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a 
reasonable basis for our opinion. 

 
3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of 

Accounts of the company.’ 
 

 
4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance 

of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc. 
 

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, 
standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the 
verification of procedures on test basis. 

 

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company 
nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of 
the company. 

 
 
 
Place: Trichy                    V.S.SOWRIRAJAN 
Date: 22/07/2025                                     Company Secretary 
                 FCS 2368/CP 6482 

Unique Identification No: S2004TN077000 
      UDIN: F002368F001029537 

PEER REVIEW CERTIFICATE NO: 2162/2022 
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ANNEXURE VI 

 
PARTICULARS OF ENERGY CONSERVATION, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN 

EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO 

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY 

(I) Steps Taken for Conservation of Energy 

Energy security has always been one of the key components of TNT’s business 

strategy and also one of the biggest challenges encountered globally, the company 

is now better equipped to benefit from volatile fuel prices and optimize energy cost. 

The Company’s systems and processes ensure optimum energy usage by continuous 

 Monitoring of all forms of energy and increasing the efficiency of operations. 

A dedicated ‘Energy Cell’, at the site and group levels, is focusing on energy 

management and closely monitors energy consumption pattern across all 

manufacturing sites. Periodic energy audits are conducted to improve energy 

performance and benchmark with other Steel pipe manufacturing companies. 

II) Major Initiatives taken at various manufacturing divisions 
 
Replacement of old motors with Energy efficient motors in TNT Pipe Manufacturing 
Divisions. Replacement of Fluorescent tube lights with LED lights in TNT Manufacturing 
Divisions. Steps have been taken for Installations of an Energy efficient equipment and 
air compressor to replace old ones for saving energy at TNT Manufacturing Division. 
 

(III) STEPS TAKEN BY THE COMPANY FOR UTILISING ALTERNATE SOURCES OF ENERGY 
 
Roof top solar photo voltaic projects are being studied across TNT manufacturing unit. 
Innovative applications of renewable energy such as solar thermal integration with 
manufacturing processes, biomass co-firing etc are being evaluated. Biogas generation 
facilities are also evaluated to process organic waste. 

 

(IV) THE CAPITAL INVESTMENT ON ENERGY CONSERVATION EQUIPMENT 
 

 

 

Sr. 

No. 

 

Manufacturing 

Division 

Capital 

investments on 

energy efficient    

equipments 

(Crores) 

 
Energy 

Savings 

(Gcal/Hr) 

 
Financial
Saving    
(In Rs.) 

 

 
(I) 

Tamilnadu Steel Tubes 

Ltd,     Works : B-10, 

Industrial Estate, 

MM Nagar–603209 

Chengalpattu District 

 

 
Nil 

 

 
Nil 

 

 
Nil 
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[FORM FOR DISCLOSURE OF PARTICULARS WITH RESPECT TO CONSERVATION OF ENERGY:] 
 
 

A. POWER & FUEL CONSUMPTION  

1. ELECTRICITY 2024-25 2023-24 

a) Purchase Unit KWH 11,68,824 8,71,932 

 Total Amount 1,26,71,025 1,00,86,429 

 Rate / Unit 10.84 11.56 

b) Own Generation   

 Through Diesel Generator Unit 19,215 18,433 

 Units per Ltr. Of Diesel Oil 2.5 2.5 

 Cost 37.16/Unit 37.91/Unit 

 Through Steam Turbine / Generate Units - - 

 Units per Ltr. Of Fuel Oil Gas Cost/Unit - - 

2. COAL (Specify quality and where used) -  

 Qty. (Tonnes) - - 

 Total Cost - - 

 Average Rate - - 

3. FURNACE OIL   

 Qty. (Ltrs./MTs) 209.25 MTs 181.37MTs 

 Total Cost 1,25,40,736 1,01,79,334 

 Average Rate per Ltr. / Kg 59.93/kg 56.12/kg 

4. OTHER INTERNAL GENERATION   

 Qty. - - 

 Total Cost - - 

 Rate/Unit - - 

 
B. CONSUMPTION PER UNIT PRODUCTION 

PRODUCTION DETAILS: E.R.W.  M.S. PIPES AND GALVANIZED PIPES: 

 

UNIT STANDARD 2024-25 2023-24 

Electricity -  Rs. 108.52 Unit /MT of 
Black Pipe Production 

Rs. 100.61 Unit/MT of 
Black Pipe Production 

Furnace Oil -  Rs. 32.83 LTR / MT of 
Black Pipes Galvanized 

Rs. 44.88 LTR/MT of 
Black Pipes Galvanized 

Coal / Others - - - 
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TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION 
 
Research and technology at TNT helps create superior value by harnessing internal research and 
development skills and competencies and creates innovations in emerging technology 
domains related to TNT’s businesses. Research and technology at TNT focuses on (i) new 
products, processes and catalyst development to support existing businesses and create 
breakthrough technologies for new businesses, (ii) advanced trouble shooting and (iii) 
support to capital projects and profit and reliability improvements in manufacturing plants. 

MAJOR EFFORTS MADE TOWARDS TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION 

• Multi functional sulphur soil nutrient for enhancing crop quality and yield as sodics oil 

amendment. 

• Development of low-cost Carbondioxide adsorbent and capture process. 

• Development of the process for direct synthesis of dimethyl carbonate from Carbondioxide. 

• Benzene extraction process from olefinic fluidised catalytic cracking (FCC) gasoline. 

• Development of high active FCC catalyst. 

• Demo unit to demonstrate multizone catalytic cracking process (MCC). 

• Development of Zeolite Socony Mobil–5 (ZSM-5) additive (RMP-5) to improve propylene 

yield in the FCC. 

• Accelerated deactivation protocol for Vacuum gas oil Hydro treating unit (VGOHT) catalyst. 

• Fast characterization of crude using Near-infrared (NIR) to provide assay update support. 

• In-house corrosion model developed to estimate the life of steel pipes. 

Biofuels and Bio-Chemicals 

• Development of ‘Green Bio crude’ from algae using sea water, sunlight and low cost nutrients. 

• Development of high yielding bio fuel hybrid crops. 

• Development of high yielding, waste land based non-edible crops for large scale cultivation 

for production of biofuels/chemicals. 

• In-house research and external technology for converting abundantly available cellulosic 

biomass in India to fuels and chemicals. 

• Application of biotechnology to enhance the productivity of biofuels species. 

• Testing the best hybrids produced by us and others at different agro-climatic Zones to identify 
most productive cultivators.  
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• Popularising the cultivation of bio-fuel crops by growers by conducting method and varietal 

demonstrations. 

• Genetic modifications, synthetic biology, high through put screening and metabolic flux 

analysis for biomolecule production. 

• Developed a web portal (algorithm) for predicting genes for improving industrial traits for 

bio-fuel production. 

 
Information regarding Imported Technology (Imported during last three years: Nil  
 
Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo: Nil 

 
 

For and on behalf of the Board 

 
Sd/- 

N.SUDHARSAN 

DIN: 08562284 

 
Sd/- 

BIVASHWA DAS 

 DIN:07352655 

Place: Chennai  

Date: 14.08.2025 
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Annexure–VII 

 
The particulars required under Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the 

Rules 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014 
annexed to and forming part of the Directors Report for the year ended 31st March 2025. 

 

1 The ratio of the remuneration of each 

Director to the median remuneration of the 

employees. 

3.28 :2.78 

2 % increase in remuneration of each Director, 

Chief Financial Officer(CFO) and Company 

Secretary(CS) in the financial year 

Nil 

3 % increase in the median remuneration 

of employees in the financial year. 

Nil 

 

4 The number of permanent employees on the 

rolls of company;  (Factory: 128 & HO: 20) 

Employees Joined During the Year:37 

Employees left during the year: 6 

Existing Employees on 31.03.25: 148 

5 The explanation on the relationship 

between average increase in remuneration 

and company performance; 

Increase in remuneration to employees is 

considered based on the performance 

criteria fixed by the Company. 

6 Comparison of the remuneration of the 

Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) against 

the performance of the company; 

Performance incentive is linked to 

overall performance of the individual 

and Company. 

7 Variations in the market capitalization of the 

company, price earnings ratio as at the    

closing date of the current financial year and 

previous financial year and percentage 

increase over decrease in the market 

quotations of the shares of the company in 

comparison to the rate at which the 

company came out with the last public offer. 

No Public Offer is carried out so far after 

the Initial public offer. 

8 Average percentile increases already made 

in the salaries of employees other than 

the managerial personnel in the last 

financial year and its comparison with the  

percentile increase in the managerial 

remuneration and justification there of 

and point out if there are any exceptional 

circumstances for increase in the 

managerial remuneration. 

 

 

 

 

Nil 

9 Comparison of the remuneration of each 

KMPs against the performance of the  

Company; 

Remuneration consists of two parts       
(i) Fixed and (ii) variable incentive. 
Payment of variable incentive is based on 
overall performance of the company. 
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10 The key parameters for any variable 

component of remuneration availed by the 

Directors; 

No Director other than Whole-time 

 Directors are receiving    any    

remuneration except sitting fees 

 Payment. 

  

11 

The ratio of the remuneration of the highest 

paid director to that of the employees 

who are not directors but receive 

remuneration in excess of the highest paid 

Director during the year. 

 

Not applicable 

 

 
It is affirmed that the remuneration paid / payable to the Directors, KMPs and other 
median employees are as per the remuneration policy of the Company. 
 

                                                                             
 

                                                                           For and on behalf of the Board 

 
 
 
 

 
                                                                 Sd/- 

Place: Chennai                                      N.SUDHARSAN                           

Date: 14.08.2025                            DIN: 08562284 

                Sd/-  

BIVASHWA  DAS   

DIN: 07352655 

   
For and on behalf of the Board 

   
Sd/- 

XXXXXXXXXXX

DIN:XXXXXXXX 

 
Sd/- 

BIVASHWADAS 

DIN:07352655 

  Place: Chennai  

  Date: 14.08.2024 
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Annexure–VIII 
AOC-2 

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

[Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section 3 of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the 

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014] 

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts / arrangements entered into by the company with 
related parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including 
certain arm’s length transaction under third proviso thereto. 

 
     Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis-NIL. 
     Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis. 

 
 

Sl.

No 

Name of the 

Related Party 

Remuneration Professional 

 Charges 

Total  

Payable 

1 Narasimhan 
Sudarsan 

  0.20 

  (0.22) 

4.42 

(4.17) 

0.28 

2 M.T.Elumalai*  - 

     (0.12) 

 - 

(4.05) 

- 

 (1.72) 

3 Bishwasva Das           0.10 

(0.10) 

3.89 

- 

- 

4 G Chitra ** - 

(2.32) 

- - 

5 H Vinodh Kumar 

*** 

5.96 

(2.03) 

- - 

6 Ram Ashish Singh 0.08 
(0.10) 

5.87 

(5.48) 

0.38 

(0.37) 

7 Krishna Kamal 

Shukla 

0.12 
- 

7.69 

(1.09) 

- 

8 K Suresh  **** 6.65 
(3.44) 

- - 

 

*  M.T. Elumalai – WTD – resigned on 31.03.2024 
**    CFO - G.Chitra – Resigned on 30.10.2023 
***   CFO – H.Vinoth Kumar Appointed on 14.11.2023  
****   Company Secretary has been appointed on 12.08.2023 
 

                                                                             
 

                                                                           For and on behalf of the Board 
 

                                                                 Sd/- 

Place: Chennai                                      N.SUDHARSAN                           

Date: 14.08.2025                             DIN: 08562284 

                Sd/-  

BIVASHWA  DAS   

DIN: 07352655 
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Annexure-IX 

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

  
The Directors present the Company’s Report on Corporate Governance for the year ended 31st March 2025 

 

 1. COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE   

 
Our corporate governance is a reflection of our value system encompassing our culture, policies, 
and relationships with our stakeholders. Integrity and transparency are key to our corporate 
governance practices to ensure that we gain and retain the trust of our stakeholders at all times. The 
Governance Philosophy of your Company is based on strong foundations of ethical values and 
professionalism which over the past 46 years of the Company’s existencehas become a part of its 
culture. Integrity, transparency, fairness, accountability andcompliance with the law are embedded 
in the Company’s robust business practices to ensureethical and responsible leadership, both at the 
Board and at the Management level. TheCompany’s Code of Business Conduct, its Ethical View 
Reporting Policy and its well-structured internal control systems which are subjected to regular review 
for their effectiveness, reinforces accountability and integrity of reporting and ensures transparency 
and fairness in dealing with the Company’s stakeholders. The Company’s focus on sustainable 
development, its customer centric approach to creating value for the customers by ensuring product 
quality and innovative value-added service offerings coupled with its outreach through CSR activities 
and programmes has enabled your Company to earn the trust and goodwill of its investors, business 
partners, employees and other stakeholders. 

 
In India, Corporate Governance standards for listed companies are regulated by the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
(Listing Regulations). The Company has adopted best practices mandated in the Listing 
Regulations. A Report on compliance with Corporate Governance as stipulated in the Listing 
Regulations is given below:  

 

               Governance Structure 

 
TNT’s Governance structure comprises the Board of Directors and the Committees of the Board  at 
the apex level and the Management structure at the operational level. This structure brings about a 
judicious blend in governance as the Board sets out the overall corporate objectives and 
provides direction and independence to the Management to achieve these corporate objectives 
within a given framework. This brings about a conducive environment for value creation through 
sustainable profitable growth. 

 

             2. BOARD OF DIRECTORS:   

 
The Board provides leadership, strategic guidance and objective judgement on the affairs of the 
Company. The Board comprises of persons of eminence with excellent professional achievements in 
their respective fields. The Independent Directors provide their independent judgement, external 
perspective and objectivity on the issues which are placed before them. The Board of Directors play a 
fundamental role in upholding and nurturing the principles of good governance which translates into 
ethical business practices, transparency and accountability in the Company’s dealing with its stakeholders 
and in the utilization of resources for creating sustainable growth and societal wealth. The Board operates 
within the framework of a well-defined responsibility matrix which enables it to discharge its fiduciary 
duties of safeguarding the interests of the Company. The Board’s composition and size is robust and 
enables it to deal competently with emerging business development issues and exercise independent 
judgement. 
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The Composition of Board and Meetings: 

 
The Company’s Board is a balanced mix of Executive and Non-Executive Directors, all having diverse 
experience and expertise in their fields of operation. They take active part at the Board and Committee 
Meetings by providing valuable guidance to the Management on various aspects of business, policy 
direction, governance, compliance etc. which adds value in the decision-making process of the Board of 
Directors. 
 
The composition of the Board also complies with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
Regulation 17 of Listing Regulations. 
 
As on March 31, 2025, the Board comprised Eight members, consisting of One Managing Director 
(Executive Director), three Executive Directors and Four Non-Executive Independent  Directors. An 
Independent Director is the chairperson of Board Meeting and other Independent Directors - each of 
the Board Committees – Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Stakeholders 
Relationship Committee, Risk Management Committee, and Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) 
Committee, as per the revised Composition of Committee w.e.f. 14.08.2024.  
 

Independent Directors 

 
The Company had issued letters of appointment to the Independent Directors upon being appointed by 
shareholders at the Annual General Meeting as required under Schedule IV to the Companies Act 2013 
and the terms and conditions of their appointment are also disclosed on the Company’s website under the 
link:https://www.tntpipes.com  
  
All new directors inducted to the Board are introduced to our Company culture through orientation sessions. 
Executive directors and senior management provide an overview of operations, and familiarize the new 
Executive & Non-Executive directors on matters related to our values and commitments. 

 
They are also introduced to the organization structure, services, Group structure and subsidiaries, 
constitution, Board procedures, matters reserved for the Board, major risks and risk management 
strategy. The details of the familiarization program are also available on the Company’s website, at 
https://www.tntpipes.com 
 
 
The Board’s policy is to have separate meetings regularly with independent directors to update  them on all 
business-related issues and new initiatives. At such meetings, the executive directors and other 
members of the senior management share points of view and leadership thoughts on relevant issues. 
 
During the financial year 2024-25, there were Four Meetings of the Board of Directors. The dates of the 
Board meetings, attendance and the number of Directorships/Committee memberships held by the 
Directors are given in the Table below: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

https://www.tntpipes.com/
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Attendance of Directors at Board Meetings and the last Annual General Meeting 

(AGM) and number of Directorships / Committee memberships held by the 

Directors in other Companies: 

 

 
 

 
Name o f the 

Director 

 
 
 

Category 

 
Attendance 

Number of 

Directorshi

p in other 

Public 

Companiesa

s  on 31st 

March, 

2025 

Committee 

Chairmanship 

and Membership 

Shareholdin

g of 

Non- 

Executive 

Directors 

as at March 

31,  

2024 

 
Board

Meeting 

 
AGM 

held 

on26th 

Sep 

2024 

 

Chairmanship 

 

Membes

hip 

Mr. Bivashwa Das 
DIN:07352655 

Managing 
Director 

3 √ NIL NIL 3 NA 

Mr.Sudarsan 
DIN: 08562284 

Executive 
Director 4 √ NIL NIL 3 NA 

Ms. M.Indumathi 
DIN:10747508 
(appointed on: 
14.08.2024) 

Independe
nt Non- 
Executive 
Director 

3 √ NIL NIL 1 NIL 

Mr. Ram Asish 
Singh 
DIN:09236352 

Executive 
Director 3 √ NIL NIL 1 NA 

Mr. Rajesh Sai Iyer 
DIN:05353374 

Independe
nt Non- 
Executive 
Director 

 
4 

 
√ 

 
 1 

 
3 

 
5 

 
NIL 

Mrs. Priya Krishna 
DIN:10640808 
(appointed on: 
30.05.2024) 

Independe
nt Non- 
Executive 
Director 

 
4 

 
√ 

 
NIL 

 
NIL 

 
4 

 
NIL 

Mr. RV. Satyanara- 
yanan 
DIN: 08913315  
(Left on: 30.05.24) 

Independe
nt Non- 
Executive 
Director 

 
1 

 
√ 

 
NIL 

 
NIL 

 
1 

 
NIL 

Ms Divya Abhishek 
DIN : 08709050 
  

Independe
nt Non- 
Executive 
Director 

 
4 

 
√ 

 
2 

 
 1 

 
4 

 
NIL 

Mr. Krishnan 
Kamal Shukla   
DIN: 09700482 

Executive 
Director 4 √ NIL NIL 2 NA 

 
 
 
   

There were four (4) Board Meetings of the Company held during the financial year 2024-25 on the 
following dates: 
 
30.05.2024, 14.08.2024, 14.11.2024, and 14.02.2025 
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     3. COMMITTEES OF BOARD: 
Having regard to the significant contribution that Committees make in assisting the Board of 
Directors in discharging its duties and responsibilities and with a view to focus on various areas of the 
business, the Board has constituted the following Committees viz. Audit Committee, Stakeholders’ 
Relationship Committee, Nomination & Remuneration Committee, Risk Management Committee, 
Health Safety, Environment & Women Protection Committee Meeting and Corporate Social 
Responsibility (CSR) Committee. 

 
The Board, in consultation with the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, is responsible for 
assigning and fixing terms of service for Committee members. It delegates these powers to the 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee. 

 
The Chairman of the Board, in consultation with the Company Secretary and the Committee 
Chairperson,   determines the frequency and duration of the Committee meetings. 

 
The constitution, terms of reference and the functioning of the existing Committees of the Board is 
explained herein. Each of these Committees have the requisite expertise to handle issues relevant 
to their field. These Committees spend considerable time and give focused attention to the various 
issues placed before it and the guidance provided by these Committees lends immense value and 
enhances the decision-making process of the Board. 

 
Normally, all the Committees meet four times a year. The recommendations of the Committees are 
submitted to the Board for approval.  During the year, all recommendations of the Committees 
were approved by the Board. The quorum for meetings is the higher of two members or one-third 
of the total number of members of the committee. The Board reviews the functioning of these 
Committees from time to time. The Meetings of each of these Committees are convened by the 
respective Chairman of the Committees, who also inform the Board about the summary of discussions 
held in the Committee Meetings. The Minutes of theCommittee Meetings are sent to all Directors 
individually and tabled at the respective Board / Committee Meetings. 

  AUDIT COMMITTEE: 

The role of the Audit Committee, in brief, is to review Financial Statements, Internal Controls, Accounting 
Policies, Internal Audit Report, Related Party Transactions, Risk Management Systems and functioning 
of the Whistle Blower mechanism. The composition of the Audit Committee and the scope of its 
activities and powers are in conformity with and include the areas prescribed under the Regulation 18 
of the Listing Regulations and Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules framed thereunder. 
The Audit Committee comprises of Four Directors who are well versed with the financial matters and 
corporate laws.  

The Audit Committee met four (4) times during the financial year 2024-25 on the following dates: 
30.05.2024, 14.08.2024, 14.11.2024, and 14.02.2025. The necessary quorum was present for all the 
meetings. The Chairman of the Audit Committee was present at the last Annual General Meeting of the 
Company held on 26.09.2024. 

Details of the composition of the Audit Committee and attendance of the Members are as follows: 

 

Name of the Director 
 

Category 
 

Position 
No.of 

Meetings 

Attended 

Mr. Rajesh Sai Iyer Independent Director Member 4 

Mrs. Divya Abhishek Independent Director Chairperson 4 

Mrs. Priya Krishna Independent Director Member 4 

Mr. N Sudharsan Whole Time Director  Member 4 

The company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the Committee. 
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Terms of Reference: 
The terms of reference and role of the Audit Committee are as per guidelines set out in the Listing 
Regulations and Section 177 of Companies Act, 2013. The Committee meets periodically and inter alia 
reviews: 

Financial Reporting and Related Processes: 

• Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting process and financial information submitted to the Stock 

Exchanges, regulatory authorities or the public. 

• Review with the Management, the quarterly unaudited financial statements and the Auditors’ Limited 

Review Report thereon, audited annual financial statements and Auditors’ Report thereon before submission 

to the Board for approval. This would, inter alia, include reviewing changes in the accounting policies, if 

any, and reasons for the same. Major accounting estimates based on exercise of judgment by the 

Management, significant adjustments made in the financial statements and/or recommendation, if any, 

made by the Statutory Auditors in this regard. 

• Review of the Management Discussion & Analysis of financial and operational performance. 

• Discuss with the Statutory Auditors its judgment about the quality and appropriateness of the 
Company’s accounting principles with reference to the Indian Accounting Standards (IndAS) 

• Review the investments made by the company. 

 
Internal Financial Controls and Governance Processes: 
 
• Review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s system and internal controls. 

• Review and discuss with the Management, the Company’s major financial risk exposures and steps 

taken by the Management to monitor and control such exposure. 

• To oversee and review the functioning of a vigil mechanism (implemented in the Company as Ethical 

View Reporting Policy) and to review the findings of investigation into cases of material nature and 

the actions taken in respect thereof. 

Audit 

• Review the scope of the Statutory Auditors, the annual audit plan and the Internal Audit plan 

with a view to ensure adequate coverage. 

• Review the significant audit findings from the statutory and internal audits carried out, the 
recommendations and Management’s response thereto. 

• Review and recommend to the Board the appointment / re-appointment of the Statutory Auditors 

and Cost Auditors considering their independence and effectiveness and their replacement and 

removal. 

• Approve such additional services to be rendered by the Statutory Auditors except those 

enumerated in Section 144 of the Companies Act 2013, and payment for such services. 

• Recommend to the Board the remuneration of the Statutory Auditors / Cost Auditors 

• Discuss with the Statutory Auditors/Internal Auditor on significant difficulties encountered 

during the course of the Audit. 

• Review the annual Cost Audit Report submitted by the Cost Auditor. 
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Other Duties 

• To approve the appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the Chief Financial Officer. 

• To grant omnibus approval for related party transactions which are in the ordinary course of 

business and on an arm’s length pricing basis and to review and approve such transactions subject to 

the approval of the Board. 

 
The representatives of the Statutory Auditors are permanent invitees to the Audit Committee Meetings. 
They have attended all the Audit Committee Meetings held during the year. The Cost Auditor was 
invited to attend the Meeting of the Audit Committee when the Cost Audit Report is tabled for 
discussion. Managing Director, Chief Financial Officer (CFO), the Internal Auditor, attend the Audit 
Committee Meetings. Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the Committee. 
 
During the year under review, the Audit Committee held a separate meeting with the Statutory Auditors 
and the Internal Auditor to get their inputs on significant matters relating to their respective areas of 
Audit. 
 

Self-Assessment by the Audit Committee 

 
The Audit Committee has set in place a process to measure and benchmark its performance each year. 
The assessment broadly covers composition, structure and Committee meetings; overview of the 
financial reporting process; internal control systems and overview of internal and external audits. The 
results of the self-assessment are presented to the Audit Committee along with the action plan in the 
areas requiring improvement. 
 

Nomination and Remuneration Committee: 

 
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee presently consists of Three Non-Executive Directors, all 
being Independent Directors. The Committee met Four times during the financial year 2024-25 on the 
following dates: 30.05.2024, 14.08.2024, 14.11.2024, and 14.02.2025. The necessary quorum was present in 
the meeting. The Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee was present at the last 
Annual General Meeting of the Company held on September 26, 2024. The composition of the 
Committee during 2024-2025 and the details of meetings held and attended by the members are as under: 

 

Name o fthe Director 
Category Position 

No. of 
Meetings 
Attended 

Mr. Rajesh Sai Iyer Independent Director  Chairman 4 

Mrs. Divya Abhishek Independent Director Member 4 

Mrs. Priya Krishna Independent Director Member 4 

 
The company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the Committee. 
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The terms of reference of the Committee inter-alia, include the following: 

• Succession planning of the Board of Directors and Management Executive Committee; 

• Identifying and selection of candidates for appointment as Directors / Independent Directors based 

on certain laid down criteria; 

• Identifying potential individuals for appointment as Key Managerial Personnel and all Ex-Co Members; 

• Formulate and review from time to time the policy for selection and appointment of Directors, Key 

Managerial Personnel and Members of the Executive Committee and their remuneration; 

• Review the performance of the Board of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Members of the Executive 

Committee based on certain criteria as approved by the Board. In reviewing the overall remuneration of 

the Board of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Executive Committee Members, the Committee 

ensures that the remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate the best 

managerial talent, the relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate 

performance benchmarks and that the remuneration involves a balance between fixed and incentive pay 

reflecting shortterm and long-term objectives of the Company. 

Performance Evaluation of the Board and Individual Directors: 
 
One of the key functions of the Board is to monitor and review the Board evaluation framework. The 
Board works with the nomination and remuneration committee to lay down the evaluation criteria for 
the performance of the Chairman, the Board, Board committees, and executive / non-executive / 
independent directors through peer evaluation, excluding the director being evaluated. 
 
Independent directors have three key roles – governance, control and guidance. Some of the 
performance indicators, based on which the independent directors are evaluated, include: 

 The ability to contribute to and monitor our corporate governance practices 

 The ability to contribute by introducing international best   practices to address 

business challenges and risks 

 Active participation in long-term strategic planning 

 Commitment to the fulfilment of a director’s obligations and fiduciary responsibilities; these 
include participation in Board and committee meetings. 

 
Pursuant to the provisions of the Act and the SEBI (LODR) Regulations 2015, the Board has carried out 
the annual performance evaluation of its own performance, as well as the evaluation of the working of 
its Audit, Nomination & Remuneration and Compliance Committees respectively. A structured 
questionnaire was prepared after taking into consideration inputs received from the Directors, 
covering various aspects of the Board’s functioning such as adequacy of the composition of the Board 
and its Committees, Board culture, execution and performance of specific duties, obligations and 
governance. 
 

A separate exercise was carried out to evaluate the performance of individual Directors.The Chairman 
of the Board of Directors and the Chairman of Nomination & Remuneration Committee met all the 
Directors individually to get an overview of the functioning of the Boardand its constituents inter-alia on 
the following broad criteria i.e. attendance and level of participation, independence of judgment 
exercised by Independent Directors, interpersonal relationship etc. 
 
Based on the inputs received from the Directors, an action plan is drawn up in consultation with the 
Directors to encourage greater engagement of the Independent Directors with the Company. 
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 Remuneration to Directors: 
 
Our executive compensation programs encourage reward for performance. A significant portion of the 
executives’ total rewards is tied to the delivery of long-term corporate performance goals in order to 
align with the interest of the shareholders. The nomination and remuneration committee determines and 
recommends to the Board the compensation payable to the directors. All Board-level compensation is 
approved at the shareholders meeting or via postal ballot. As required under the Listing Regulations 
effective April 1, 2019, the nomination and remuneration committee recommend to the Board the 
payment of remuneration to the senior management. The Nomination and Remuneration Policy of the 
company is available on our website at:  https://www.tntpipes.com/index.php 
 

Remuneration to Managing Director: 
 
The remuneration paid to the Managing Director during the year was Rs.3,65,371. 

Remuneration to other Directors: 

 
The company has a policy for determining the remuneration of the Non-Executive Directors of the 
Company. The Company remunerates its Non-Executive Directors by way of sitting fees for attending each 
meeting of the Board and/or Committee, and the same is paid with in the limits laid down in the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rules framed there under. The remuneration determined for the 
Non-Executive Directors is subject to the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee and approval of the Board of Directors. The Non-Executive Directors are paid sitting fees of 
Rs.2,000/-per meeting for attending Board Meetings, Committee meetings and separate meeting of 
Independent Directors. 

 
The Remuneration drawn by the Directors and the Key Managerial Personnel during the year is as 
under: 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Name of the Director/ 
Key Managerial 

Personnel 

Salary/Professional 
charges/  

Remuneration in Rs. 

Commssion 
Rs. 

Sitting 
fees Rs. 

Total 

Rs. 

K Suresh 6,35,000 - - 6,35,000 

H Vinodh Kumar 5,71,457 - - 5,71,457 

N. Sudharsan 4,42,238 - 20,000 4,62,238 

Krishna Kamal Shukla 7,68,984 - 12,000 7,80,984 

Ram Ashish Singh 5,86,920 - 8,000 5,94,920 

Bivashwa Das             3,65,371 - 10,000 3,75,371 

Rajesh Sai Iyer - - 32,000 32,000 

R Sathya Narayanan - - 2,000 2,000 

Divya Abhishek - - 30,000 30,000 

Priya Krishna   30,000 30,000 

M. Indumathi   10,000 10,000 

TOTAL 33,69,970 - 1,54,000 35,23,970 

https://www.tntpipes.com/index.php
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Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee: 

 
The Company’s Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee is responsible for the satisfactory redressal of 
investor grievance. During the year under review, the Committee met once on May 30, 2024. The 
composition and details of the meetings attended as on 30.05.2024 by the members are given below: 
 

Name of the Director Category Position No. of 

Meetings

Attended 

Mr. Krishnan Kamal Shukla  Whole Time Director, Executive Chairman 1 

Mr. N Sudharsan Whole Time Director, Executive Member 1 

Mr. Rajesh Sai Iyer  Independent, Non-Executive Member 1 

Mrs. Divya Abhishek Independent, Non-Executive Member 1 

Mrs. Priya Krishna Independent, Non-Executive Member 1 

 
Company Secretary is the“Compliance Officer” who oversees the redressal of the investors’ grievances. 
All the Members of the above Committee have attended the Annual General Meeting of the Company. 
During the year, no complaints were received from shareholders. As on March 31, 2025, no investor 
grievance has remained unattended / pending for more than thirty days.   

Terms of Reference 

• The Committee act in accordance with the terms of reference which shall, interalia, include: 

• To approve transfer / transmission of shares/debentures and such other securities as may be issued by the 

Company from time to time; 

• Issue of duplicate share certificates in respect of shares/debentures and other securities reported 

lost, defaced or destroyed as per the laid down procedure; 

• To issue new certificates against subdivision of shares, renewal, split or consolidation of share 

certificates/certificates relating to other securities; 

• To approve and monitor dematerialization of shares/debentures/other securities and all matters 

incidental or related thereto; 

• To authorize the Company Secretary & Head Compliance / other Officers of the Share Department to 

attend to matters relating to non-receipt of annual reports, notice, non-receipt of declared 

dividend/interest, change of address for correspondence etc. and to monitor action taken. 

• To authorize the Company Secretary & Head Compliance / other officers of the Share Department to 

attend to matters relating to transfer/transmission ofshares, issue of duplicate share certificates for shares 

reported lost, defaced or destroyed, to issue new certificates against subdivision of shares and renewal, 

split or consolidation of share certificates; 

• To monitor Investor Relation activities of the Company and to give guidance on the flow of information 

from the Company to the Investors; 

• To monitor expeditious redressal of grievances of shareholders/security holders including complaints 

relating to transfer /transmission of shares/securities, Annual Reports, issue of duplicate certificates and 

other complaints; 

• All other matters incidental or related to shares, debentures and other securities of the Company. 



46h Annual Report 2024-25 

 

 

Page 84 

 

 

 
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee: 
 
Due to heavy competition and unstable steel price in the market, normal operations are impeded and 

your Company earned meagre profit during this financial year 2024-25. Hence the provisions of 

Corporate Social Responsibility is not applicable. However, the Committee met once on 14th Nov. 2024 to 

review the existing CSR Policy and to make it more comprehensive so as to indicate the activities to 

be undertaken by the Company. 

 
The details of Members’ participation at the Meetings and composition of the Corporate Social 
Responsibility (CSR) Committee as at March 31, 2025 are as under: 

 

 
Name of the Director 

 
Category 

 
Position 

No.  of 

Meetings 

Attended 

Mr. Rajesh Sai Iyer Independent, Non-Executive Chairman 1 

Mr. Bivashwa Das Managing Director- Whole Time 
Director, 

Member 1 

Mr. Krishnan Kamal Shukla Whole Time Director, Executive Member 1 

Mr. Ram Ashish Singh Whole Time Director, Executive  Member 1 

The company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the Committee. 

Risk Management & Vigil Mechanism Committee: 

 
The primary objectives of the Committee are to assist the Board in the following: 

i. To assist the Board in fulfilling its corporate governance oversight responsibilities with 

regard to the identification, evaluation and mitigation of strategic, operational, and 

external environment risks 

ii. To monitor and approve the enterprise risk management framework and associated 

practices of the Company 

iii. To periodically assess risks to the effective execution of business strategy by reviewing 

key leading indicators in this regard 

iv. To periodically review the risk management processes and practices of the Company and 

ensure that the Company is taking the appropriate measures to achieve prudent balance 

between risk and reward in both ongoing and new business activities 

v. To evaluate significant risk exposures of the Company and assess the Management’s Actions to  
mitigate the exposures in a timely manner 

vi.  To coordinate its activities with the audit committee in instances where there is any overlap with 
audit activities 

vii. To review and reassess the adequacy of the Charter periodically and recommend any   

proposed changes to the Board for approval 
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viii. To ensure access to any internal information necessary to fulfil its oversight role and 

obtain advice and assistance from internal or external legal, accounting or other advisors 

 
The Committee met once during the year under report on May 30th, 2024. The details of Members’ 
participation at the Meetings and composition of the Committee as at March 31, 2025 is as under: 

  

 
Name of the Director 

 
Category 

 
Position 

No. of 

Meetings

Attended 

Mr. Rajesh Sai Iyer Independent, Non-Executive Member 1 

Mr. N Sudharsan Whole Time Director, Executive Chairman 1 

Mr. Bivashwa Das Whole Time Director, Managing 
Director 

Member 1 

 

Health Safety, Environment and Women Protection Committee: 

 

The details of Members’ participation at the Meeting and composition of the HS Environment and Women 
Protection Committee as at March 31, 2025 are as under: 

 
During the year under review, the Committee met once on 14.08.2024. The composition and details of the 
meeting are given below: 
 

 
Name of the Director 

 
Category 

 
Position 

No. of 

Meetings

Attended 

Mrs Divya Abhishek Independent, Non-Executive Chairperson  1 

Mrs.Priya Krishna Independent, Non-Executive Member           1 

Ms. M Indumathi   Independent, Non-Executive Member           1 

Mr. Bivashwa Das Whole Time Director, Managing 
Director 

Member           1 

4.  GENERAL BODY MEETINGS: 

 
Details of the location of the last three Annual General Meetings (AGM) and details of the 
special resolutions passed: 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
All special resolutions set out in the Notices for the Annual General Meetings were passed by the 
Members at the respective meetings with requisite majority. 

Annual General 

Meeting (AGM) 

 
Date 

 
Time 

 
Venue 

No. of Special 

Resolutions 

Passed 

43rd 
 

23.09.2022  10.00 AM Video Conference 5 

44th 20.09.2023  10.00  AM Video Conference 3 

45th 26.09.2024  10.00  AM Video Conference 4 
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5. Participation and voting at 46h AGM 
 
Pursuant to the General Circular numbers 20/2020,14/2020, 17/2020,39/2020 and 02/2021 issued by 
the MCA Circular Dt. 25.09.2023 as well as General Circular No.09/2024, dt. 19.09.2024, and Circular 
No. SEBI/HO/CFD/ CMD1/CIR/P/2020/79 and  SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/ CIR/ P/2021/11 issued by SEBI, the 
46th AGM of the Company will be held through video-conferencing (VC)and other audio-visual means (OAVM)  
the detailed instructions for participation and voting at the meeting is available in the notice of the 
46th AGM. 

 

POSTAL BALLOTS: 
 

No resolutions were passed through postal ballot during the last financial year. 
 
 
6. INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 
 
The Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulations define an ‘independent director’ as a person who 
is not a promoter or employee or one of the key managerial personnel of the company or its 
subsidiaries. Further, the person should not have a material pecuniary relationship or transactions with 
the company or its subsidiaries, during the two immediately preceding financial years or during the 
current financial year, apart from receiving remuneration as an independent director. We abide by 
these definitions of independent director. Based on the disclosures received from all the independent 
directors and in the opinion of the Board, the independent directors fulfil the conditions specified in 
the Companies Act, 2013, the Listing Regulations and are independent of the Management. 
 
Independent Directors plays an important role in the governance processes of the Board. With different 
points of views flowing from their expertise and experience they enrich the decision-making process at the 
Board and prevent conflicts of interest in the decision-making process. 
 
The appointment of the Independent Directors is carried out in a structured manner.The Nomination & 
Remuneration Committee identifies potential candidates based on certain laid down criteria and takes 
into consideration the diversity of the Board. 

 
None of the Independent Directors serve as “Independent Directors” in more than seven listed companies. 

Meeting of Independent Directors: 
 
Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules there under mandate that the independent 
directors of the Company shall hold atleast one meeting in a year, without the attendance of non-
independent directors and members of the Management.At such meetings, the independent directors 
discuss, among other matters, the performance of the Company and risks faced by it, the flow of 
information to the Board, competition, strategy, leadership strengths and weaknesses, governance, 
compliance, Board movements, human resource matters and performance of the executive members of 
the Board, including the Chairman. During the year under review, the Independent Directors met once on 
14.02.2025. The Independent Directors discussed and reviewed the matters specified in Regulation 25 
(4) of the Listing Regulations and as per provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 
All the Independent Directors were present throughout the Meeting. They expressed satisfaction at the 
robustness of the evaluation process, the Board’s freedom to express views on the business transacted at 
the Meetings and the openness with which the Management discussed various subject matters on the 
agenda of meetings. Their suggestions were discussed at the Board Meeting and are being implemented 
to ensure a more robust interaction at a Board level / Management level. 
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INDUCTION PROGRAMME FOR NEW DIRECTORS AND ON-GOING FAMILIARIZATION 

PROGRAMME FOR EXISTING INDEPENDENT & NON-INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR. 

 
All new non-executive directors inducted to the Board are introduced to our Company culture through 
orientation sessions. Executive directors and senior management provide an overview of operations, and 
familiarize the new non-executive directors on matters related to our values and commitments. They are 
also introduced to the organization structure, services, Group structure and subsidiaries, constitution, 
Board procedures, matters reserved for the Board, major risks and risk management strategy. The details 
of the familiarization program are also available on the Company’s website, at https://www.tntpipes.com 
 
An appropriate induction programme for new Directors and an ongoing familiarization with respect to 
the business/working of the Company for all Directors is a major contributor for meaningful Board 
level deliberations and sound business decisions. 
 
At the time of appointing a Director, a formal letter of appointment is given to the Director, inter alia, 
explains his / her role, function, duties and responsibilities and the Board’s expectations  from him / her as 
a Director of the Company. The Director is also explained in detail the compliances required from him / 
her under the Act, SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 and other relevant regulation sand his/her affirmation 
taken with respect to the same. 
 
By way of an introduction to the Company, the Director is presented with a book on the Company which 
traces its history over 45 years so fits existence, relevant Annual Reports, Sustainable Development 
Report, brochure on the CSR activities pursued by the Company. 
 
A presentation is also shared with the newly appointed Director giving an  overarching perspective of 
the steel pipe Industry, organizational set-up of the Company, the functioning of various 
divisions/departments, the Company’s market share and the markets in which it operates governance 
and internal control processes and other relevant information pertaining to the Company’s business. 
 
Further, as an ongoing process, the Board of Directors is updated on a quarterly basis through presentations 
and discussions on the overall economic trends, the performance of the Steel Industry and that of the 
Company, analysis of the circumstances which helped or adversely impacted the Company’s 
performance, comparison of the Company’s performance, with its peers in the Industry based on the 
information available in public domain, and the initiatives taken / proposed to be taken to bring about 
an overall improvement in the performance of the Company, marketing strategy, business risks and 
mitigation plans etc. 

 

The Act facilitates the participation of a Director in Board / Committee Meetings through video conference 
or other audio-visual mode. Accordingly, the option to participate in the Meeting through video conference 
was made available for the Directors except in respect of such items which are not permitted to be 
transacted through video conference. Due to Covid-19 Pandemic, MCA permitted to transact all the 
businesses through Video Conferences. 
 

 7. DUTIES AND FUNCTIONS OF THE BOARD  

 
The Board of Directors provide strategic guidance, monitors operational performance and ensures that 
robust policies and procedures are in place and through its various Committees guarantees the quality 
of the Company’s risk management, internal controls and ensures compliance with all relevant laws. In 
particular, the Board periodically reviews the items required to be placed before it and reviews and 
approves quarterly unaudited financial statements and the audited annual financial statements, corporate 
strategies, business plans, annual budgets. 
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The primary role of the Board is that of trusteeship – to protect and enhance shareholder value through 
strategic direction to the Company. 

 As trustees, the Board has a fiduciary responsibility to ensure that the Company has 

clear goals aligned to shareholder value and its growth. 

 It also directs and exercises appropriate control to ensure that the Company is managed in a 
manner that fulfils stakeholders’ aspirations and societal expectations.  

 

 It monitors the effectiveness of the Company’s governance practices and makes changes as 
needed. 

 It provides strategic guidance to the Company, ensures effective monitoring of the 
Management and is accountable to the Company and the shareholders. 

 It exercises independent judgment on corporate affairs. 

 It assigns sufficient number of non-executive members of the Board of Directors 

capable of exercising independent judgment in tasks where there is a potential for 

conflict of interest. 

 It reviews and guides corporate strategy, major plans of action, risk policy, annual 

budgets and business plans, setting performance objectives, monitoring 

implementation and corporate performance, and overseeing major capital 

expenditures, acquisitions and divestments. 

8. DISCLOSURES: 

a) Indian Accounting Standards (Ind-AS) 
The Company has been adopted “Ind-AS” with effect from April, 2017. The implementation of “Ind-AS” is a 
major change process for which the Company has established a project team and has dedicated 
considerable resources. 
 

b) Related Party Transactions 
The Company has formulated a policy on Materiality of and dealing with Related Party 
Transactions.There have been no materially significant related party transactions, monetary 
transactions or relationships between the Company and its directors, the Management, subsidiaries or 
relatives during the year, except for those disclosed in the Board’s report. 
 
c) Compliance / Strictures and Penalties 
There was no non-compliance by the Company and no penalties or strictures were imposed on the 
Company by the Stock Exchanges or Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI), or any statutory 
authority on any matter related to the capital markets during the last three years. 
 

d) Whistle Blower Policy 
Pursuant to Section 177(9) and (10) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the provisions of SEBI(Listing 
Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Company has a Whistle Blower Policy for 
establishing a vigil mechanism for Directors and employees to report genuine concerns regarding unethical 
behaviour, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Company’s Code of Conduct. The said 
mechanism also provides for adequate safeguards against victimization of persons who use such 
mechanism and makes provision for direct access to the Chairperson of the Audit Committee in 
appropriate or exceptional cases. We affirm that no employee of the Company was denied access to the 
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Audit Committee. 
 

e) Code of Business Conduct 
The Board of Directors has approved a Code of Business Conduct which is applicable to the Members of 
the Board and to all employees. The Company follows a policy of“Zero Tolerance” to bribery and 
corruption in any form and the Board has laid down the “Anti Bribery & Corruption Directive” which 
forms an Appendix to the Code. 
 
The code lays down the standard of conduct which is expected to be followed by the Directors and by the 
employees in their business dealings and in particular on matters relating to integrity in the workplace, 
in business practices and in dealing with stakeholders. The code gives guidance through examples on 
the expected behaviour from an employee in a given situation and the reporting structure. 
 
All the Board Members and the Senior Management personnel have confirmed compliance with the 
Code. All Management Staff were required to complete an e-learning module, in addition to a face-to-
face training given by the Company from time to time. 

Details of Compliance with Mandatory requirements and Adoption of the Non-Mandatory 

requirements under the Listing Regulations  

 
During the year, the Company has complied with the mandatory requirements as stipulated in Listing 
Regulations. With respect to the compliance with the non-mandatory requirements pursuant to 
Regulation 27(1) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Company has adopted the following non-
mandatory requirements: 

i) The Chairman being Non-Executive Director, an office is made available for his use 

during his visits to the Company and is reimbursed the expenses incurred towards 

the performance of his duties. 

ii) During the year under review, there is no audit qualification on the Company’s 

financial statements. Your Company continues to adopt best practices to ensure a 

regime of unmodified audit opinion. 

iii) The position of Chairperson of Board and the Managing Director are separate. 

 
 iv) The Internal Auditor of the Company reports to the Chief Financial Officer and has direct   

  access to the Audit Committee. 

f) Subsidiary and Associates 
During the year ended March 31, 2025, the Company does not have any listed / unlisted subsidiary and 
Associate companies as defined in Regulation 16 of the Listing Regulations. 

g) Prevention of Insider Trading 
In January 2015, SEBI notified the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 which came into 
effect from May 15, 2015. Pursuant thereto, the Company has formulated and adopted a new code for 
Prevention of Insider trading. 
 
The code “Code of Internal Procedures and Conduct for Regulating, Monitoring and Reporting of Trading 
by Insiders” and the “Code of Practices and Procedures for Fair Disclosure of Unpublished Price 
Sensitive Information allows the formulation of a trading plan subject to certain conditions and 
requires pre-clearance for dealing in the Company’s shares. It also prohibits the purchase or sale of 
company’s shares by the Directors, designed employees and connected persons, while in possession of 
unpublished price sensitive information (UPSI) in relation to the Company and during the period when 
the Trading Window is closed. 
 
The company Secretary & Head Compliance is responsible for implementation of the code and the company 
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has also installed the SDD Software as mandated by the SEBI to curb and prevent the insider’s trading.  All 
Board of Directors, designated employees and connected persons have affirmed compliance with the 
Code. 
 
9. CEO /CFO Certification: 
 
The Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer (CFO) have issued certificate pursuant to the 
provisions of Regulation 17(8) of the Listing Regulations certifying that the financial statements do not 
contain any materially untrue statement and these statements represent a true and fairview of the 
Company’s affairs.The certificate is attached to this report. 

 

10. MEANS OF COMMUNICATON: 
 
The company follows a robust process of communicating with its stakeholders/shareholders and 
investors through multiple channels of communication ssuch as dissemination of information  on the 
online portal of the Stock Exchanges, press releases, the Annual Reports and uploading relevant 
information on its website. 
 
The unaudited quarterly results are announced within forty-five days of the close of the quarter.The 
audited annual results a reannounced within two months from the close of the financial year as 
required under SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The aforesaid 
financial results are announced to the Stock Exchanges immediately after the approval of the Board. 
The results are generally published in Trinity Mirror (English). The Tamil translation of the same is 
published in Makkal Kural, which are regional daily newspapers. 
 
The audited financial statements form part of the Annual Report which is sent to the Members within the 
statutory period and well in advance of the Annual General Meeting. 
 
The Annual Report of the Company, the quarterly / half yearly and the audited financial statements 
and the press releases of the Company are also placed on the Company’s website 
https://www.tntpipes.com and can be downloaded. 
 
The presentations on the performance of the Company are placed on the Company’s website immediately 
after these are communicated to the Stock Exchange for the benefits of the institutional investors and 
analysts and other shareholders. 
 
The company discloses to the Stock Exchange, all information required to be disclosed under Regulation 
30 read with Part A of Schedule III of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, including material information having a bearing on the performance/operations of 
the listed entity or other price sensitive information. All information is filed electronically on BSE’s 
online Portal – BSE Corporate Compliance & Listing Centre (Listing Centre).  
 
The Board of Directors has approved a policy for determining materiality of events for the purpose of 
making disclosure to the Stock Exchange. 

 
All disclosures made to the stock exchange are also available on the Company’s website under  the heading 
‘INVESTORS’. 
 
Facility has been provided by SEBI for investors to place their complaints / grievances on acentralized 
web-based complaints redressal system viz. SEBI Complaints Redress System (SCORES). The salient 
features of this system are: Centralized database of all complaints, online upload of Action Taken Reports 
(ATRs) by the concerned companies and online viewing by investors of actions taken on the complaint 
and its current status. 

 
A separate dedicated section under ‘Investors’, under sub heading ‘Financial Reporting’ on the 
Company’s website gives information on Quarterly Financial Results, Corporate Governance Report, 
Auditors’ Limited Review Reports, and other relevant information of interest to the investors / public. 
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The company also uploads on the BSE Listing Centre Portal, details of all notices, Resolutions and other 
relevant information of interest to the Investors as per SEBI (LODR) Regulations 2015. 

11. GENERAL INFORMATION TO SHAREHOLDERS: 

Financial Year: 1st April, 2024 to 31st March, 2025  

Registrar and Transfer Agents and Share Transfer System 
 
The Company has appointed Registrar and Transfer Agents (RTA) – M/s. Cameo Corporate Services Ltd, 
No.1, Club House Road, Chennai–600 002 who offer all share related services to its Members and Investors. 
These services include transfer/transmission/dematerialization of shares/consolidation/Split/renewal of 
share certificates, issuance of duplicate share certificates, change of address and investor grievances. 
 
12. COMMUNICATION TO MEMBERS: 
 
Members who hold shares in dematerialized form should correspond with the Depository Participant 
with whom they maintain their Demat Account/s, for queries relating to shareholding, change of 
address. However, queries relating to non- receipt of annual reports or on matters relating to the 
working of the Company should be addressed to the Company. 
 
Members who hold shares in physical form should address their queries to the Registrar & Transfer 
Agents. 
 
Members are requested to ensure that correspondence for change of address, sub division of shares, 
renewals/split/consolidation of share certificates, issue of duplicate share certificates should be signed by 
the first named Member as per the specimen signature registered with the Company. The Company 
may also, with a view to safeguard the interest of its Members and that of the Company, request for 
additional supporting documents such as certified copies of PAN, Aadhar Cards and other proof of identity 
and / or address. 
 
Members are requested to indicate their DP ID & Client ID / Ledger Folio number in their 
correspondence with the Company to the Registrar & Transfer Agents and also to provide their E mail 
addresses and telephone/Mobile numbers / FAX numbers to facilitate prompt response from the 
Registrar & Transfer Agents. 
 

13. MARKET INFORMATION 
 
Listing of Stock Exchange 
The Company’s shares are listed on the following Stock Exchange and the listing fees have been paid to the 
Exchanges for the Financial Year 2025-26. 

 

Name and Address of the Stock 

Exchange 

 
Stock Code/Scrip Code 

ISIN Number for NSDL/ 

CDSL/ (Dematerialized 

shares) 

 

Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd. 

Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers Dalal Street, 

Mumbai – 400001 

 

513540 

 

INE176E01012 
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Market Price Data: High, Low (based on daily closing prices) and volume (no. of shares  
Traded) during each month in FY 2024-25 of Fully Paid-up Ordinary Shares, on BSE Limited: 

 
 
The Company’s shares are regularly traded on BSE Limited, as is seen from the volume of Shares 
indicated in the Table above containing Market information (source: BSE Website). 

SHARE TRANSFER SYSTEM / OTHER RELATED MATTERS: 

i. Share Transfer:  
Share transfers in physical form are processed by the Company’s Registrar & Transfer Agents, M/s. Cameo 
Corporate Services Ltd, Chennai, and the share certificates are generally returned to the transferees within 
a period of fifteen days from the date of receipt of transfer provided the transfer documents lodged with 
the Registrar Transfer Agents are complete in all respects. Incomplete Share Transfer forms are rejected / 
returned to the Transferee/s immediately by the Registrar Transfer Agents by Registered Post. 
 

ii. Nomination facility for shareholding 
 
As per the provisions of the Act, facility for making nomination is available for Members in respect of 

shares held by them. Members holding shares in physical form may obtain a nomination form, from the 

Registrar Transfer Agents of the company. Members holding shares in dematerialized form should contact 

their Depository Participants (DP) in this regard. 

Permanent Account Number (PAN) & Aadhar 
 
Members who hold shares in physical form are advised that SEBI has made it mandatory that a copies of the 

PAN & Aadhar cards of the transferor(s), transferee(s), members, surviving joint holders / legal heirs 

be furnished to the Registrar Transfer Agents, while obtaining the services of transfer, transposition, 

transmission and issue of duplicate share certificates. 
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iii. Pending Investors’ Grievances 
 
Any Member / Investor, whose grievance has not been resolved satisfactorily, may kindly write to the 

Registrar Transfer Agents or to the Company Secretary & Head Compliance at the Registered Office 

with a copy of the earlier correspondence. 

iv. Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit 
 
As required by the Securities & Exchange Board of India (SEBI), quarterly audit of the company’s share 

capital is being carried out by the Statutory Auditors with a view to reconcile the total share capital 

admitted with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services(India) 

Limited(CDSL) held in physical form, with the issue and listed capital. The Company has received circular 

from BSE vide their mail dated 19.06.2017 wherein they have intimated that filing of reconciliation of share 

capital audit report (REG55A) should be in XBRL mode with effect from 01.07.2017 onwards which is 

mandatory. Accordingly, the Auditors’ Certificate has been obtained by the company and filed in XBRL 

mode along with original share capital audit report in PDF file. The said report is also placed before 

Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee and the Board of Directors. 

 

No.of 

Shareh

olders 

 

Physical 

 

% of 

share 

capital 

 

NSDL 

 

% of 

share 

capital 

 

CDSL 

% 

Of 

share

capital 

 
Total 

No.of 

shares 

% 

of share 

capital 

13,674 

 

21,76,900 42.48 27,78,250 54.21 1,69,650 3.31 51,24,800 100% 

 

 
v. Distribution of Share holding as on March 31, 2025 
 
 

Category (Shares) 

in Rs.) 

No. of Share 

Holders 

% of Share 

Holders 

No. of Shares % of Total 

Shares 

10-5000 13,174 96.34 1,70,73,000 33.31 

5001-10000 302 2.20 24,46,000 4.78 

10001-20000 112 0.82 17,17,000 3.35 

20001-30000 31 0.23 7,77,000 1.52 

30001-40000 13 0.10 4,72,000 0.92 

40001-50000 5 0.04 2,36,000 0.46 

50001-100000 16 0.12 12,14,900 2.37 

100001-and above 21 0.15 2,73,12,100 53.29 

Total 13,674 100.00 5,12,48,000 100.00 
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vi. DEMATERIALIZATION OF SHARES:   
 

Mode of Holding No. of Holders No. of Shares Percentage 

NSDL 813 27,78,250 54.21 

CDSL 419 1,69,650 3.31 

PHYSICAL 12,442 21,76,900 42.48 

Total 13,674 51,24,800 100.00 

 Total Holders: 13,644 after merging of first holder’s PAN  

The Company has entered into Agreements with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) as well 

as Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) whereby Members have an option to 

dematerialize their shares with these Depositories. 

 
Members holding shares in physical mode are urged in their own interest to hold these shares in 

dematerialized form with the Depository Participant. 

 
vii. Statement showing Shareholding of more than 1% of the Share Capital as on 31st March,    
2025:  
 

Sl.No. 
FolioNo./Client 

ID 

Names of the Share 

holders 

Number 

of shares 

Percentage 

of capital 

1 IN301330 

21533706 

Kareetem Traders Limited 10,05,000 19.61 

2 IN301080 

22842614 

Saatvik Goyal 6,40,600 12.50 

3 IN301080 

22842462 

Rakesh Goyal 1,91,010 3.73 

4 IN301080 

22818381 

Seema Goyal 2,51,560 4.91 

5 IN301080 

22818373 

Rakesh Goyal 1,62,740 3.17 

6 IN301080 

22818164 

Durga Devi Goyal 93,500 1.82 

7     IN300812 

    10488097 

Bank of India 70,600 1.38 

8 IN301330 

21776107 

P R Shankar(HUF) 58,900 1.14 

9 IN301080 

22854264 

P R Shankar 50,700 0.98 

10 00024540 Vinod Kumar DUA 29,400 0.57 

 Total  25,54,010 49.81 

 
 
Global Depository Receipts (GDR) / American Depository Receipts (ADR)/Warrants or any  
Convertible instrument, conversion dates and likely impact on Equity: NIL 
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FINANCIAL CALENDAR 2024-25 
 
 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Address for Correspondence: 

Investors can communicate at the following addressee 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Mr.K  Suresh –Company Secretary M/s.CAMEO Corporate Services limited 

TAMILNADU STEEL TUBES LIMITED    
 No.22, 1st Floor, Wheatcroft Road, 
Nungambakkam, Chennai – 600 034. TamilNadu 
Phone044-28555653/28555733; 
FaxN:044 – 2855 5643 
E-mail: tnt.share@yahoo.in 
Website:www.tntpipes.com 
 

Registrar & Transfer Agent Subramanian 
Building 
1, Club House Road, 
Chennai-600002, TamilNadu Phone:044-
40020723 
Email:cameo@cameoindia.commurali@ca
meoindia.com 

Board Meeting for consideration of Accounts 

for the financial year ended March 31,2025 
       MAY 24, 2025 

 

Posting of Annual Reports       29th August  2025 

Book Closure Dates       18.09.2025 to 24.09.2025 

Date, time & Venue of the 46th Annual General 
Meeting 

24-09-2025 (Wednesday) at 10.00 A M  
through  V.C. at the Regd. Office of the 
Company 
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MANAGING DIRECTOR’S DECLARATION FOR COMPLIANCE WITH 

CODE OF CONDUCT 

 
To: 

The Members 
Tamilnadu Steel Tubes Limited 

 

 
I here by confirm that all the members of the Board and Senior Management have affirmed 
compliance with the Code of Conduct framed by the Company. 

 
For and on behalf of the Board 

 

Sd/- 

Place: Chennai                                                                          BIVASHWADAS 
Date:14.08.2025                                                                         Managing Director 

 

 

 

MANAGING DIRECTOR / CFO CERTIFICATION 
 

We the undersigned, in our respective capacities as Managing Director and Chief Financial 
Officer of Tamilnadu Steel Tubes Limited (“the Company”) to the best of our knowledge and 
belief certify that: 
 

(a) We have reviewed Financial Statements and the Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 

March 31, 2025 and that to the best of our knowledge and belief: 

 

i) These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material factor 

contain statements that might be misleading; 

 

ii) These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in 

compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations. 

 

(b) There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the 

Company during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s Code of 

Conduct. 

 

(c) We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining Internal Controls for financial 

reporting and that we have evaluated the effectiveness of Internal Control systems of the 

Company pertaining to financial reporting and we have disclosed to the Auditors and the 

Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such Internal Controls, if any, 

of which we are aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these 
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deficiencies. 

 
 

(d) We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee: 

 
i) Significant changes in the Internal Control over financial reporting during the 

year ended March 31, 2025 

 

ii) Significant changes in accounting polices during the year ended March 31, 

2025 and that the same have been disclosed in the notes to  the Financial 

Statements, if any; and 

 

iii) Instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the 

involvement therein, if any, of the management or an employee having a 

significant role in the Company’s Internal Control System over financial reporting. 

 
 

 

                                                                         For and on behalf of the Board 
 
 

 
 

    

Sd/- 

BIVAHWA DAS 

Managing Director 

DIN: 07352655 

 

Place: Chennai  

Date: 14.08.2025  

 

 

Note: The CFO has resigned on 31.07.2025 and hence was not available for signing this certificate 
along with Managing Director.
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Independent Auditors’ Certificate on Compliance with the Corporate Governance 

requirements under SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 

  
 

1. This certificate is issued in accordance with the terms of our agreement dated 

14th August, 2025. 

 

2. This report contains details of compliance of conditions of Corporate 

Governance by Tamil Nadu Steel Tubes Limited (‘the Company’) for the year 

ended March 31,2025 as stipulated in Regulations 17-27, clause(b) to (i) 

of Regulation 46 (2) and paragraphs C, D and E of Schedule V of the Securitie 

sand Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘Listing Regulations’) pursuant to the 

Listing Agreement of the Company with Stock Exchanges. 

Management’s Responsibility for compliance with the conditions of Listing Regulations. 

 
3. The compliance with the terms and conditions contained in the 

CorporateGovernanceistheresponsibility of the Management of the 

Company including the preparation and maintenance of all relevant 

supporting records and documents. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

 
4. Our examination was limited to procedures and implementation thereof 

adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of 

Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on 

the financial statements of the Company. 

5. Pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Regulations, it is our 

responsibility to provide a reasonable assurance whether the Company 

has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated 

in Listing Regulations for the year ended March 31, 2025 

6. We conducted our examination in accordance with the Guidance Note on 

Reports or Certificates for Special Purposes issued by the Institute of 

Chartered Accountants of India. The Guidance Note requires that we comply 

with the ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of 

Chartered Accountants of India. We have complied with the relevant 

applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality Control (SQC) 1, Quality 

Control for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Historical Financial 

Information, and Other Assurance and Related Services Engagements. 
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Opinion 

7. In our opinion, and to the best of our information and according to 

explanations given to us, we certify that the Company has complied with the 

conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above-mentioned 

Listing Regulations. 

 

We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future 
viability of the Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which 
the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

 
 

Restriction on use 
 

8. The certificate is addressed and provided to the members of the 

Company solely for the purpose to enable the Company to comply with 

the requirement of the Listing Regulations, and it should not be used by 

anyother person or for any other purpose. Accordingly, we do not accept 

orassume any liability or any duty of care for any other purpose or to any 

other person to whom this certificate is shown or into whose hands it may 

come without our prior consent in writing. 

 
 
 
 

    For DPV & Associates 

                                           Chartered  Accountants 

Firm’s  Registration No:011688S 

 
 

 
Place: Chennai 

Date : 14-08-2025 

 
                                                        CA Vaira Mutthu K 

Partner   

M.No.218791 
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ANNEXURE–X 

 
Disclosures with respect to Employees’ Stock Option Scheme, 2006 of the Company pursuant to 
Regulation 14 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (share Based Employee Benefits) 
Regulations, 2014 as on March 31,2025:  

 
(A) Relevant disclosures in terms of the ‘guidance note on accounting for employee 

share-based payments’ issued by ICAI or any other relevant accounting standards 

as prescribed from time to time. Members may refer to the audited financial 

statement prepared as per Ind-AS for the year 2024-25. 

 

(B) Diluted Earnings per Share (EPS) pursuant to issue of shares on exercise of options 

calculated in accordance with Ind-AS 33 (Earnings per Share). Diluted EPS for the year 

ended March 31, 2025 is Re.0.19 per share calculated in accordance with Ind-AS33 

(Earnings per Share). 

 

(C) Details related to Employees’ Stock Option Scheme, 2006 (“ESOS”) 
 

(i) The description including terms and conditions of ESOS are summarized as 

under: 
 

(a) Date of shareholder’s approval NIL 

(b) Total number of options approved under ESOS: NIL 

(c) Vesting requirement NIL 

(d) Exercise Price or pricing formula NIL 

(e) Maximum term of option granted NIL 

(f) Source of shares(Primary, secondary or combination) NIL 

(g) Variation in terms of options NIL 

(a) Number of options outstanding at the beginning of year NIL 

(b) Number of options granted during the year. NIL 

 (c) Number of options forfeited/lapsed during the year NIL 

(d) Number of options vested during the year NIL 

(e) Number of options exercised during the year NIL 

(f) Number of shares arising as a result of exercise of options NIL 

(g) Money realized by exercise of options (Rs.) NIL 

(h) Loan repaid by the Trust during the year from exercise price received NIL 

  (i) Number of options outstanding at the end of the year NIL 

(j) Number of options exercisable at the end of the year NIL 
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(iii) Employee wise details of options granted during the year: 
 

(a) Key managerial personnel and senior managerial personnel – Nil 
 

(b) Any other employee who receives a grant in any one year of options amounting 

to 5% or more of options granted during that year – Nil 

 

(c) Identified employees who were granted options, during any one year, equal to 

or exceeding 1% of the issued capital (excluding outstanding warrants and 

conversions) of the Company at the time of grant – Nil 

 
 
 
 

For and on behalf of the Board 

 
  Sd/- 

N.SUDHARSAN

DIN: 08562284 

 
Sd/- 

BIVASHWA DAS 

 DIN:07352655 

Place: Chennai  

Date: 14.08.2025 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



46h Annual Report 2024-25 

 

 

Page 102 

 

 

 
 
The following table sets forth the breakup of the Company’s expenses as part of the Revenue 

               From operations (Net)  
 

PARTICULARS 2024-25 
% Of Revenue 

from operations 
2023-24 

% Of Revenue 

from operations 

Net sales 73.86 99.80%  71.50  99.30% 

Other operating revenue 0.17 0.20%  0.50  0.70% 

Revenue from operations 
(net) 

74.02 100.00  72.00  100.00 

Cost of materials consumed 67.71 91.47%  65.10  90.43% 

Changes in inventories of 

finished goods, work in 

Progress and Stock in Trade 

 

(2.16) 

 

-2.92% 

 

 (0.98) 

 

-1.36% 

Employee benefits expense 4.26 5.76%  3.99  5.55% 

Power and fuel 1.40 1.89%  1.12  1.55% 

Freight and Forwarding 
expense 

0.41 0.55%  0.31  0.43% 

Finance costs 0.64 0.87%  0.59  0.82% 

Depreciation and 

amortization expense 
0.34 0.46%  0.34  0.47% 

Other expenses (including Self 
Consumption of pipes) 

1.29 1.74%  1.43  1.99% 

 73.90 99.83%  71.91  99.88% 

Profit before exception 

item and tax 
0.13 0.17%  0.09  0.12% 

Exceptional item - 0.00%  -    0.00% 

Profit before tax 0.13 0.17%  0.09  0.12% 

Tax expenses / (write back) (0.03) (0.04)%  (0.20) -0.27% 

Profit for the year 0.10 0.13%  0.28  0.39% 

 
During the Financial year 2024-25, the Company has recorded a Profit after tax of Rs.0.10 
Crore as compared to Rs.0.28 Crore profit in the Financial Year 2023-24. 
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Analysis of Standalone Financial 
(Break up Details) 

 

         1. Revenue from Operations (Net): 
                                                                                                    [Figures in Rs.Crores] 

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24 Change Change % 

Steel Tubes (Black and GI pipes only)      73.86       71.50        2.36  3.30% 

 Revenue from operations (net) has increased due to marginal increase in price and demand. 

 

2. Other Income: 
                                                                                                               [Figures in Rs. Crores] 

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24 Change Change % 

Other income        0.17         0.50       (0.34) -67.04% 

Other income has decreased due to reduction in discount received and zero profit on sale of 
fixed assets as compared to to last year. 

  3. Cost of Materials Consumed: 
                                                                                                    [Figures in Rs. Crores] 

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24 Change Change % 

Cost of materials consumed      67.71       65.10        2.61  4.00% 

Cost of materials consumed has increased due to increase in raw material prices.  

4. Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Work in Progress and Stock in Trade: 
                                                                                                    [Figures in Rs. Crores] 

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24 Change Change % 

Changes in inventories of finished 

goods, work in progress and Stock in 

Trade. 
      (2.16)       (0.98)      (1.19)   121.59% 

 

  5. Employees Benefits Expenses: 
                                                                                                    [Figures in Rs. Crores] 

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24 Change Change % 

Employee benefits expenses.        4.26         3.99        0.27  6.81% 
 

 

6. Power and Fuel 
                                                                                                    [Figures in Rs. Crores] 

 

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24 Change Change % 

Power and Fuel 1.40 1.12 0.28 25.34% 
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7. Freight and Forwarding Expenses: 
                                                                                                   [Figures in Rs. Crores] 

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24 Change Change % 

Freight and Forwarding expense 0.41 0.31 0.10 31.17% 

 

 8. Finance Costs: 
                                                                                                     [Figures in Rs.Crores] 

  
Particulars 

2024-25 2023-24 Change Change % 

Interest expenses 0.64 0.59 0.05 9.32% 

 

9. Depreciation and Amortization Expense: 
                                                                                                     [Figures in Rs.Crores] 

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24 Change Change % 

Depreciation on tangible assets 0.34 0.34 0.00 1.26% 

 

10. Other Expenses: 
                                                                                                                [Figures in Rs.Crores] 

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24 Change Change % 

Rent        0.07         0.12       (0.05) -39.40% 

Rates and Taxes        0.31         0.23        0.08  35.36% 

Repairs        0.21         0.18        0.03  16.18% 

Insurance        0.04         0.04        0.00  6.68% 

Advertisement & Business Promotion        0.01         0.06       (0.05) -83.21% 

Miscellaneous Expenses        0.08         0.11       (0.03) -30.64% 

11. Tax Expenses 
                                                                                                     [Figures in Rs.Crores] 

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24 Change Change % 

Tax expenses        0.03        (0.20)       0.22  -113% 

 
12. Assets 
                                                                                                     [Figures in Rs.Crores] 

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24 Change Change % 

Tangible assets 2.75 2.39 0.45 20% 

Capital Work in progress - - - - 

Total 2.75 2.39 0.45 20% 

13.  Loans and Advances: 
                                                                                                     [Figures in Rs.Crores] 

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24 Change Change % 

Long-term loans and advances        0.43         0.51       (0.08) -16.2% 

Short-term loans and advances        8.30         5.77        2.53  43.9% 

Total  8.73 6.28 2.45 39.0% 
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14. Inventories: 
                                                                                                     [Figures in Rs.Crores] 

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24 Change Change % 

Raw Materials        4.76         4.49        0.27  6.1% 

Finished Goods      10.09         7.80        2.29  29.4% 

Stores & Spare Parts        1.97         1.97        0.00  0.0% 

Other Goods        0.06         0.19       (0.13) -68.5% 

Total    16.88     14.44     2.44 16.89% 

 

15. Trade Receivables: 
                                                                                                     [Figures in Rs.Crores] 

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24 Change Change % 

Trade receivables      13.84       12.99        0.85  6.56% 

         16. Cash and Bank Balances: 
                                                                                                               [Figures in Rs. Crores] 

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24 Change Change % 

Cash and bank balances 1.54 0.29 1.25 433.24% 

 

17. Trade Payables 
                                                                                                     [Figures in Rs.Crores] 

 

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24 Change Change % 

Trade payables 3.20 0.95 2.26 237.55% 

 

         18. Other Liabilities 
                                                                                                     [Figures in Rs.Crores] 

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24 Change Change % 

Statutory dues        0.06         0.23       (0.17) -75.5% 

Advance from customers        0.00         0.13       (0.13) -98.7% 

Audit fees payables        0.17         0.03        0.14  431.8% 

Total 0.23 0.39 (0.17)       -42.32% 

 

19. Cash Flow: 
                                                                                                     [Figures in Rs.Crores] 

 

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24 Change Change % 

Net cash flow from operating activities        0.29         0.91       (0.62) -68.50% 

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24 Change Change % 

Net cash used for investing activities       (0.78)       (0.03)      (0.75) -2949.36% 
 

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24 Change Change % 

Net cash used for financing activities  1.74        (0.65)  2.40 366.49% 
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RATIO ANALYSIS 

 

 

1. Operating EBITDA Margin (%)  

 2024-25 2023-24 

Operating EBITDA Margin 1.51% 1.42% 

2. Average Return on Capital Employed (%) 

 2024-25 2023-24 

Average Return on Capital Employed 3.98% 4.06% 

3. Return on Net Worth (%) 

 2024-25 2023-24 

Return on Net worth 1.05% 2.99% 

4. Current Ratio (Times)  

 2024-25 2023-24 

Current Ratio  2.62  3.65  

 

 5. Net worth per Share (Rs.)  

 2024-25 2023-24 

Net worth per share 18.54  18.50  

 6.Earnings per Share (Rs.)  

 2024-25 2023-24 

Basic Earnings per share  0.19  0.55  

 7.Fixed Assets Turnover (Times)  

 2024-25 2023-24 

Fixed Asset Turnover Ratio  28.97    31.11   

 



Financial Statements 

Page 107 

    

 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 

To The Members of Tamilnadu Steel Tubes Limited 

Report on the Audit of Standalone Financial Statements  

      Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Tamil Nadu Steel 
Tubes Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the 
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes 
in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended on that date, and a 
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter 
referred to as the “standalone financial statements”). 
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to 

us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the 
Companies Act, 2013 in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity 
with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other 
accounting principles generally accepted in India,of the state of affairs of the Company as at 
31stMarch,2025 and the Profit and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its 
cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

     Basis for Opinion 
We conducted our audit of the Standalone financial statements in accordance with the 
Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities 
under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of 
the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the 
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the independence requirements that are relevant to 
our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules 
made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with 
these requirements and the ICAI’s code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 
standalone financial statements. 

     Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon 
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other 
information. The other information comprises the information included in the Management 
Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, Business 
Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s Information, but does not 
include the standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. 
 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not 
express any form of assurance or conclusion thereon.  
 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the 
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially 
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of 
our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

  
If based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement   
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in 
this regard. 
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Management Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements 

 
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of 
the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a 
true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive 
income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the IND AS and 
other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes 
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for 
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments 
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for 
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the 
preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view 
and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either 
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic  alternative but 
to do so. 
 
The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting 
process. 

 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Financial Statements 

 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, 
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high 
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the SAs 
will always deduct a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from 
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of 
these standalone financial statements. 

 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 
  

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to 
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting 
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control.  
 

 Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in 
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under 
section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on 
whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and 
the operating effectiveness of such controls. 
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 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management. 
 

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis 
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material 
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt 
on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a 
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s 
report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on 
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, 
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going 
concern. 

 

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial 
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements 
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation.  

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, 
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably 
knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider 
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating 
the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the standalone 
financial statements.  
 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied 
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them 
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

 
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those 
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of 
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our 
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or 
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be 
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably 
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 
 
REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS 
 
1. As required by Section 143 (3) of the  Act, based on our audit we report that: 

 
a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations 

which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the 

purposes of our audit. 

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been 

kept by the Company so far as appears from our examination of those 

books. 
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c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other 

Comprehensive Income, Statement of changes in Equity and the 

Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with 

the relevant books of account. 

 

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply 

with the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 

7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

 
e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as 

on March 31, 2025, taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of 

the directors is disqualifiedas on March31, 2025, from being appointed 

as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

 
f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over 

financial reporting of the company and the operating effectiveness of 

such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure A”. Our 

report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating 

effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over 

financial reporting. 

 

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s 

Report in accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the 

Act, as amended, In our opinion and to the best of our information and 

according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid/ 

provided by the Company to its directors during the year is in 

accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act. 

 

h) With respect to the other matters included in the Auditor’s Report in 

accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rule, 

2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information 

and according to the explanation given to us: 

i) The company has disclosed the impact of pending litigation on its 

financial position in its standalone financial statement vide Note No.1.12 

 

ii) The company did not have any long-term contracts including 

derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable 

losses.  

 

iii) No amounts were required to be transferred, to the Investor’s 

Education and Protection Fund by the Company. 
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iv) a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its 

knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material either individually 

or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either 

from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of 

funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including 

foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether 

recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, 

directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities 

identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company 

(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like 

on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

 

b) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge 

and belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the 

aggregate) have been received by the Company from any person or 

entity, including foreign entity (“funding parties”), with the 

understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 

Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other 

persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf 

of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any 

guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

 

c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable 

and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice 

that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause 

(i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain 

any material misstatement.  

 

v)   The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the 

year.  Hence, we have no comments on the compliance with section 

123 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

vi) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s 

Report in accordance with Rule 11 (g) of the Companies (Audit and 

Auditors) Rule, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our 

information and according to the explanations given to us: 

 

(i) The Company has used an accounting software (Tally Prime Edit Log 5.1) for 

maintaining its books of accounts for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 

which has a feature of recording Audit Trail. 
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(ii) The Audit Trail feature is Configurable and was enabled and thereon 

operated throughout the year. 

 

(iii) All the transactions recorded in the software are covered in the 

Audit Trail feature. 

 

(iv) Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any 

instance of the audit trail feature being tampered with. 

  

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) 

issued by the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in 

“Annexure B” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the 

Order. 

 

                                 For DPV & Associates 

                            Chartered Accountants 

Firm’s Registration No:011688S 

 
 

 
PLACE :  CHENNAI    
 
DATE  :  24.05.2025  
  

 
 

CA Vaira Mutthu K 

Partner 

M.No.218791 

ICAI UDIN: 25218791BMILOB5894 

Chennai, 24th May 2025 
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ANNEXURE “A”TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

 
(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ 
Section of our report to the Members of TAMILNADU STEEL TUBES LIMITED of even date) 
 
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section143 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 
 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Tamil Nadu Steel 
Tubes Limited (“the Company”) as of 31st March 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the 
standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

 
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

 
The Board of Directors of the Company isresponsible for establishing and maintaining internal 
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established 
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to 
respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection 
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the 
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 

 
Auditors’ Responsibility 

 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting of the Company based on our audit.We conducted our audit in accordance with the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the 
“Guidance Note”) issued by the ICAI and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under 
Section143(10) of the Companies Act,2013,to the extent applicable to an audit of internal 
financial controls.Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with 
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and 
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 
 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating 
effectiveness.Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included 
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing 
the risk that a material weakness exists,and testing and evaluating the design and operating 
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk.The procedures selected depend 
on the auditor’s judgment,including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement     
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  

  
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting 
of the Company. 
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     Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
 

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to 
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the 
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles.A company’s internal financial control over financial 
reporting includes those policies and procedures that(1)pertain to the maintenance of 
records that,in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and 
dispositions of the assets of the company;(2)provide reasonable assurance that transactions 
are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company 
are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the 
company;and(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of 
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material 
effect on the financial statements. 
 
Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

 
 Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial 
reporting,including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of 
controls,material misstatements due to error or fraud may occurand not be 
detected.Also,projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over 
financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the 
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

 

 

     Opinion 
 

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 
the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system 
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were 
operating effectively as at 31st March 2025, based on the internal control over financial 
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of 
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over 
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

 

 

                                          For DPV & Associates 

                                       Chartered Accountants 

                        Firm’s Registration No:011688S 

 
 

 
PLACE: CHENNAI     
  
DATE : 24.05.2025 

 
 
                                                   CA Vaira Mutthu K 

     Partner 

                                                     M.No.218791 

                      ICAI UDIN: 25218791BMILOB5894 

                                    Chennai, 24th May 2025 
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Annexure-B to the Independent Auditors’ Report 
 

          (Referred to in paragraph 2 under‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ 
          Section of our report to the Members of Tamil Nadu Steel Tubes Limited of even date)  

 
i.    In respect of the Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets: 
 

(a) A) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars 
including quantitative details and situation of Property, plant and 
equipment. 
 
B) In respect of Intangible Assets, there were no Intangible Assets hence 

reporting under this clause is not applicable.  
 

(b) The company has physically verified the Plant & Equipment by the 
management once a year. According to the information and explanations 
given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.  
 

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, the records 
examined by us and based on the examination of the conveyance deeds / 
registered sale deed provided to us, we report that, the title deeds, 
comprising all the immovable properties of land and buildings which are 
freehold, are held in the name of the Company as at the balance sheet 
date.  

 
(d) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment 

(including right-to-use assets) and intangible assets during the year.  
 
(e) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against 

the Company as at March 31, 2025 for holding any benami property under 
the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and 
rules made thereunder. 

 
ii. (a)  In our opinion and according to information provided to us,  
the inventories have been physically verified during the year by the management 
and no material discrepancies were noticed during the physical verification.  
 

(b) The company has been sanctioned with working capital limit in excess of Rs. 
5 Crores in aggregate from banks or financial institutions on security of its current 
assets, and the monthly statements filed by the company with the bank is in 
agreement with the books of accounts of the Company.  

 
iii. The Company has not made investments in, companies, firms, Limited 

Liability Partnerships, and granted unsecured loans to other parties, during 
the year, in respect of which:  
 
a) The Company has not provided any loans or advances in the nature of 

loans or stood guarantee, or provided security to any other entity during 
the year, and hence reporting under clause 3(iii) (a) of the Order is not 
applicable. 
 

b) The Company has not made investments (or) granted loan during the year 
and hence reporting under this clause is not applicable. 
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c) In respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans, no schedule of 
repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and 
hence reporting under this clause is not applicable. 

 
d) The Company has not granted loan during the year and hence reporting 

under this clause is not applicable. 
 
e) The company has not granted loan during the year and hence reporting 

under this clause is not applicable. 
 
f) The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of 

loans either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or 
period of repayment during the year. Hence, reporting under clause 3(iii) 
(f) is not applicable. 

 
iv.    In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, 
the Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Act in 
respect of grant of loans, making investments and provisions guarantees and 
securities, as applicable.  
 
v. The Company has not accepted deposits during the year and does not have any 
Unclaimed deposits as at March 31, 2025 and therefore,the provisions of the clause 3 
(v) of the Order are not applicable to the Company. 
 
vi. We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company 
pursuant to the Rules prescribed by the Central Government under Section 148(1) of 
the Companies Act 2013, related to the manufacturing activities and are of the 
opinion that prima facie, the specified accounts and records have been made and 
maintained. We have not, however, made a detailed examination of the same. 

 

vii. According to the information and explanations given to  us, in respect of 
Statutory dues: 

a) The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities 
undisputed statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident 
fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales tax, service tax, 
duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other 
statutory dues applicable to it. According to the information and 
explanations given to us and based on audit procedures performed by us, 
no undisputed amounts payable in respect of these statutory dues were 
outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from 
the date they became payable.  
 

b) The dues of goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state 
insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of 
excise, value added tax, cess, and other statutory dues have not been 
deposited on account of any dispute, are as follows: 

 
Name of the Act 

 

 
Nature of the Dues 

 
Amount of Dispute  

(Rs. In Lakhs) 

 
Period to which it 

relates 
 

 
Dispute is pending 

before 

Sales Tax / VAT Duty Drawback 233.52 Lakhs FY 2007 to FY 2014-15 AC (CT) 

Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax – Sec 143 
(1) 

124.41 Lakhs AY 2011 – 12 ITO 

Income Tax Act, 1961 Income Tax – Sec 155 20.50 Lakhs AY 2012-13 ITO 

JDGFT Interest 44.83 Lakhs FY 2010-11 Hon’ble High Court of 
Madras 
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viii. There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been 
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income 
Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).  

 

ix. (a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the 

payment of interest thereon to any lender. 

 

(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution 
or government or any government authority.  
 
(c) The Company has not taken term loan during the year and in lieu of the same the 

reporting under this clause is not applicable. 
 

(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, no funds raised on 
short-term basis have, prime facie, been used during the year for long-term purposes by 
the Company. 

 
(e) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has 

not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of 
its subsidiaries. 

 
(f) The Company has not raised any loans during the year on pledge of its securities and 

hence reporting on clause 3(ix)(f) of the order is not applicable. 
 

x. (a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer 
(including debt instruments) hence reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the order is not 
applicable to Company. 
 

(b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private 
placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence 
reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the order is not applicable. 
 

xi. (a) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given 
to us, no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or 
reported during the year. 
 

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in 
Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 
with the Central Government, during the year and up to the date of this report. 
 

(c) The Company has not received any whistle blower complaints during the year. 
 

xii. The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the Order 
is not applicable.  
 
xiii. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, thecompany 
is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, where applicable, for 
all transactions with the related parties and the details of related party transactions have 
been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards. 

 
xiv. (a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate Internal audit system commensurate with                            
the size and the nature of its business, however the enhancement of scope is recommended.  
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(b) We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the 
Company during the year and till date, in determining the nature, timing and extent 
of our audit procedures.  

 
xv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the 
year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its Directors or persons 
connected to its directors and hence provisions of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are 
not applicable to the Company. 

 
xvi. (a) In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of 
the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the 
Order is not applicable.  

 
(b) In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in 

the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 and accordingly 
reporting under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the order is not applicable. 

 
xvii. The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit 
and the immediately preceding financial year.  

 
xviii. There has been no resignation of the Statutory Auditors of the Company during the year. 

 
xix. On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial 
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial 
statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on 
our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our 
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of 
the audit report indicating that Company is capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the 
date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance 
sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the 
company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit 
report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due with 
in a period of one year form the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as 
and when they fall due. 

 
xx. According to the information and explanations given to us, provisions of section 135 of the 
Companies Act 2013 are not applicable to the Company. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xx) 
(a) & 3 (xx) (b) of the Order is not applicable. 

 
xxi. According to the information and explanations given to us, reporting under clause 3(xxi) 
of the Order is not applicable as the Company is not a Holding Company. 
 

 

 

 

 

       

                                For DPV & Associates 

                             Chartered Accountants 

                  Firm’s RegistrationNo:011688S 

 

 

 
Place: CHENNAI 
Date : 24.05.2025 

                                                      CA Vaira Mutthu K         
Partner  

M.No.218791 
ICAI UDIN: 25218791BMILOB5894 

Chennai, 24th May 2025 
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         Balance Sheet As At 31st March, 2025 
                                                                                                                            [INR in lakhs] 

 

  
Particulars 

 
Note 
No 

Asat 

31stMarch2025 

Asat 

31stMarch,2024 

 ASSETS    

A Non-Current Assets    

 (a)Property,Plant and Equipment and 
Intangible assets 

 
  

 (i) Property, Plant and Equipment 2.1 254.95                                       229.84  

 (ii) Right of Use assets  2.2 19.81 - 

 (b) Investment Property 2.3                     3.55                   3.55  

  (C) Financial Assets    

      (i) Other Financial Assets 2.4 32.74 26.44 

  (d) Deferred Tax Asset (Net) 2.5 10.33 12.99 

 (e) Other Non-Current Assets 2.6 38.74 32.37 

 Total Non-Current Assets  360.11 305.19 

B Current Assets    

 a)Inventories 2.7 1,688.11 1,444.19 

 b)Financial Assets    

 i) Trade Receivables 2.8 1,384.27 1,299.07 

      ii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 2.9 154.16 28.91 

      Iii) Other financials assets 2.10 0.34  7.56  

 c)Other Current Assets 2.11                  85.56                   98.98  

 Total Current Assets                  3,312.45              2,878.71 

 Total Assets  3,672.56   3,183.90 

     

 EQUITY AND LIABILITIES    

A Equity    

 a)Equity Share Capital 3.1                     512.48                      512.48  

 b)Other Equity 3.2                    437.88                   435.74 

 Total Equity                     950.36                 948.22  

B Liabilities    

 (a)Non-Current Liabilities    

 i) Financial Liabilities    
 

 

 a) Borrowings 3.3 42.92 51.20 

    ii)   Provisions 3.4 94.12 75.10 

 iii)Other non-current liabilities 3.5 1,322.00 1,320.00 

 Total Non-Current Liabilities  1,459.04 1,446.30 

 (b)Current Liabilities    

     a)Financial Liabilities    
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         (i) Short Term Borrowings 3.6 830.48 577.11 

         (ii) TradePayables 3.7   

 a) Total outstanding dues of Micro 
enterprises and small enterprises; and 

 
- - 

 b) Total outstanding dues of creditors 
other than Micro enterprises and 
small enterprises 

 
                   320.48  94.94 

        iii) Other Financial Liabilities 3.8 1.98 1.65 

    b) Other Current L iabilities 3.9 22.71 39.38 

  c)Provisions 3.10 87.52 76.29 

 Total Current Liabilities   1,263.17  789.38 

 Total Equity and Liabilities   3,672.56  3,183.90 

 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements 

(Note No.1)  

As per our report of even date attached 

 
 

For DPV & Associates 

Chartered Accountants  

FRN No:011688S 

 
 

For and on Behalf of  the Board 

 

 
 

 
 

BIVASHWADAS 
 

N.Sudharsan 

CA Vaira Mutthu K 

Partner 

[Managing Director] 

[DIN:07352655]                         

[Director] 

[DIN:08562284] 

M.No.218791 
 

                             

Place:Chennai 
Date:  May 24,2025 

K SURESH 
[Company Secretary 
Cum Compliance 
Officer]  
 

Mr.H.Vinoth Kumar 
[Chief Financial 
Officer] 
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Statement of Profit and Loss for the Year Ended 31st March, 2025 

 
                                                                                                                        [INR in lakhs] 

 

  
Particulars 

 
Notes 

Asat 

31
st March 2025 

Asat 

31
st March 2024 

I Revenue from operations 4.1  7,385.80 7,149.54 

II Other Income 4.2 16.50 50.08 

III Total Income (I+II)  7,402.31 7,199.62 

IV Expenses    

 Cost of Material Consumed 5.1 6,771.00 6,541.34 

 Changes in Inventories of finished 

goods, Stock-in-trade and work-in-

progress 

5.2  (216.48) (97.69)  

 Employee Benefits Expense 5.3 426.49  399.28  

 Finance Cost 5.4 
64.39 58.90 

 Depreciation and amortization Expense 

 
5.5  34.42  33.99 

 Other expenses 5.6 309.88 286.18 

 Total Expenses  7,389.69 7,191.00 

V Profit/ (Loss) before exceptional items and 
tax 

 12.62 8.61 

VI Exceptional Items  - - 

VII Profit / (Loss) before tax  12.62 8.61 

VIII Tax Expense:    

 (1) Current Tax  - - 

 (2) Deferred Tax  (2.65) 19.72 

 (3) Tax of Earlier Years   - 12.81  

IX Profit (Loss) for the period from 
continuing operations 

 9.96 28.33 

X Profit (Loss) for the period from 
discontinued operations 

 - - 

XI Profit (Loss) for the period   
9.96 28.33 

XII Other Comprehensive Income   
- - 

  (i) Items that will not be re-classified    

     to profit or loss 

 (7.82) (5.37) 
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XIII Total Comprehensive Income for the 

period Comprising Profit (Loss) and 

other comprehensive Income for the 

Period (XI + XII) 

 
 2.14 22.96 

XIV Earnings per Share (in Rs.)    

 (1) Basic                     0.19  0.55 

 (2) Diluted  0.19 0.55 

 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements 

(Note No.1) 

 
As per our report of even date attached 

 
 

For DPV & Associates 

Chartered Accountants 

FRN No:011688S 

 
 
 

For and on Behalf of the Board 

 

 
 
 

BIVASHWADAS 
 

N.SUDHARSAN 

CA Vaira Mutthu K 

Partner 

[ManagingDirector] 

[DIN:07352655]                         

[Director] 

[DIN:08562284] 

M.No.218791 
 

  

Place: Chennai 

Date: May 24,2025 

K SURESH  
[Company Secretary Cum 
Compliance officer]  
 

Mrs.H. Vinodh Kumar 

[Chief Financial 
Officer] 
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Cash flow Statement for the Year Ended 31st March 2025 
                                                                                                                 [INR in lakhs] 

 
 

 

Particulars 
As at 

31st March 2025 

As at 

31st March, 2024 

Cash Flow from Operating Activities:   

Net Profit before Taxation 12.62  8.61 

Add:   

Depreciation & Amortisation Expenses  34.42 33.99 

Interest Paid 64.39 58.90 

Other Comprehensive Income (7.82) (5.37) 

Loss on sale of Fixed Asset - 0.23 

Less:  - - 

Interest Received 1.75 1.17 

Net Gain / Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment - 19.66 

Lease Rent Received 6.09 5.34 

Cash Flow Before Working Capital Changes  95.75 70.18 

Adjustment For:   

Changes in Inventories (243.91) 99.77 

[Increase] / decrease in Trade Receivables (85.20) 55.58 

[Increase]/decrease in Other Current Assets 20.64 (42.80) 

[Increase]/decrease in Other Financial Assets (6.30) (3.23) 

[Increase]/decrease Other Non-current Assets (6.36) (7.23) 

Increase/[decrease]in Provisions 19.02 24.00 

Increase/[decrease]inTradePayables 225.54 (110.81) 

Increase/[decrease] in OtherCurrent Liabilities (5.12) (4.79) 

Increase/[decrease] in Other Non-Current Liabilities 2.00  

Less:   

Tax Paid / Provision -  - 

Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities  16.05 80.68  

Cash Flow from Investing Activities:   

Interest received 1.75 1.17 

Sale of Fixed Assets - 83.59 

Purchase of Fixed Assets (79.32) (89.42) 

Lease Rent Received 6.09 5.34 

Net Cash Flow used in Investing Activities  (71.48) 0.68 
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          Cash Flow Statement for the Year Ended 31st March, 2025        [INR in lakhs] 
 

 

Cash Flow from Financing Activities   

Proceed from Long Term Borrowings (8.28) 5.64 

Proceed from Short Term Borrowings 253.37 (4.92) 

InterestPaid (64.39) (58.90) 

 180.69 (58.18) 

Net Increase / [Decrease] in Cash or Cash Equivalents   

Opening Balance as at 1st April 2024 28.91 5.72 

Net Cash Flow during the year ended 31st March 2025 125.26 23.19 

Closing Balance as at 31st March 2025 154.16 28.91 

 

1. The cash flow statement has been prepared in accordance with the requirements of 
Indian Accounting standards issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 
 

2. Cash flows have been reported using the indirect method, whereby the net profit is 
adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or 
accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments, segregating between cash flows. 

 
3. Significant cash and cash equivalent balances held by the enterprise are available for 

use by the Company 
 

 

 

For DPV & Associates 

Chartered Accountants 

FRN No: 011688S 

 

 

 
 

For and on Behalf of the Board 

 BIVASHWA DAS N Sudharsan 

 

CA Vaira Mutthu K 

Partner 

[ManagingDirector] 

[DIN:07352655] 

[Director] 

[DIN:08562284] 

 

M.No.218791 
 

  

Place: Chennai 

Date:May 24, 2025 

 

K SURESH  
[Company Secretary Cum 
Compliance Officer]  
 

H VINODH KUMAR 

[Chief Financial 
Officer] 
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Statement of Changes in Equity for the year Ended 31st March, 2025 

                                                                                                       (Rs. In Lakhs) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Number of Equity Shares at the beginning and end of the current and pervious reporting periods 

 

Equity Share Capital 

Particulars 
As at 

31st March 2025 

As at 

31st March 2024 

Authorised Capital   

1,40,00,000 (Previous Year 1,40,00,000) Equity Shares of Rs. 
10 each  

1,140.00 1,140.00 

Total 1,140.00 1,140.00 

Issued, Subscribed & Paid-up Capital 

51,24,800 (Previous Year 51,24,800) Equity Shares of Rs. 10 
each fully paid up  

 

 

512.48 

 

512.48 

Total 512.48 512.48 

 

Particulars 
31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24 

No.of 
Shares 

Amount  No.of 
Shares 

Amount 

Balance at the beginning of the reporting period  51,24,800 512.48 51,24,800 512.48 

Changes in Equity Share Capital due to prior period 
errors 

- - - - 

Related balance at the beginning of the reporting period - - - - 

Changes in Equity Share Capital during the period  - - - - 

Balance at the end of the reporting period  51,24,800 512.48 51,24,800 512.48 

     

 
Particulars 

Reserves and surplus  

Capital 
Reserve 

Security  
Premium  

Retained  
Earnings 

Other 

Comprehensive 
Income – P/(L) 

Total 

Balance as at 1 April 2024 31.78 - 412.55 (8.59) 435.74 

Add/(Less): Profit/(Loss) for the period - - 9.96 - 9.96 

Other comprehensive income - - - (7.82) (7.82) 

Total comprehensive Income for the year  - - - - - 

Any other changes - - - - - 

Balance as at 31 March 2025 31.78 - 422.51 (16.41) 437.88 

Balance as at 1 April 2023 31.78 - 384.22 (3.22) 437.88 

Add/(Less): Profit/(Loss) for the period - - 28.33 - 28.33 
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                                                             For and on Behalf of the Board         

 

For DPV & Associates  

Chartered Accountant                             Bivashwa Das                            N. Sudharsan  

 FRN: 011688S                                    Managing Director                            Director 

                                                 DIN: 07352655                          DIN: 08562284 

CA Vaira Mutthu K 

Partner                                                     K. Suresh                    H Vinodh Kumar 

M No: 218791                                        Company Secretary     Chief Financial Officer 

UDIN: 25218791BMILOB5894                       

 

Chennai 

24th May 2025          

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Remeasurement of the net defined 
benefit liability 

- - - (5.37) (5.37) 

Total comprehensive Income for the Year - - - - - 

Any other changes - - - - - 

Balance as at 31st March 2024 31.78 - 412.55 (8.59) 435.74 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT 

 
                            As at and for the year ended 31st March 2025 

 

NOTE: 1 CORPORATE INFORMATION 

 
TAMILNADU STEEL TUBES LIMITED (the Company) is a Public Limited Company domiciled in 
India and incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 with CIN: 
L27110TN1979PLC007887. Its shares are listed on Stock Exchange in India. The   Company is 
engaged in the manufacturing and selling a reputed brand of Black Pipe (ERW Pipe) & G.I.Pipe. 
The Company caters to only domestic market. 

 
BASIS OF PREPARATION, MEASUREMENT AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 

1.1) Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements: 
 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting 
Standards (hereinafter referred to as in ‘Ind AS’) as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs 
pursuant to section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 3 of the Companies 
(Indian Accounting standard Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Amendment Rules, 2016 
 
These financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2025 are prepared under Ind AS. 
For all periods up to and including the year ended 31st March, 2017, the company prepared 
its financial statements under historical cost convention in accordance with the generally 
accepted Accounting Principles in India and the provision of the Companies Act, 2013 read 
with Section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read with Rule 7 of the Companies(Accounts) 
rules 2014, till the standards of accounting or any addendum thereto are prescribed by 
Central Government in consultation with recommendation of the National Financial 
Reporting Authority, the existing Accounting Standards notified under Companies Act, 1956 
shall continue to apply in all the material aspects with the accounting standards notified 
under Section 211(3C) (Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2016, as amended) and 
other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 immediately before adopting Ind 
AS.The financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2017 and the opening Balance 
Sheet as  at 1st April, 2016 have been restated in accordance with Ind AS for comparative 
information. 
 
The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual and going concern basis. The 
accounting policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented in the financial 
statements, including the preparation of the opening Ind AS Balance Sheet as at 1st April, 
2016 being the ‘date of transition to Ind AS’. All assets and liabilities have been classified as 
Current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle and other criteria as set 
out in the Division II of Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of 
products and the time between acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in 
Cash and cash equivalents, the company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for 
the purpose of the current or non-current classification of assets and liabilities. These 
financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention unless otherwise 
indicated. 

  
 1.2) Use of Estimates: 
The preparation of financial statements requires the management to make judgments, 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets 
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and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reported period. 
Although these estimates are based on the management’s best knowledge of current events 
and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes 
requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future 
periods. 
 

    SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: 

 
     1.3) Inventories (Ind AS 2):  
 

Raw materials are valued at FIFO method. Components, store and spares are valued at lower 
of cost and net realizable value. However, materials and other items held for use in the 
production of inventories are not written down below cost if the finished products in which 
they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost. The cost of raw 
materials, components and stores and spares is determined on a weighted average basis.  

 
Net realizable value is estimated at selling price in the ordinary course of business less the 
estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.     

 
     1.4) Cash flow Statement (Ind AS 7) 

 
Cash flows are presented using indirect Method, whereby profit / (loss) before tax is 
adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of 
past or future cash receipts or payments. 
 
Bank borrowings are generally considered to be financing activities. However, where bank 
overdrafts which are repayable on demand  form an integral part of an entity’s cash 
management, bank overdrafts are included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for 
the purpose of Cash flow statement. 
 
1.5) Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors (Ind AS 8) 
 
Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors 
 
The financial statement have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting 
Standards (Ind AS) notified under the companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, 
as amended from time to time. 
 
The company selects and applies its accounting policies consistently for similar transactions, 
events, and conditions, unless Ind AS specifically requires or permits categorization and 
application of different policies foe different transactions. 
 
Changes in accounting policies are made only if: 

 Required by an Ind AS; or 

 Such a change results in the financial statement providing more reliable and relevant 
information. 

     When a change in accounting policy is applied: 

 It is accounted for retrospectively unless otherwise stated. 

 The comparative figures for prior periods are restated, and  

 The cumulative effect, if any, is adjusted in the opening balance of retained earnings. 
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Changes in accounting estimates (e.g., useful lives, bad debt provisions) are recognized 
prospectively: 
 

 In the period of the changes, if the change affects only that period; or  

 In the period of the change and future periods, if the change affects both. 
 
Prior Period Errors 
 
Material prior period errors are corrected retrospectively in the first set of financial statements 
Approved after their discovery by: 
 

 Restating the comparative amounts for the prior period(s) presented; or  

 If the error occurred before the earliest prior period presented, restating the opening 
balances of assets, liabilities, and equity for the earliest period presented. 

 
The nature of the error and the amount of the correction are disclosed in the notes to accounts. 
 
1.6) Provision for Current Tax and Deferred Tax (Ind AS 12) 
 
Current Income Tax 
 
Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered 
from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount 
are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the countries 
where the company operates and generates taxable income. 
 
Current income tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit 
or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognized in 
correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.  Management 
periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which 
applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where 
appropriate. 
 
Deferred Tax 
 
Deferred Tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax 
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the 
reporting date.  Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxes temporary differences. 
 
Deferred Tax assets are recognized to the extent that is probable that taxable profit will be 
available against which then deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused 
tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.  Where there is deferred arising from carry 
forward of unused tax losses and unused tax created, they are recognized to the extent of 
deferred tax liability. 
 
The carrying amount of deferred tax asset is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the 
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or 
part of the deferred tax assets to be utilized.  Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed 
at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that is has become probable that future 
taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered. 
 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax   rates that are expected to apply in 
the year when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) 
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. 
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Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or 
loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognized in 
correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.   
 
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to 
set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same 
taxable entity and the same taxation authority. 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                 
1.7) Property, Plant and Equipment (Ind AS16): 

 
Property, plant and equipment are stated at acquisition cost net of accumulated depreciation 
and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying 
amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future 
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be 
measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss 
during the period in which they are incurred. 

  
Gains or losses arising on retirement or disposal of property, plant and equipment are recognised 
in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Property, plant and equipment which are not ready for 
intended use as on the date of Balance Sheet are disclosed as “Capital work-in-progress”. 

 
Depreciation is provided on a pro-rata basis on the straight-line method based on estimated 
useful life prescribed under ScheduleI II to the Companies Act, 2013. 

 
Free hold land is not depreciable, hence no depreciation charged to statement of profit and loss. 

 

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment 
are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.  

 

Type of Assets Period 

Buildings 30 Years 

Plant & Machinery 15 Years 

Electrical Installation 10 Years 

Furniture & Fittings 10 Years 

Vehicles 8 Years 

Office Equipment 5 Years 

Computer & Peripherals 3 Years 

 

1.8) Employee Benefits: (Ind AS 19) 
 
Short–term Employee Benefits 
 
    A liability is recognized for short-term employee benefit in the period the related service is 

rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for 
that service. The entity is operating through Indowind Energy  Gratuity Fund for all 
payments related to gratuity and the related trust accounts is yet to be maintained. 
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Defined contribution plans  
 
     Retirement benefit in the form of a provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The 

company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund and 
superannuation fund. The company recognizes the contribution payable to the provident 
fund scheme as an expense when an employee renders the related services. If the 
contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date 
exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a 
liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already exceeds 
the contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is 
recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to, for example, a 
reduction in future payment or a cash refund. 

 
Defined benefit plans 
 
    The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India, which requires contributions 

to be made to a separately administered fund. The cost pf providing benefits under the 
defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit method. 

    
Other long term employee benefits 
 
    Liabilities recognized in respect of other long-term employee benefits are measured at the 

present value of the estimated future cash outflows expected to be made by the company in 
respect of services provided by the employees up to the reporting date. Liability for un-
availed leave, considered to be long-term, is carried based on an actuarial valuation carried 
out at the end of each financial year. 

 
1.9) Foreign Currency Transaction (Ind AS 21) 
 
(a) Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at the functional 
currency spot rates at the date at which the transaction first qualifies for recognition. 
However, for practical reasons, the Company uses an average rate, if the average 
approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction. 
 
b) Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the 
functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date. Exchange differences arising 
on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognized in profit or loss. 
 
c) Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are 

translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary 
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at 
the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-
monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or 
loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair 
value gain or loss is recognized in OCI or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or 
loss, respectively). 

 
1.10) Impairment of Assets: (Ind AS 36) 

Assessment for impairment is done at each Balance Sheet date as to whether there is any 
indication that a non-financial asset may be impaired. Indefinite life intangibles are subject 
to a review for impairment annually or more frequently if events or circumstances indicate 
that it is necessary. 
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If any indication of impairment exists, an estimate of the recoverable amount of the 
individual asset / cash generating unit is made. Asset / cash generating unit whose carrying 
value exceeds their recoverable amount are written down to the recoverable amount by 
recognising the impairment loss as an expense in the statement of Profit or Loss. 

 
1.11) Provisions and Contingent Liabilities:  (Ind AS 37): 

 
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation(legal or constructive) as 
a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic 
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the 
amount of the obligation. Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the expenditure 
required to settle the present obligation at the Balance Sheet date. 
 
If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted to reflect its 
present value using a current pre-tax rate that reflects the current market assessments of the 
time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation. When discounting is used, the 
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost. 
 
Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, 
the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more 
uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation 
that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will 
be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made. 

 
1.12) Segment Reporting (Ind AS 108): 

 
The accounting policies adopted for the segment reporting are in line with the accounting 
polices stipulated. The Company primarily operates in single business segment which is Steel 
Tubes (Black, GI Pipes & Stainless-Steel Pipes), and accordingly there is no primary segments to be 
reported as per Indian Accounting Standard 108 “Segment Reporting”. 

 
1.13) Revenue Recognition (Ind AS 115): 

 
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when all the significant risks and rewards of 
ownership in the goods are transferred to the buyer as per the terms of the contract, there 
is no continuing managerial involvement with the goods and the amount of revenue can be 
measured reliably. The Company retains no effective control of the goods transferred to a 
degree usually associated with ownership and no significant uncertainty exists regarding the 
amount of the consideration that will be derived from the sale of goods. Revenue is measured at 
fair value of the consideration received or receivable, after deduction of any trade 
discounts, volume rebates and any taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government 
which are levied on sales such as Goods and service tax etc. 
 
Revenue from sale of products manufactured, sale of products traded and sale or supply of 
services is recognized when practically all obligations connected with the transaction risks 
and rights to the buyer have been fulfilled. Revenue is measured at fair value of the 
consideration received or receivable, after deduction of any trade discounts, volume rebates and 
any taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government which are levied on sales such as 
GST etc. 
 
Interest income is recognized using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. 
  
Dividend income on investments is recognized when the right to receive dividend is 
established. 
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1.14) Leases (Ind AS 116): 
 Leases in which a substantial portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by 
the lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments and receipts under such leases are 
recognised to the Statement of Profit and Loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the 
lease unless the lease payments to the lessor are structured to increase in line with expected 
general inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases, in which case 
the same are recognized as an expense in line with the contractual term.In accordance with 
the standard, the company has recognized Right-of-Use (ROU) assests and corresponding lease 
liabilities for all applicable lease arrangements, except for short-term leases of less than 12 
months and leases of low-value assets which have been accounted for on a straight-line basis 
over the lease term. The lease liabilities have been measured at the present value of future 
lease payments, discounted using the company’s incremental borrowing rate. The ROU assets 
have been measured at cost, comprising the amount of the intial lease liability, lease 
payments made at or before the commencement date, and any initial direct costs, adjusted 
for lease incentives received. The ROU asset is depreciated on a straight-line basis over the 
lease term, while the lease liability is reduced over time using the effective interest method. 
The company has also appropriately accounted for refundable security deposits by discounting 
them to present value and recognizing the difference as a component of the ROU asset. The 
accounting treatment and disclosures are in accordance with the principles and requirements 
of Ind AS 116. 

 
1.15) Financial Instrument: (Ind AS 109): 

Financial Assets: 
 
Financial assets are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions 
of the instrument. On initial recognition, a financial asset is recognized at fair value, in case of 
financial assets which are recognized at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL), their 
transaction costs are recognized in the statement of profit and loss. In other cases, the 
transaction costs are attributed to the acquisition value of the financial asset. 

Financial assets are subsequently classified as measured at 

• Amortized cost 

• Fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL) 

• Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI). 

 
Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their recognition, except if and in the period 
the Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.  
 
Trade Receivables and Loans: 
 
Trade receivables are initially recognized at fair value. Subsequently, these assets are held at 
amortized cost, using the effective interest rate (EIR) method net of any expected credit 
losses.The EIR is the rate that discounts estimated future cash income through the expected life 
of financial instrument. 
 

Equity Instruments: 
 
All investments in equity instruments classified under financial assets are initially measured at fair 
value; the Company may, on initial recognition, irrevocably elect to measure the same either at 
FVOCI or FVTPL.  The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. A fair 
value change on an equity instrument is recognised as other income in the Statement of Profit 
and Loss unless the Company has elected to measure such instrument at FVOCI. Fair value 
changes excluding dividends, on an equity instrument measured at FVOCI are recognized in OCI. 
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Amounts recognised in OCI are not subsequently reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss. 
Dividend income on the investments in equity instruments are recognised as ‘other income’ in 
the Statement of Profit and Loss. The Company does not have any investments in equity 
instruments as on balance sheet date. 
 
Derecognition: 
 
The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from 
the financial asset expire, or it transfers the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from the 
asset. 
Impairment of Financial Asset: 
 
Expected credit losses are recognized for all financial assets subsequent to initial recognition other 
than financials assets in FVTPL category. For financial assets other than trade receivables, as per Ind 
AS 109, the Company recognizes 12 month expected credit losses for all originated or acquired 
financial assets if at the reporting date the credit risk of the financial asset has not increased 
significantly since its initial recognition. The expected credit losses are measured as lifetime 
expected credit losses if the credit risk on financial asset increases significantly since its initial 
recognition.The Company’s trade receivables do not contain significant financing component and 
loss allowance on trade receivables is measured at an amount equal to life time expected losses 
i.e. expected cash shortfall. The impairment losses and reversals are recognised in Statement of 
Profit and Loss. 

Financial Liabilities: 

Initial recognition and measurement 
 
Financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the instrument. Financial liabilities are initially measured at the amortised cost 
unless at initial recognition, they are classified as fair value through profit and loss. In case of trade 
payables, they are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently, these liabilities are held at 
amortised cost, using the effective interest method. 
 
Subsequent measurement 
 
Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Financial 
liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss is measured at fair value with all changes in fair 
value recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. 
 
Derecognition: 
 
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, 
cancelled or expires. 
                                                        For & on Behalf of the Board         

For DPV & Associates  

Chartered Accountant              Bivashwa Das               N. Sudharshan  

 FRN: 011688S                         Managing Director         Director 

                                   DIN:07352655                DIN: 08562284 

CA Vaira Mutthu K 

Partner                                  K. Suresh                    H Vinodh Kumar 

M No: 218791                        Company Secretary     Chief Financial Officer 

Chennai, 24th May 2025          
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Schedule of Depreciation as per Companies Act, 2013 

Note annexed to and forming part of Balance Sheet for the year ended 31.03.2025 

 

2.1) PROPERTY, PLANT and EQUIPMENT                                                      [Rs.in lakhs] 
 

 

 
 
 
Note:             
The Company has elected to measure all its property, plant and equipment at the previous GAAP 
carrying amount i.e 31st March 2016 as its deemed cost (Gross Block Value) on the date of 
transition to Ind AS i.e., on 1st April 2016.        
     
 
2.2) Right of Use Assets 
 

 
 
 
 
  

As on 

01-04-2024
 Additions  Deletion 

As on 

31-03-2025

 As on 

01-04-2024 
 %  For the period   Deletions 

As on 

31-03-2025

As at

31-03-2025

 As at 

31-03-2024 

    1 Land            21.56                     -                                      -              21.56                 -                   -                   -                   -                   -              21.56            21.56 

    2 Building              8.17                     -                                      -                8.17              3.24 3.17%              0.21                 -                3.45              4.72              4.93 

    3 Plant & Machinery          178.47                41.39          219.86            78.93 6.33%            11.18                 -              90.11          129.76            99.54 

4    Electrical Installation 13.61           10.41               -                                 24.02           8.89             9.50% 0.82             -              9.71             14.32                        4.72 

5    Furniture & Fixtures 7.15             0.58                 -                                 7.73             0.45             9.50% 0.71             -              1.16             6.57                          6.70 

6    Vehicles 135.51         -                   -                                 135.51         45.16           11.88% 13.61           -              58.77           76.74                      90.35 

7     Office Equipment 8.32             -                   -                                 8.32             7.60             19.00% 0.30             -              7.90             0.42                          0.72 

8    Computer & Peripherals 7.41             0.53                 -                                 7.94             6.09             31.67% 0.99             -              7.08             0.86                          1.32 

380.21        52.92               -                                 433.12        150.36        27.81          -              178.18        254.95        229.84        Total

 S 

No 
Particulars

Gross Block Depreciation Net Block

As on 

01-04-2024
 Additions 

 Deletion/

Adjustments 

As on 

31-03-2025

As on 

01-04-2024

 For the 

period  

 Deduction / 

Adjustments 

As on 

31-03-2025

As on 

31-03-2025

 As at

31-03-2024 

     1 Buildings                26.41                 -                  26.41 -                               6.60 -                              6.60                19.81                       -   

-                 26.41              -              26.41              -                 6.60              -              6.60               19.81              -                    Total

 S No Particulars

Gross Block Depreciation Net Block
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Note 2.4:  
Other Security Deposits 
 
The Company has placed certain security deposits with statutory/government authorities such as 
electricity boards and telephone service providers, which are non-interest bearing and are 
refundable on demand or upon termination of service. These deposits are classified as financial 
assets in accordance with Ind AS 109 - Financial Instruments. 
 
As these deposit do not carry any interest and are typically retained over the long term, they 
technically fall within the scope of fair valuation at initial recognition. However, based on a 
management assessment, the impact of discounting these deposits to present value is not 
material, considering the nature, amount, and expected duration of these deposits. 
 
Accordingly, the company has elected to carry these deposits at their transaction value (cost) 
without applying fair value discounting, in line with the materiality concept under Ind AS 1 – 
Presentation of financial Statements. 
 

2.3) 

 

Investment Properties 

 

Particulars 

31-03-2025 31-03-
2024 

Cost of the Asset   

Opening Balance 3.55 3.55 

Additions - - 

Reclassification - - 

Total / Closing Balance 3.55 3.55 

 

2.4) Other Financial Assets 

Particulars 

  

31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24 

 

 

 

 

(i) Security Deposit (Amortized Cost) 6.35 - 

(ii) Deferred Rental expenses 0.83 - 

(iii) Bank deposits with more than 12 months 
maturity 

5.11 4.79 

(iv) Others Deposits* 20.45 21.65 

Total 32.74 26.44 
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2.5 

 

 

 

 

Deferred Tax Asset 

Particulars 

 

 

 

 

31-Mar-25        

 

 

 

 

31-Mar-24 

 

 
The Movement on the deferred tax account is as 
follows: 

  

At the start of the year 12.99 (6.73) 

Charge to statement of profit and loss (2.65) 19.72 

Total at the end of year  10.34 12.99 

 

2.6  Other Non-Current Asset 

Particulars 

 

 

31-Mar-25       31-Mar-24 

  Income Tax Refund Receivables 38.74 32.37 

 Total 38.74 32.37 

 

 

2.7 Inventories 

 Particulars 

  

31-Mar-25            31-Mar-24 

 Finished goods 1,009.28  779.81 

Other goods 9.88  19.01  

Raw material 476.02  448.58 

Stores and Spares 192.92  196.79 

Total 1,688.11 1,444.19 

   

2.8 Trade Receivables  

  Particulars 

        

   31-Mar-25              31-Mar-24 

 Unsecured Considered good:   

Receivables outstanding for less than 6 months 1,347.80  1,256.86 

Receivables outstanding for more than 6 
months 

36.47 42.21 

Total  1,384.27 1,299.07 
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Trade receivables ageing schedule for the year ended as on March 31, 2025 and 
March 31, 2024: 

                                                                                                             (Rs. In Lakhs) 

 

Particulars 

Outstanding  for following  periods from due date of 
payment 

Less than 
6 months 

6 
months 
-1year 

1-2 
years 

2-3 
years 

More 
than 3 
years 

     Total 

Undisputed Trade 
receivables-Considered 
good  

1,347.80 - 0.00 34.09 2.37 1,384.27 

(Previous Year figures) (1,256.86) 
 

(39.84)   (2.37) - (1,299.07) 

Undisputed Trade 
receivables-which have 
significant increase in 
credit risk 

- -- - - - - 

Undisputed Trade 
receivables – credit 
impaired 

- - - - - - 

Disputed Trade 
receivables-considered 
good 

- - - - - - 

Disputed Trade 
receivables-which have 
significant increase in 
credit risk 

- - - - - - 

Disputed Trade 
receivables-credit 
impaired 

- - - - - - 

Total Trade 
Receivables 

1,347.80 - 0.00 34.09 2.37 1,384.27 

(Previous Year figures) (1,256.86) - (39.84) (2.37) - (1,299.07) 
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2.9) Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Particulars 

 

 
31-Mar-25 

 
31-Mar-24 

  

Cash on hand    0.80   5.35 

Balance with Banks 153.37 23.56 

Total 154.16 28.91 

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with Banks. Cash equivalents are 

short-term balances with original maturity of less than 3 months, highly liquid 

investments that are readily convertible into cash, which are subject to insignificant risk 

of changes in value. 
 

2.10) Other Financial Assets  

  Particulars 

 
31-Mar-25 

 
31-Mar-24 

Security Deposit  0.06 7.25 

Interest Accrued but not due 0.28 0.31 

 Total 0.34 7.56 

 

2.11) Other Current Assets 

Particulars 

 
31-Mar-25 

 
31-Mar-24 

  GST Input Credit & Cash Ledger Balance       29.30 1.34 

  Advance to Creditors      39.72 65.41 

  Insurance Claim receivable - 16.49 

  TDS/TCS Receivable         6.07   6.52 

 Staff Salary Advance        2.93   4.92 

 Prepaid expenses        7.55   4.30 

Total      85.56      98.98 
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Notes on accounts_Balance Sheet (Equity & Liabilities) for the year Ended 31st March, 2025 
               (Rs. In Lakhs) 

Number of Equity Shares at the beginning and end of the current and previous reporting 
periods  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

3.1) SHARE CAPITAL 

          Particulars 

As at 31st March, 

2025 

As at 31st 

March,2024 

Authorised Capital   

1,40,00,000 (Previous Year 1,40,00,000) Equity 

Shares of RS.10 each 

1,140.00 1,140.00 

                 Total 1,140.00 1,140.00 

Issued, Subscribed & Paid-up Capital   

51,24,800 [Previous Year 51,24,800] Equity 

Shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid up  
 

 

512.48 
 
 
 

512.48 

 
 

Total 512.48 512.48 

 

 
 

Particulars 

As at 31st March, 2025 Asat31stMarch, 

  2024 

Number of 

shares 

 
Amount 

Numbe rof 

shares 

 
Amount 

Balance at the beginning of the reporting period 51,24,800 512.48 51,24,800 512.48 

Changes in Equity Share Capital due to prior 
period errors 

         -       -          -       - 

Restated balance at the beginning of the reporting 
period  

-       -           -        - 

Changes in Equity Share Capital during the period  -      - -       - 

 

Balance at the end of the reporting period 

 

51,24,800 

 

512.48 

 

51,24,800 

 

512.48 
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Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company 

 

 

 
Name of the Shareholder 

As at 31st March, 2025 As at 31st March, 2024 

Number of 

Shares 

% of 

Holding 

No.of Shares % of Holding 

Rakesh Goyal  

Saatvik Goyal  

Kareetam Traders Limited  

 

- 

6,40,600 

10,05,000 

- 

    12.50% 

19.61% 

3,10,640 

6,40,600 

10,05,000 

6.06% 

12.50% 

19.61% 

 

Shareholding of Promoters as at 31st March 2025 

 

Name of the Promoter 
 

No. of Shares 

 
% of Total sharest

 

% Change 
during the 

year 
   

Rakesh Goyal (HUF)  1,91,010 3.73% - 

Rakesh Goyal  1,62,740 3.18% (0.06) 

 Seema Goyal   2,51,560 4.91% - 

 Sanjay Kumar Agarwal     6,000 0.12% - 

Dikcha Devi Agarwal     4,000 0.08% - 

Anita Agarwal      4,000 0.08% - 

Mangalchand  Khemka     3,000 0.06% - 

Nirmala Devi  Khemka     5,000 0.10% - 

 Puran Khemka     7,000 0.14% - 

Sawarmal  20,000 0.39% - 

 Sukhvinder Singh   20,000 0.39% - 

 Vivek Kumar Kajaria    8,400 0.16% - 

 Kavita Kajaria    7,700 0.15% - 

Sheo Kumar Kajaria   3,100 0.06% - 

Asha Rani Kajaria   4,000 0.08% - 
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3.2)(a) Other Equity Reserves and Surplus 
Other 

Comprehensive 
Income-P/(L) 

Total as on 

31-03-2025 
 

Particulars 
Capital 
Reserve 

Retained 
Earnings 

Other Items of 
OCI 

 
 
 

Balance at the beginning of 
the current Reporting Period 

31.78 412.55 (8.59) 435.74 

Changes in accounting 
Policy/prior period errors 

- - - - 

Add/(Less):Profit/(Loss) of 
Current Reporting Period 

- 9.96 - 9.96 

Remeasurement of the net 
defined benefit liability 

- - (7.82) (7.82) 

Total Comprehensive Income 
for the year 

- - - - 

Dividends - - - - 

Transfer to Retained 
Earnings 

- - - - 

Premium on Equity Shares 
issued during the year 

- - - - 

Balance at the End of the 
Current Reporting Period 

31.78 422.51 (16.41) 437.88 

   

Total as on 
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3.2)(b) Other Equity Reserves and Surplus 
Other 

Comprehensive 
Income-P/(L) 

Total as on 
31.03.2024 

Particulars 
Capital 
Reserve 

Retained 
Earnings  

 
 
 

Balance at the beginning of 
the current Reporting Period 

31.78 384.22 (3.22) 412.78 

Changes in accounting 
Policy/prior period errors 

- - - - 

Add/(Less):Profit/(Loss) of 
Current Reporting Period 

- 28.33 - 28.33 

Remeasurement of the net 
defined benefit liability 

- - (5.37) (5.37) 

Total Comprehensive Income 
for the year 

- - - - 

Dividends - - - - 

Transfer to Retained 
Earnings 

- - - - 

Premium on Equity Shares 
issued during the year 

- - - - 

Balance at the End of the 
Current Reporting Period 

31.78 412.55 (8.59) 435.74 

3.3 Long Term Borrowings As at 31st As at 31st 

March, 2025 March, 2024 

Term Loans  

Secured Loans –From Banks   

      HDFC Bank Limited * 35.89 51.20 

Long term maturities of finance lease obligations:   

Long term lease Liabilities   7.03 - 

Total 42.92 51.20 
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 Secured by Book Debts and Inventory and the industrial plot bearing No “B-10” measuring 
about 3,23,510 Sq Feet at Maraimalai Nagar New Town together with factory building 
constructed thereon comprised in survey no 166 part, 167 part, 168 part at Keelakarani 
Village and survey no 360 part at Ninnakarai Village, Chengalpattu District. 

 

                    
 
  

*Due to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been 
identified on the basis of information collected by the management represents the principal 
amount payable to these enterprise.  There are no interest due and outstanding as at the 
reporting date. 
 

 

 

3.4 Long Term Provisions 

                         Particulars 

 
 

31-Mar-25 

 
 

31-Mar-24 

Provision for Employee Benefits-Gratuity 94.12 75.10 

Total 94.12 75.10 

3.5  Other Non Current Liabilities 

                            Particulars 

 
   31-Mar-25 

 
31-Mar-24 

Advances:   

 Earnest Money Deposit 1,322.00 1,320.00 

Total 1,322.00 1,320.00 

 

3.6 Borrowings     

                  Particulars 

As at 31st As at 31 

March, 2025 March2024 

 Loan repayable on demand   

i) from Banks   

   - CUB OD (Secured by Stock & Land, factory building) *  

815.16 

 

563.31 

ii) Current Maturity on Long Term debt 15.32 13.80 

Total 830.48 577.11 

3.7 

 

 

Trade Payables 

Particulars 

As at 31st As at 31st 

March, 2025 March, 2024 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Total outstanding dues of Micro enterprises and small 
enterprises; and  

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than Micro 
enterprises and small enterprises 

- 

 

320.48 

- 
 
 

94.94 

Total 320.48 94.94 
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Trade payables ageing schedule for the year ended as on March 31, 2025     [INR in Lakhs]  
                                                                                                 

Particulars 

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

Less than 
1 year 

1-2 
years 

2-3 
years 

More than 3 years Total 

MSME - - - - - 

Others 320.48 - - - 320.48 

(Previous Year) (94.94) - - - (94.94) 

Disputed Dues-MSME - - - - - 

Disputed Dues-
Others 

- - - -              - 

Total 320.48 - - - 320.48 

(Previous Year) (94.94) - - - (94.94) 

 
 
Notes on accounts_Balance Sheet (Equity & Liabilities) for the Year 31st March, 2025    
                                                                                                                 (Rs. In Lakhs) 
 

3.8 Other Financial Liabilities  

                   Particulars 

As at 31st As at 31st 

March,2025 March,2024 

 Others 1.98 1.65 

Total 1.98 1.65 
 
 
 
 

3.9) Other Current Liabilities 

                   

 Particulars 

As at 31st As at 31st 

March, 2025 March, 2024 

Advance from customers 0.17 13.06 

Statutory dues 5.67 23.15 

Audit fee payable  3.40 3.17 

HDFC Credit Card 0.28 - 

Current maturities of finance lease obligations 13.19 - 

Total 22.71 39.38 

  

3.10) Provisions   

 Particulars 

 
 
 
 
 
 
As at 31st 

 
 
 
 
 
 
As at 31st 

March, 2025 
 

March, 2024 

Provision for Employee benefits 70.39 62.64 
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Other Provisions 16.92 13.45 

Internal Audit Fee 0.20 0.20 

Total 87.52 76.29 

 
 

         Notes forming part of Statement of Profit & Loss for the Year Ended 31st March 2025 
                                                                                                                       (Rs. In Lakhs) 

4.1)Revenue from Operations 

                  Particulars 

As at 31st As at 31st 

March, 2025 March, 2024 

Sale of products 7,136.48 7,036.22 

Other operating revenue (Sale of scrap)          249.32 113.32 

Total 7,385.80 7,149.54 

4.2)Other Income 

 Particulars 

As at 31st As at 31st 

March, 2025 March, 2024 

a) Interest Income 1.49 1.17 

b) Other Non-Operating Income   

       Rental Income  6.09 5.34 

       Other Income (Written off) 0.68 6.42 

        Discount received - 16.26 

Profit on Sale of Fixed Assets - 19.66 

Freight Charges 7.51 1.22 

Insurance Claim received 0.48 - 

Unwinding Interest 0.26 - 

Total 16.50 50.08 
 

5.1) Costof Materials Consumed 

                      Particulars 

As at 31st As at 31st 

March, 2025 March, 2024 

RawMaterials:  

Opening Stock of Raw Materials  448.58 602.33 

Add: Purchases of Raw Materials  6,392.14 5,955.80 

Less: Closing Stock of Raw Materials 476.02 448.58 

RawMaterialConsumed (a) 6,364.71 6,109.55 

   

Manufacturing Expenses:   

Carriage Inward 197.56 198.68 

Brokerage and Commission H.R Coil 1.06 0.26 

Consumption of Stores 207.67 201.85 

Total Manufacturing Expenses (b) 406.29 400.79 

Total Cost of Raw Materials Consumed (a+b) 6,771.00 6,510.34 
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  5.2) Changes in Inventories of Finished goods,   

Stores & Spares    Particulars 

As at 31st 

March,2025 

As at 31st 

March,2024 

Opening Inventory:   

FinishedGoods 798.82 890.14 

Stores & Spares 196.79 7.78 

Total 995.61 897.92 

Closing Inventory:   

Finished Goods 1019.17 798.82 

Stores & Spares 192.92 196.79 

 1,212.09 995.61 

 Total              (216.48)           (97.69) 

5.3) Employee Benefits 

                                                   Particulars 

As at 31st 
March, 2025 

As at 31st 
March, 2024 

Salary & Allowance 316.80 288.16 

Contribution to Provident Fund and other Funds 36.23 33.99 

StaffWelfare Expenses 6.05 5.71 

Payment to Contractors 9.60 14.69 

Other Allowances Paid 57.80 56.73 

Total 426.49 399.28 
 

5.4) Finance Costs 

               Particulars 

As at 31st As at 31st 

March, 2025 March, 2024 

Interest paid to Bank 59.69 55.45 

Bank Charges 3.69 3.45 

Unwinding of Interest  1.01 - 

Total 64.39 58.90 

5.5) Depreciation and Amortization Expenses 

                 Particulars 

As at 31st 
March, 2025 

As at 31st 

March, 2024 

Depreciation  34.42 33.99 

Total 34.42 33.99 
 

 

 

 

 

 

5.6) Other Expenses 

                      Particulars 

 
 
 
 
 
 
As at 31st 

 
 
 
 
 
 
As at 31st 

 
March, 2025 

 
March, 2024 

Auditors Remuneration   

     Statutory Audit Fee 4.30 3.28 
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      Other Services - 1.05 

Advertisement / Business Promotion Expenses 0.76 2.57 

Director Remuneration 3.28 3.40 

Directors sitting fees  1.54 1.48 

Freight charges 40.78 31.26 

Insurance Expenses 3.65 3.78 

License fees / Royalty 6.39 6.57 

Loss on sale of Fixed asset - 0.23 

Power & Fuel 140.15 111.69 

  Printing and Stationery, Postage & Courier 3.21 3.82 

Professional Charges  29.34 38.66 

Rates & taxes 30.53 22.53 

Rent 7.20 13.70 

Repairs & Maintenance 20.86 23.13 

Telephone expenses 1.31 1.48 

Travelling & Conveyance expenses - - 

  Foreign Travelling - - 

  Other than foreign travelling 8.75 9.87 

  Miscellaneous Expenditure 7.56 7.68 

Total 309.88 286.18 

 
 

6) Employee Benefit_Ind As19:- 
 
                  Particulars 

 
AS at 

31st March 2025 

 
                   As at  

31st March 2025 

 
The changes in the present value of defined benefit obligation representing closing balances of                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                           
TamilNadu Steel Tubes Limited is as follows:  
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                    

Present Value of obligation at the beginning of 
the year  

75,10,199 58,10,937 

Interest cost  5,03,570 4,09,769 

Current service cost 11,86,793 9,75,877 

Benefits Paid  (5,70,767) (2,23,568) 

Actuarial (gain) / loss on obligation 7,82,123 5,37,187 

Present value of obligation at the end of year 94,11,918 75,10,199 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Financial Statements 

Page 149 

    

 

Notes forming part of Statement of Profit & Loss for the Year Ended 31st March, 2025 
                                                                                                                            
The changes in the fair value of plan assets representing reconciliation of closing balances 
thereof are as follows: 
                                                                                                                    (Rs. In Lakhs) 
 

Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year - - 

Expected return on plan assets - - 

Contributions 5,70,767 2,23,568 

Benefits paid  (5,70,767) (2,23,568) 

Actuarial gain/ (loss) on plan assets  - - 

Fair value of paln assets at the end of year - - 

 
 

 

 

 

7) Earnings made in Foreign Currencies 

                      Particulars 

 
 
 
 
 
As at 31st 

 
 
 
 
 
As at 31st 

March, 2025 March, 2024 

Export of Goods calculated on FOB Basis - - 

Total - - 

 
 

 

 

 

7.1)Expenditure made in Foreign Currencies 

                      Particulars 

 
 
 
 
 
As at 31st 

 
 
 
 
 
As at 31st 

March, 2025 March, 2024 

Import of Goods and Accessories - - 

Total - - 

 

8) Earnings Per Share and Diluted Earnings Per Shares: (Ind AS 33) 

 
Basic earnings per equity share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to the 
equity shareholders of the company by the weighted average number of quity shares outstanding 
during the reporting period. 
 
Diluted earning per equity share is calculated by adjusting the net profit or loss attributable to 
quity shareholders and the weighted average number of quity shares outstanding for the effects 
of all dilutive potential equity shares, if any. 
The earnings per share calculations are made in accordance with Ind As 33 – Earnings Per Share, 
and are presented separately for: 

 Basic earnings per share 

 Diluted earnings per share 
 

Where there is a net loss attributable to equity holders, the impact of potential equity shares is 
anti-dilutive and hence, the diluted earnings per share is equal to the basic earnings per share. 
 



46th Annual Report 2024-25 

Page 150 

    
 

 

The following is a reconciliation of the equity shares used in the computation of basic and 
diluted EPS: 
 

           

 

                     Particulars 

 
 
 
 
 
As at 31st 

 
 
 
 
 
As at 31st 

March, 2025 March, 2024 

Opening No. of Shares  51,24,800 51,24,800 

Total No. of Shares 51,24,800 51,24,800 

Profit After Tax 9.96 28.33 

Earnings Per Shares (In Rs.) 0.19 0.55 

Diluted Earnings per Shares ( In Rs.) 0.19 0.55 

 
 

 

9) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and 
Contingent Assets (Ind AS 37) 

                      Particulars 

 
 
 
 
 
As at 31st 

 
 
 
 
 
As at 31st 

March, 2025 March, 2024 

Contingent Liabilities   

Claims against the company not acknowledged as debt* 423.26 484.22 

Total 423.26 484.22 

 
The contigent Liability amounts to Rs.423.26 Lakhs (Previous Year: Rs.484.22 Lakhs) and 
comprises the following: Income Tax dues of Rs. 144.91 Lakhs (Previous Year: Rs.205.87 Lakhs), 
JDGFT Interest of Rs. 44.83 Lakhs (Previous Year: Rs. 44.83 Lakhs), and Sales Duty Drawback (for 
both current and previuos years) totaling Rs. 233.52 Lakhs. 
 

 

 

 

10) Client Individually accounted for more than     

      10% of Turnover of the Company- (Ind AS 108) 

                      Particulars 

 
 
 
 
 
As at 31st 

 
 
 
 
 
As at 31st 

March, 2025 March, 2024 

Khandelwal Steel Tubes and Traders 3,265.52 3,257.02 

Sicagen India Limited 2,149.34 1,113.16 
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11) Financial Instruments (Ind AS 109)  

                      Particulars 

As at 31st As at 31st 

March, 2025 March, 2024 

Financial assets  - - 

a. Measured at amortized cost - - 

Other non- current financial assets 32.74 26.44 

Trade receivables 1,384.27 1,299.07 

Cash and cash equivalents  154.16 28.91 

      Other current financial assets  0.34 7.56 

b. Mandatorily measured at fair value through profit or 
loss (FVTPL) 

- - 

Investments - - 

Financial liabilities - - 

a. Measured at amortized cost - - 

Borrwoings  (Shorts term) - - 

Trade Payables 1,384.27 1,299.07 

b. Mandatorily measured at fair value through profit or 
loss (FVTPL) 

- - 

Derivative instruments - - 

 

 

 

 

12) Lease (Ind AS 116)  

                      Particulars 

 
 
 
 
 

As at 31st 

 
 
 
 
 
As at 31st 

March, 2025 March, 2024 

Lessee  Tamil Nadu Steel Tubes Limited - 

Lessor SVETHA.V - 

Lease Commencement Date 07-OCT-24 - 

Lease End Date 30-Sep-26 - 

Lease Term ( Years) 1.98 NIL 

Lease Amount Rs.28,80,000 - 

Discount Rate ( Annual) 8.50% - 

Discount Rate ( Monthly) 0.708% - 

Present Value of Security Deposit  Rs.6,35,127.04 - 

 
Rental Details  

From To Rent per Month 

 
07-10-2024 

 

 
06-10-2026 

 
1,20,000 
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Note 13 
 
In compliance with Notification issued by Government of India (MCA) on amended format of 
Schedule III vide its order dated 24th March 2021, the figures appearing in financial statements 
have been rounded off to nearest lakhs (for both current and pervious reporting periods). 
 
Note14 
 
Previous year’s figures have been re-classified / re-grouped as found where ever necessary. 
 
 
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 
 
Transaction with related parties (Other than KMP): IND AS 24 
 

S No Name of the Related 
Party  

Nature of 
Relationship 

Remuneration 
 

Professional 
Charges  

Closing 
Balance 

 2024-
25 

2023-
24 

2024-
25 

2023-
24 

2024-
25 

2023-
24 

1 Narasimhan Sudarsan Director  0.20 0.22 4.42 4.17 0.28 0.26 

2 M T Elumalai Director - 0.12 - 4.05 - 1.72 

3 Bivashwa Das Managing 
Director 

0.10 0.10 3.89 - - - 

4 G Chitra C.F.O - 2.32 - - - - 

5 H Vinodh Kumar C.F.O 5.96 2.03 - - - - 

6 Priya Krishna Director 0.30 - - - - - 

7 Ram Ashish Singh  Director 0.08 0.10 5.87 5.48 0.38 0.37 

8 Divya Abhishek Director 0.30 0.14  - - - 

9 Rajesh Sai Iyer Director 0.32 0.34 - - - - 

10 Jyothi Sathish  Director - 0.16 - - - - 

11 Renuka Ramesh Director - 0.22 - - - - 

12 R V Satya Narayana Independent 
Director  

0.02 0.06  - - - 

13 Indhumathi Director 0.10 - - - - - 

14 Krishna Kamal Shukla Director 0.12 - 7.69 1.09 - - 

15 K Suresh Company 
Secretary 

6.65 3.44 - - - - 
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Schedule of Depreciation as per Income Tax Act, 1961 for the Year Ended   
as at 31st March 2025 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Particulars  
 

As at 
01-04-2024 

 
Additions 

 
 
 

Deletions 

Depreciation  
 

As at 
31-03-2025 

More than 
180 days 

 

Less than 
180 days 

Rate Amount 

Block-I (15%) 

Plant & 
Machinery 

81.31 1.75 39.64 - 15% 15.43 107.27 

Airconditioner 
& Cooler 

4.37 - 10.41 - 15% 1.44 13.35 

Vehicles 105.13 - - - 15% 15.77 89.36 

Mobile Phone 1.82 - - - 15% 0.27 1.55 

 

 Block-II (10%) 

Furniture & 
Fittings 

6.99 0.58 - - 10% 0.76 6.80 

Building 1.67 - - - 10% 0.17 150 

 

 Block-III (40%)  

Computer & 
Printer 

1.36 0.29 0.24 - 40% 0.71 1.18 

Total 202.65 2.62 50.30 - - 34.55 221.02 
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Note 15: Additional Regulatory Information Required under Division II to Schedule II of 
the Companies Act 2013 

 

S No Disclosure requirement as per Amended 
Schedule III 

Remarks for Non Disclosure (If any) 

1 Title deeds of Immovable Property not held 
in name of the Company 

The Title deeds of the Immovable 
Property are held in the name of the 
Company 

2 Revaluation of Property, Plant & Equipment The Company has not revalued any of 
Property, Plant & Equipment, Hence 
disclosure under this clause is not 
applicable 

3 Revaluation of Intangible Assets The Company doesn’t have any 
Intangible Assets, Hence disclosure 
under this clause is not applicable 

4 Loans or Advances in the nature of loans are 
granted to promoters, directors, KMPs and 
the related parties 

The Company doesn’t have any 
Advances in the nature of Loans, Hence 
disclosure under this clause is not 
applicable 

5 Capital-Work-in Progress (CWIP) NIL 

6 Intangible assets under development NIL 

7 Details of Benami Property held The Company has no Benami Property 
held in its name, Hence disclosure 
under is not applicable  

8 Borrowings from banks or financial 
institutions on the basis of security of 
current assets 

The Company has an OD facility 
outstanding as on 31st March 2025 of 
Rs.8.15 crores from City Union Bank 

 

9 

 

Wilful Defaulter 

The Company has not been declared as 
willful defaulter by any bank or 
financial Institution or other lender, 
Hence disclosure under this clause is not 
applicable 

10 Relationship with Struck off Companies The Company has no Transactions with 
Struck off Companies, Hence no 
disclosure under this clause is 
applicable 

11 Registration of charges or satisfaction with 
Registrar of Companies (ROC) 

The charges were registered with ROC 
for the HDFC Bank Limited for car loan 
amounting to Rs.65 L & CUB Bank 
against the OD facility of Rs.10Cr. 

Furthermore, charges are yet to be 
satisfied with Register of Companies for 
the following: 

i) Apple Credit Coroporation Limited 
amounting to Rs. 30L 

ii)The Tamilnadu Industrial Investment 
Coropn. Ltd od Rs. 5,45,000 

iii) Tamilnadu Finance Limited – Rs. 
1,62,660 

iv) Bank Of Madura Ltd – Rs.4,50,000 
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12 Compliance with number of layers of 
companies 

The Company has no 
subsidiary/associate or Joint Venture, 
Hence disclosure under this clause is not 
applicable 

13 Analytical Ratios Refer Note No 9 

 

14 

 

Compliance with approved Scheme(s) of 
Arrangements 

 

No Scheme of arrangements have been 
approved or pending for approval by the 
competent authority in terms of Section  

230 to 237 of the Companies Act, 2013 

 (a) No funds (which are material either 
individually or in the aggregate) have 
been advanced or loaned or invested 
from borrowed funds or share premium 
or any other source or kind of funds by 
the Company to or in any other person 
or entity, including foreign entity 
(“Intermediaries”), with the 
understanding, whether recorded in 
writing or otherwise, that the 
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or 
indirectly lend or invest in other persons 
or entities identified in any manner 
whatsoever by or on behalf of the 
Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or 
provide any guarantee, security or the 
like on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries;  

15 Utilisation of Borrowed funds and share 
premium 

(b) No funds (which are material either 
individually or in the aggregate) have 
been received by the Company from any 
person or entity, including foreign 
entity (“Funding Parties”), with the 
understanding, whether recorded in 
writing or otherwise, that the Company 
shall, whether, directly or indirectly, 
lend or invest in other persons or 
entities identified in any manner 
whatsoever by or on behalf of the 
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) 
or provide any guarantee, security or 
the like on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries; 

16 Undisclosed Income NIL 

17 Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) The Company has not required to 
Contribute under Provisions of u/s 135 
(CSR) of the Companies Act 2013, Hence 
disclosure under this clause is not 
applicable. 

18 Details of Crypto Currency or Virtual 
Currency 

The Company has not traded or invested 
in crypto currency or virtual currency, 
Hence disclosure under this clause is not 
applicable. 
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Note 16: Statement of Significant Ratios for the year ended 31st March 2025 
 

 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Particulars Numerator/Denominator 31 March 
2025 

31 March 
2024 

Change 

(a) Current Ratio Current Assets 
Current Liabilities 

2.62 3.65 (1.02) 

(b) Debt-Equity 
Ratio 

Debts 
Equity 

0.92 0.66 0.26 

(c) Debt Service 
Coverage Ratio 

Earnings available for Debt Service 
Interest +Installments 

4.97 1.99 2.97 

(d) Return on 
Equity Ratio 

Profit after Tax 
Net Worth 

1.05% 2.99% (0.02) 

(e) Inventory 
turnover ratio 

Average Inventories 
Costs of goods sold 

0.24 0.23 0.01 

(f) Trade 
Receivables 
turnover ratio 

Total Turnover 
Average Account Receivable 

5.50 5.39 0.12 

(g) Trade 
payables 
turnover ratio 

Total Purchases 
Average Account  Payable 

30.77 39.61 (8.84) 

(h) Net Capital 
turnover ratio 

Total Turnover 
Net Working Capital 

3.60 3.42 0.18 

(i) Net Profit 
ratio 

Net Profit  
Total Turnover 

0.13% 0.40% (0.00) 

(j)Return on 
Capital 
employed 

Earning Before Interest and Taxes 
Capital Employed 

3.96% 4.06% (0.00) 

(k)Retun on 
Investment  

Net Profit 
Total Investment 

0.27% 0.89% (0.01) 
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Sub schedules forming part of Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit & Loss for the 
Year Ended 31st March, 2025 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   
(INR in Lakhs) 

 
 

 
 
 
                 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 

 

Other Deposits 

Particulars 

As at 31st 

March, 2025 

As at 31st 

March, 2024 

Metro Water Deposit 0.50 0.50 

Sales Tax Deposit 0.04 0.04 

EB Meter Deposit 0.39 0.37 

Electricity Deposit 16.81 18.03 

Deposit – M.E.S 0.04 0.04 

Deposit – Tamil Nadu Waste Management 0.20 0.20 

Deposit – Sakthi Auto Service 0.50 0.50 

Deposit – Security Deposits 0.75 0.75 

Deposit – Telephone 0.73 0.74 

Deposit – Gas 0.44 0.44 

Export Inspection Agency (ISFTA) 0.05 0.05 

Total 20.45 21.65 

Income Tax Refund Receivables 

                                Particulars 

As a t31st As at 31st 

March,2025 March,2024 

Income Tax Refund receivables – FY 2013-14 5.00 5.00 

Income Tax Refund receivables – FY 2017-18 6.04 6.04 

Income Tax Refund receivables – FY 2018-19 2.49 2.49 

Income Tax Refund receivables – FY 2019-20 1.94 1.94 

 Income Tax Refund receivables – FY 2020-21 3.68 3.68 

Income Tax Refund receivables – FY 2021-22 5.99 5.99 

 Income Tax Refund receivables – FY 2022-23 7.23 7.23 

Income Tax Refund Receivable – FY 2023 – 24 6.36 - 

Total 38.74 32.37 

Cash and Bank Balance As at 31st As at 31st 

March,2025 March,2024 

City Union Bank 153.37 23.56 

Total 153.37 23.56 
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GST Credit Receivable As at 31st As at 31st 

March, 2025 March, 2024 

CGST Credit 14.23 0.65 

SGST Credit 14.23 0.65 

IGST Credit 0.01 0.05 

GST TDS Receivables 0.82 - 

Total 29.30 1.34 

Long term Borrowings 

                               Particulars 

As at 31st As at 31st 

March, 2025 March, 2024 

Secured Term Loans    

From Banks   

HDFC Bank 35.89 51.20 

 35.89 51.20 

Long Term Liablitity of Lease Payments:  

                              

  

  

Lease Liability  26.41 - 

Add:- interest  1.01 - 

Less:- Payment through bank 7.20 - 

 20.22 - 

Total 56.11 51.20 

Statutory Dues Payable As at 31st As at 31st 

March, 2025 March, 2024 

TDS Payable 1.62 1.72 

TCS Payable 0.34 0.78 

EPF Payable Employee 2.40 2.11 

ESI Payable Employee 0.16 0.15 

CGST Payable 0.23 8.74 

SGST Payable 0.23 8.84 

IGST Payable 0.69 0.90 

Total 5.67 23.15 
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Provision for Employee Benefits 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Other Provisions 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Other Allowances 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Particulars As at 31st 

March, 2025 
As at 31st 

March, 2024 

Liability for Expenses EPF, EPS, Admin 
Charges EDLI 

 
2.60 

 
 

 
2.29 

Liability for Expenses ESI Contribution 0.67 0.64 

Liability for Salaries & Allowance Payable 26.21 22.89 

Managing Director Remuneration Payable 0.31 0.29 

Gratuity Payable - - 

Bonus Payable 

 

40.61 36.54 

Total 70.39 62.64 

Particulars As at 31st 

March,2025 
As at 31st 

March, 2024 

Provision for Electricity  
16.47 

 

 
12.07 

Other Provisions   
0.45 

 
0.56 

Rent Payable  -  
0.83 

Total  
16.92 

 
13.45 

Particulars As at 31st 

March,2025 
As at 31st 

March, 2024 

Leave Salary  
18.63 

 

 
21.32 

Bonus  
22.21 

 
21.56 

Gratuity Expenses  
16.90 

 
13.86 

Grand Total  
57.74 

 
56.73 
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Repairs and Maintenance  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Miscellaneous Expenditure  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Contingent Liability  

Particulars As at 31st 

March,2025 
As at 31st 

March, 2024 

AMC Charges   
2.72 

 

 
3.40 

Office Maintenance  
6.30 

 
8.27 

Vehicle Maintenance  
3.65 

 
4.92 

Repairs and Maintenance   
8.20 

 
3.85 

Grand Total  
20.86 

 
20.44 

Particulars As at 31st 

March,2025 
As at 31st 

March, 2024 

Membership Fee and Subscription  
1.13 

 

 
3.34 

Donation  
0.91 

 
1.01 

Pooja Expenses  
1.11 

 
1.26 

Filing/Secreterial Expenses  
2.76 

 
0.43 

Tender Expenses -  
0.01 

Other Miscellaneous Expenditure  
1.65 

 
1.60 

Total  
7.56 

 
7.65 

Particulars As at 31st 

March,2025 
As at 31st 

March, 2024 

i) Income Tax Dues:  
 
 

 

AY 2009-10 -  
60.96 

AY 2011-12  
124.41 

 
124.41 

AY 2012-13  
20.50 

 
20.50 

Less: Acknowledged as debt in books of 
accounts  

- - 

  
144.91 

 
205.87 
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ii) JDGFT Interest  
44.83 

 
44.83 

iii) Sales Duty Drawback  
233.52 

 
233.52 

Less: Acknowledged as debt in books of 
accounts  

- - 

Total  
423.26 

 
484.22 
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TAMILNADU STEEL TUBES LTD. 
Regd.Office:1st Floor, No.22, Wheatcroft Road, Nungambakkam, Chennai-600034,  

CIN: L27110TN1979PLC007887 ; GST : 33AAACT2381C1ZU 
Phone: 2855 5653, E-mail:purchase@tnt.pipe.com/tnt.share@yahoo.in 

Website: www.tntpipes.com 

Dear Shareholder, 
RE: GREEN INITIATIVE IN CORPORATE: GO PAPERLESS 
 

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (‘Ministry’) has taken a “Green Initiative in Corporate 
Governance” by allowing paperless compliances by companies through electronic mode. In 
accordance with the Circulars bearing No.17/2011 dated 21.04.2011 issued by the Ministry, 
companies can now send various notices/documents (including notice calling Annual General 
Meeting, Audited Financial Statements, Directors’ Report, Auditors’ Report etc.) to their 
shareholders through electronic mode,to the registered e-mail addresses of the shareholders. 
 
It is a welcome move for the society at large, as this will reduce paper consumption to a great 
extent and allow publicat large to contribute towards agree ner environment. 
 
This is also a golden opportunity for every shareholder of Tamilnadu Steel Tubes Limited (the 
Company) to contribute to the Corporate Social Responsibility initiative of the Company. All you 
have to do is to register your e-mail id with the Company to receive communication through 
electronic mode. 
 
Advantages of registering for E-communication: 
Receive communication promptly. Reduce paper consumption and save trees. Eliminate wastage 
of paper. Avoid loss of document in postal transit. Save costs on paper and postage. 
 
We therefore, invite you to contribute to the cause by filling up the form given along with for 
registering your e-mail ID and send it back to us. 
 
Kindly note that you still wish to get a hard copy/physical copy of all the communications, the 
Company undertakes to provide the same at no extra cost to you. In case you desire to receive the 
above-mentioned documents in physical form, you are requested to send an e-mail to 
tnt.share@yahoo.in or send a letter to the address as mentioned above. 
 
Registration /Updating of E-Mail IDs and Bank Details 
 
Members are requested to support “Green Initiative” by registering their e-mail address with the 
company, if not already done. 
 
Those Members, who have changed their e-mail ID, are requested to register their new e-mail ID 
with the Company in case the shares are held in physical form and with the Depository 
Participant where shares are held in Demat mode. Pursuant to SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Company is required to maintain Bank details of 
its members for the purpose of payment of Dividends etc. Members are requested to 
register/update their bank details with the Company in case shares are held in physical form and 
with their depository Participants as well as the Company where shares are held in 
dematerialized mode, to enable expeditious credit of the dividend to their bank accounts 
electronically through ACH. 

                                                                    for TAMILNADU STEELTUBES LIMITED 
                                                                                        Sd/- 
                                                                     BIVASHWA DAS  

                    Manging Director 

mailto:tnsteel79@gmail.com
mailto:tnt.share@yahoo.in
mailto:tnt.share@yahoo.in
http://www.tntpipes.com/
mailto:tnt.share@yahoo.in
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E-COMMUNICATION REGISTRATION FORM 

 
To 
M/s Tamilnadu Steel Tubes Ltd, 
No. 22, 1St Floor, Wheatcroft Road,  
Nungambakkam, 
CHENNAI-600034. 
 
Dear Sir/Madam, 

 

RE: Green Initiative in Corporate Governance 

 
I agree to receive all communication from the Company in electronic mode. Please register my 
e-mail id in your records for sending communication through e-mail. 
 
Folio No. / DPID & Client ID: 
 
Name of the 1st Registered Holder:    

Name of the Joint Holder (s)       :   

Registered Address                     :  

e-mail ID                                    :  

 

 

                                                                                   Signature of the First Holder 
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